@SﬁﬁﬁALin} MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Trustees,

Witliam Ziegier, President
Joshus Barrow, Vice President
Caroline Van Alst, Clerk

Shirley Thornton, Ed. B,
Thomas Newmeayer
Superintendent: Steve Van Zant

Sausalito Marin City Schooi District

Agenda for the Regular Mesting of the Board of Trusiees
Bayside/Martin Luther King School
200 Phillips Drive, Marin City, CA 94865

Tuesday, January 14, 2014

5:30 p.m. Open Session ~ Bayside/Martin Luther King School Conference Room
531 pm. Closed Session — Bayside/Martin Luther King School Conference Room
6:00 p.m. Open Session — Bayside/Martin Luther King School Library

L OPEN SESSION - Call to Order
i CLOBED SESSION — AGERDA
1. With respect fo evary item of business to be discussed pursuant to GC Section 545857.
Public Employees ~ Superintendent’s Evaluation

OPEN SESSION AGENDA

Hi. OPEN SESSION - Depending upon completion of Closed Session items, the Governing
Roard intends o convene in open Session at 6:00 p.m. to conduct the remainder of the
meeting, reserving the right to return to Closed Session at any time.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. AGENDA REORGANIZATION/APPROVAL
Are there any requests from the Board to move any agenda item to a different location?

2. BOARD COMMUNICATIONS
Roard of Trustees Reports - Board Members may make brief announcements
or briefly report on their own activities as they may relate to schoot business.

3. CORRESPONDENCE
3.01 School Activity Calendars, Schedules and vents

4. REPORTS
4.4 SMCTA Report
4.02 CSEA Report
4.03 Superintendent’s Report — Steve Van Zant
4.04 Principal's Report — Darndel Norbutas
4.08 Wilow Creek Academy

Entire board packet on www.smasd.orgfSchool BoardiMealing Agendas and Minutes

1 of 242



ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

Because the Board has a responsibility to conduct district business in an orderly and efficient way, the foliowing
procedures shall regulate public presentations to the Board. The Board iz asking thal members of the public wishing to
speak, fill out a form located on the countertable, stating their name and address; the agenda item; and the topic 1o he
discussed, BB 8323,

The Governing Board is prohibited from taking any action on any item raised in this section unless the item is specifically
agendized. The members of the Goveming Board may ask a guesfion for clarification, provide a reference to staff or other
resources for factus! information, request steff to report back at a subseyuant meeting on any matter or take action directing
staff to place a matier of business on a future agenda. Governing Board members may make brief announcements or briefly
repott on hisiher own activities as they relate 1o school business. )

State open meeting laws allow members of the public to lodge public critieism of District policies, procedures, programs, of
services, However, thoss same laws include specific provisions designed to protect the fiberty and reputational interests of
public employses by providing for ihe non-public hearing of complaints or charges against employess of the District.  Under
these laws, i is the employee subject to complaints or charges who is provided the right fo choose wheather those complaints
or charges will be heard in open or closed sesston. it s therefore the desire of the Sausalito Marin City Schoot District that
compizints against an employse be put in writing, and that when the Board hears complainis or charges against an smployes
it do so in closed session urtess the emplovee reguests an open session. Consistent with the law and the opinion of the
State Attornsy GeneraPs Office, please submit any complaints against an employee in wiiting, io the administration, in
accordance with the district's complaint procedure.  This procedure is designed to allow the District to address compiaints
against employess while at the same time respecting thedr legitimate privacy rights and expeciations.

GENERAL FUNCTIONS

6.01 Consent agenda: *6.03, *6.05, *9.03, ¥9.04,*9.05, *9.06, *9.07,710.01
6.02 Designation of MCSBA representative - Action - RC

*§.03 Williams Quarterly Report

6.04 Construction Update

“§.08 Approval of Board Minutes of November 21, 2013 and December 11, 2013

PUPIL SERVICES

PERSONNEL

FINANCIAL & BUSINESS

3.01 2012-2013 District Audit Report — Action - RC

8.02 Wilow Creek Academy ~ 2012-2013 Audit Report - RC
*303  2013-2014 Audit Contract - Action

*5.04  Bid Trreshold Annual Adjustment - Action
*9,05  Interschola Service Agreement - Action

“9.06  Annual Adjustment to Liability Limit of Parent or Guardian — Action
*9.07 Payment of Warrants — Batches 26-30 — Action

10, CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

*10.01

mstructional Minutes and Bell Schedules for the 2013-2014 School Year ~ Action

1.  POLICY DEVELOPMENT

11.01 Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 1230 - Community Relations ~-Sehoeol
Connecied Organizations- Action

14.02 Board Policy and Adminisirative Regulation 1240 - Community Relations —
Volunteer Assistance - Action

11.03  Board Policy and Administrative Ragulation 1260 - Community Relations ~
Educational Foundations - Action

11.04 Board Policy and Administrative Reguiation 3312.2 - Business and Nan-instructional
Operations - Educational Travel Program Contracts - Action

11.05 Board Policy (BP) & Administrative Regulation (AR} 3100 Budget - Action

11.06 Board Bylaw (BB) 8000 ~ Role of the Board ~ First Read

Entire board packet on www.smesd.org/Schoot Bearditeeting Agendas and Minutes

2 of 242



11.07 Board Bylaw (BB) 9005 — Governance Standards — First Read
$1.08 Board Bylaw (BB) 9010 — Public Statements - First Read
11.09 Board Bylaw (BB) 9130 — Board Committees — First Read

12. FUTURE PLANNING/ACTION ITEMS
Ball Field

13. FUTURE MEETING
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees will be on Tuesday, February
11, 2014, in the Bayside/Martin Luther King Schoci Library

14, ADJOURNMENT

*Congent Agenda ltems

in compliance with Government Cods section 54857.5, open session materials distributed to Board Members for
review prior to a meeting may be viewsd at the District Office of the Sausalitc Marin City School District, 200
Fhillips Drive, Marin City, California, or at the scheduled meeting. Board agenda back-up materials may alsc be
accessed onfine at www.smesd.org. In addition, if you would like a copy of any record related to an item on the
agenda, please contact the Administrative Assistant te the Buperintendernt at 415-332-3108

in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act I you need spucial assistance, disabifify-related
modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the public
meatings of the District’'s governing hoard, please confact the office of the District Superintendent at 415-332-
3190, Notification 72 hours prior fo the meeting will enable the District o make reasonable arrangements o
ensure accommodation and accessibility to this meeting. Upon request, the District shall also make avaifable
this agenda and alf other public records associated with this meeling in appropriate alternative formats for
persons with a disabillty.

Entire hoard packet on www.smosd.org/School Boarditfesting Agendas and Minutes

3 of 242



Sausalite Marin City School Distriet

Agenda [tem: 6.02 BPrate: January 14,2014
_______ _ Correspondence Consent Agenda
Reports

X General Functions
Pupil Services
Personnel Services
___ Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction
_____ Policy Development
Item Requires Board Action: X Ftem is for Information Only:
Item: Representative to Marin County School Boards Association (MCSBA)
Background:
Marin County School Boards Association (MSBA) has asked that we submit the name of

a representative to their organization. Therefore, we respectfully request the board to
select a representative so that we can forward the name of the person to MCSBA.

Fiseal Impact:

Undetermined

RBecommendation:

Select a Representative to MCSBA

Prepared for: 5. Van Zant
Prepared by: 5. Van Zant

4 of 242



Sausalito Marin City School Distriet

Agenda Hem: 6.03 Bate: January 14, 2014
uuuuuuu _ Correspondence X Consent Agenda

______ _ Reporis
X General Functions
__________ _ Pupil Services
___ Personnel Services
Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction
Policy Development

Htem Hequires Board Action: ftem is for Information Only: X
Item: Williams Quarterly Report

Background:

As in the past, the District has not received any complaints under the Williams Act. This
guarterly report is brought to the Board for information.

Fiscal Impact:

Undetermined

Recommendation:

Information Only

Prepared for: 5. Van Zant
Prepared by: S. Van Zant

5 of 242



Valenzuela/ CAMSEE Lawsuit Settlement
Guarterly Beport on Williams Uniform Complaints
[Education Code § 35186(d}]

Sausalito Marin City

District:
Person completing this form: steve Van Zant Title: Superintendent
Quarterly Report Submission Date: [ ] juty 2013

D October 2013

lanuary 2014
D April 2014

Date for information to be reported publicly at governing board meeting‘}anuary 14,2014

Please check the box that applies:

g.f} No complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quarter
indicated above.

g E Complaints were filed with schools in the district during the quarter indicated
abave. The following chart summarizes the nature and resolution of these
complaints.

o,

Textboolks and
Instructional
Materiais

Teacher Yacancy or
Misassignment

Facilities Conditions

LAHSEER Intensive
instruction and
Bervices

TOTALS

Steve Van Zant

Print Name of District Superintendent

01/14/14

Signature of District Superintendent Date

6 of 242



Sausalite Marin City Schesl Bistriet

Agenda Hem: 6.04

~ Correspondence
_ Reports
X General Fanctions
~ Pupil Services
_ Personnel Services
_ Financial & Business Procedures
Curricuiom and Instruction
Policy Development

item Requires Board Action:
Itemy: Construction Update

Background:

Date: January 14, 2014

Consent Agenda

Hem is for Information Only: X

The Director of Maintenance and Operations will give an update on the construction

project.

Fiscal lmpact:

Undetermined

Beecommendation:

Information Only

Prepared for: 5. Van Zant
Prepared by: 5. Van Zant

7 of 242



Sausalito Marin City Schoeel District

Agenda ltem: 605 Date: January 14, 2014
________ _ Correspondence X Consent Agenda
Reports

X General Functions
Pupil Services
Personnel Services
Finaneial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction
Policy Development

Item Requives Board Actiom: X item is for Information Unly:

Ttem: Approval of Board Minutes
Background:

Board minutes for November 21 and December 11, 2013 are brought to the Board for
approval,

Fiscal Impact:

Undetermined

Recommendation:

Approve

Prepared for: 5. Van Zant
Prepared by: 8, Van Zant

8 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL BISTRICT
BOARD MEETING MINUTES
Movember 21, 2013

ATTENDANCE

Board Members Present: Wiillam Ziegler, Shirley Thornton Ed. D., Caroline Van Alst, Thomas
Newmeyer, Joshua Barrow

Superintendent: Steve Van Zant

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.
The agenda order was approved.

CLOSED SESSION
The Board and Superintendent convened closed session at 5:31 p.m.

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
Open session reconvened at 6:04p.m.

Beport Out from Closed Session
Trustee Zeigler announced that no reportable action was taken in closed session.

Pledge of Allegiance
Trustee Barrow led the Pledge of Allegiance.

BOARD COMMUNICATIONS

Trustee Thomton said that the Rotary Club received 16 proposals for its mini grants to teachers in the
District. Grantees will be selected in the next few weeks.

Trustee Newmeyer thanked Forrest Corson, Daniel Norbutas and Royce Conner for their help in
submitting a grant proposal to the Marin County Bicyele Coalition for bike racks.

Superintendent’s Report — Steve Vau Fant

Speaking of the Distriet’s Pre K to 3 Initiative, Superintendent Van Zant said that although we are making
a lot of progress in preparing our youngest students for Kindergarten, we still have some ways to go. All
of the staff members involved in the project will be getting together as a group to establish policies and

procedures which will put us on the right path to achieve our readiness goals.

Principal’s Heport — Dagiel Norbutas

Principal Norbutas said that the school had its first K-8 Halloween Parade last week. All staff members
were in formalwear costumes, the theme for this year, We also celebrated our second Family Fun Night:
our topic was Healthy Bodies Healthy Brains, with our Eco Top chefs preparing their celebrated chili and
cornbread,

Mr. Norbutas told the Board that Common Core Standards - aligned report cards will be issued this
trimester, He concluded by inviting evervone to atiend the Whole School Assembly betng held every
Friday.

9 of 242



Willow Creek Academy

Head of School Royce Conner said that the school’s first trimester just ended. We have concluded a very
successtul book fair which added many volumes to our library, he said. The schools administration hopes
to have its charter renewal letter completed by December 10,

Proposed Field Trip Report — Jan McDougal

Math teacher Jan McDougal said that the schoo! plans to set up an orgasization called Growth Circles in
order to raise funds for extracurricular activities, Because this is a costly and time consuming procedure,
she asked that the district accept funds raised for field trips and other activities on behalf of the school.
She said that the purpose of Growth Circles would be to provide our students with life skills and
opportunities for social and emotional growth that they need in addition to their “book learing” in order
o succeed.

She described the three-day field trip at the Alliance Redwoods in Occidental at the start of the school
year, where students leamed about team-building and cooperation. The second field trip to build on these
skiils will take place at the Sierra Club Hostel near Sugar Bowl in January. In the spring, the schoot hopes
to organize a S-day trip to Washington DC to reinforce the history curriculum, and finally, the big goal
will be to raise enough money to send three 8" graders to Oxford or Cambridge for a 4- week summer
program before entering high school. Ms. McDougal said that the school needs to raise an additional
$11,006 to fund the spring field trip to Washington.

No action was taken on this proposal.

Marin Promise Parinership

Trustee Barrow explained that the non-profit Marin Promise organization would like to form a partnership
with the District to emphasize that both are working on Kindergarten Readiness, increasing graduation
rates, and having students who are well prepared to enter secondary scheol and college.
Newmever/Thornton/ Al to accept the partnership with Maria Promise.

Willow Creek Academy Proposition 39 Reguest
Superintendent Van Zant said that he would like to formally inform the Board that the district has
received Willow Creek Academy’s Proposition 39 request and will be responding in a timely manner,

Censtruction Update

Maintenance and Facilities director Forrest Corson said that non-fruiting olive and myrtle trees have been
planted on campus, The artificial turf order has been placed and should be in before the Winter Recess,
We have passed several inspections conducted by the State and we are now close to the end of the
construction project.

Trustee Thoraton said that we need a marquee at the schoot site. Mr. Corson said that we plan to have it
in the budget for next vear.

Budget update

Business Manager Paula Rigney gave a report on the budget, showing trends in public funding of school
districts in the last seven vears. She said that she is working revisions to complete the first interim budget.
Memorandum of Understanding with Larkspur Corte Madera Schoel District

10 of 242



Shared Services Agreement for:
1. Adnrinistrative Student Placement

Newmeyer/Barrow/ All te approve the shared services agreement for Administrative
Student Placement, amending the amount fo $20,600

F\J

Technology Services/Professional Development
Newmeyer/Van Alst/ All to approve the shared services agreement for technology services
3. Director of Special Education

Newmeyer/Van Alst/ All to approve the shared services agreement for the director of
Specinl Edueation

Memorandum of Understanding with Marin Head Start — Hiring a Parent Liaison as part of the
Prek-3 Initintive

The Board heard that the parent liaison would be hired by Marin Head Start, paid for through the Pre K-3
Grant, and work under the direction of school site administration.

Thoraton/Newmeyer/ All to approve the hiving of a parent liaison as part of the Prel-3 Initiative

Lease Agreement with Community Action Marin - use of school facilities for ihe preschool program
The Board was told that the preschool program would be housed in the portables.
Barrow/Newmeyer/ All fo approve the lease agreement with Community Action Marin

Contract with County of Marin for Coordination of the district-wide Nutrition Education Obesity
Prevention Program

This is a program funded through a grant awarded to the District by the County of Marin.
Newmeyer/Van Alst/ All to approve the contract with the County of Marin

Change of Format in the Fund 40 Unaudited Actuals for 2012-2613
Board members were notified that this change in format has taken place.

Change Orders

Change Order — MLK Electrical #1

Change Order — MLK Modular #2

Change Order — MLK Civil Improvement #]

Superintendent Van Zant said that these change orders were originally brought before the Board in
October, when a decision was deferved until trustees could study them further. Trustee Newmeyer
explained that the Facilities Comumittee went over these orders with Todd Lee of Greystone West, The
Division of the State Architect, which oversees school construction projects, objected to several pieces of
the project that dealt with heat sensors; there were issues regarding plaster, and a few other sundry matfers
that could not be foreseen. Once these change orders amounting to $57,000 are approved, the project is
essentially done. Trustee Ziegler sajd that he saw the change orders as reasonable on the whole; a fow
items were missed by the architect, but given the scope of the project and the aim of opening the school
on time, the change orders are acceptable.

11 of 242



Trustee Van Alst asked why the change orders came in so late. Trustee Newmeyer said that there are
delays because Greystone West must negotiate with contractors for a final cost before bringing the change
order to the Board.

Trustee Newmeyer said that originaily the final cost of the construction project was estimaled to be §3.5
million. This included $460,000 that was set aside for contingencies, including 530,000 for the demolition
of the annex. As of today, we have spent roughly $3.8 million, so we are over our budget by $300,000. In
2013, we set aside $200,000 in deferred maintenance to pay for some of this. If the demoiition of the
annex does not take place, that is another 370,000 that we have not spent. If the Office of Public School
Construction comes through with the funds for the Annex demolition, we will be able to repienish our
deferred maintenance fund several times over.

Trustee Barrow said that this is a lot of ifs. He obiected to evervthing happening after the fact and asked
that a new process be put in place so that the Board can make decisions before work is done and not after.
Trustee Newmeyer said that some of the problems came about because of the expanded scope of the
project, which occurred without Board discussion.

Newmeyer/Thornton/ All to approve ali three change orders

CONSNENT AGENDA

Minutes of Board Meetings, October 15, October 24, November 13, 2013

Field trips

Payment of warrants Batches 20-23

Thornton/Van Alst/All - Roll Call Ayes 5, 0Noes 0 to approve the above consent agenda Hems.
POLICY DEVELOPMENT

Board Policy and Exhibit 0210 - Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans: Equity — Third
Reading

Board Policy and Administrative Reguiations 0460 - Local Control And Accountability Plan — First Read
Roard Policy 3110 — Business and Non-instructional Operations-Transfer of Funds-First Read
Board Policy and Administrative Regulations 0500 — Accountability — first Read

These policies were brought to the board for their review.

12 of 242



ADFOURNMENT
Thorntonw/Mewmever/AH {o adjourn the meeting at 7:40 pan.

Signature/Date

Title

13 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD MEETING MINUTES
December 11, 2013

ATTENDANCE

Board Members Present: William Ziegler, Caroline Van Alst, Thomas Newmeyer, Joshua Barrow
Participating via conference call: Shirley Thornton Ed. D.

Superintendent: Steve Van Zant

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.

The agenda order was changed to allow Willow Creek Academy to present its interim budget at the start
of the meeting.
Newmeyer/Van Alst/All to approve the change in the agenda order,

CLOSED SESSION
The Board and Superintendent convened closed session at 531 pan.

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
Open session reconvened at 6:10 p.m.

Report Out from Closed Session
Trustee Zeigler announced that the board took the following actions in closed session:

‘The Board voted to deny the request to extend a leave of absence for employee #47066 to January 201 5.
The Board voted to approve a leave of absence of one day a week from January 9, 2814 {0 May 15, 2015
for employee #47034.

The board approved a suspended expulsion for student # 4142410650 for the rest of the 2013-2014
school year,

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Trustee Newmeyer led the Pledge of Allegiance.

ELECTION OF BOARD OFFICERS

Election of Board President

Newmeyer/Van Alst /Al to reelect William Ziegler as president

Election of Board Vice President

Van Alst/Newmeyer/All to reelect Joshua Barrow as vice president

Election of Board Clerk

Newmeyer/Barrow/All to re-clect Caroline Van Alst as clerk

Appointment of Board Secretary, Steve Van Zand

Newmeyer/Barrow/All to elect Steve Van Zant as secretary of the Board of Trustees

Designation of Governing Board Meeting Dates for Calendar Year 2614

The board agreed to change the date of its regularly scheduled meetings to the second Tuesday of each
month.

Newmeyer/Van Alst/All to approve the Board Meeting Calendar

14 of 242



Newmever/Van Alst/All to adjourn the Organizational Meeting at £:30 pm
OPEN SESSION — Regular Board Meeting reconvened at 6:31 pom.

Superintendent’s Report

Superintendent Van Zant said that he is working hard on the Pre K-3 program. In his conversations with
the community about the school, he is finding that the overall respouse to the culture that we are frying to
build is positive.

Principal’s Report

PreK-3 Grant

Principal Daniel Norbutas said this grant is funded by the Marin Community Foundation and is intended
to strengthen Kindergarten readiness for children in several Marin County districts. He thanked Don Jen
of MCF for coming to the meeting and for his continued support. Mr. Norbutas said that the overarching
vision for the school connects all the work that teachers and administrators do to improve school ciimate,
emphasize high guality teaching, alignment, family engagement and extended learning. This vision
unifies all of our work across all grants, and our work as a school, he said. Some of the elements of our
work are data-driven instruction, breaking down the walls between classrooms to allow for teacher
collaboration, formal and informal assessment tools, pesitive behavior and self regulation practices for
students, and conflict resolution strategies including restorative justice. Our goal is that if you walk into
any of our classrooms, vou will see all of these practices in play. he said.

The Prek-3 grant facilitator, Glena Coleman, has coordinated withy affer-school providers at Manzanita,
the Boys and Girls Club, Bridge the Gap and Reading Pariners so that practices are consistent from place
to place as a child moves from class to an after-school program or from class to ciass.

Assistant Principal Tenisha Tate said that in an effort to increase parental engagement, the district has
expanded the services that it provides to families. We now have a school counselor, a community
specialist from the county, and a parent Haison to give parents the support that they need. We also have a
designated parent center at the school and organize monthly family fun nights to enhance community
participation. Our goal is to have all 150 families volunteer for at least one hour during the year. Every
other Thursday, we have an informal coffee and chat meeting with parents to discuss various subjects like
bedtime routine or discipline. Last time, ten percent of parents attended.

Trustee Zeigler asked about the monitonng of the grani, Principal Norbutas said that facilitators Jan
Derby and Glena Coleman make sure that we are on the right track and that the school reports vearly to
the Marin Community Foundation.

Transforming Scheols Grant

Principal Norbutas said that this grant is alimed at the middle schoo! and has three main elements:
i. Collaborative learning groups
2. Community-based learning - children going out into the community to learn
3. Growth Circles - pushing students out of their comfort zone

Trustee Newmeyer asked H we are doing the necessary work so that we can stll reach our goals when the
grant ends. Principal Norbutas said that we are in some areas, bué need to redouble our efforts in others.

15 of 242



The loag- term plan 18 to build in a set of procedures so that we can continue the conversation we still
need to have regarding improving the culture of our middie school.

Academic Performance Index

Principal Norbutas said that this is the last year for STAR testing, which will be replaced by the Smarter
Balance Assessment. Bayside’s APl dropped 82 points and MLK s rose 32 points. He emphasized that we
like to jook at individual student growth rather than district-wide scores.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

Science Teacher Denise Suto said that the Eco Top Chef team worked during the Thanksgiving break fo
make a gingerbread house which is on display at the Driver’s market in Sausalito. She also shared that the
students greatly enjoy using the donafed microscopes.

CONSENT AGENDA

Roll Call Newmeyer/Van Alst /Al to approve the following items:
Payment of Warrants — Batches 24-25

Student Expuision

Leave Reguest - Certificated

Leave Request — Classified

Agreement with Indoor Environmental Services

Superintendent Van Zant said that this company will perform an audit of our facilities 1o suggest
efficiencies and cost savings in energy.

Barrow/Van Alst/All fo approve the agreement with Indoor Environmental Services

Marin Community Foundation — Transferming Schools Grant Agreement
Thoraton/ Newmeyer /AH to approve the Transforming Scheels Grant Agreement with the Marin
Community Foundation

Agreement with Dapnds, Woliver and Kelly

Superintendent Van Zant said that he has had positive experiences with this law firm in the past and
would like to use their services for the district.

MNewmeyer /Barrow/ All to approve the agreement with Dannis, Woliver and Kelly

CONSTRUCTION UPDATE

Facilities Director Forrest Corson said that the artificial turf is set arrive and will be finished by end of the
week. Landscaping around the school is complete and the basketball court is ready. Bike racks have been
ardered and will be installed very soon, he added.

BUDGET UPDATE — District First interim Budget

Business Manager Paula Rigney gave a report on the district first interim budget. This is a snapshot of our
fiscal situation from July first to October 31, and we should expect changes from the first to the second
interim budget. We are certifving a positive budget to the Marin County Office of Education, she said.
Van Alst/ Barrow/ Al to accept the Fiyst Interim Budget

16 of 242



Willow Creekl Academy ~ First Interim Budget

Clark Warden gave a report on WCA fiest interim budget, showing a deficit of $38,123. He said that he
hopes to bring it into balance by the second interim and that Superintendent Van Zant will work with the
charter school on efficiencies and savings.

Newmeyer/Van Alst/All to accept the Willow Creek Academy First Interim Budget

CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

Student Field Trips

The Board discussed the upcoming field wip that will take middle schoolers to the Tahoe area. Trustee
Barrow asked why the field trip is taking place during the week rather than on the weekend, Principal
Norbutas said that the school would like to reinforce team building and going bevond one’s comfort zone
in places cutside the school environment.

Thoernton/Barvow/All to approve the Janvary Z014 feld irip

POLICY DEVELOPMENT
Barrow /Van Alst/ All to approve the fellowing board policies:

Board Policy 6210 — Equity

Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan
Board Policy 0500 — Accountability

Board Policy 3110 — Business and Non-instructional Operations-Transfer of Funds

The following board policies were brought before the Board for a First Read:

Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 1230 — Community Relations -Scheol Connected
Organizations

Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 1240 - Community Relations — Volunteer Assistance
Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 1260 - Community Relations — Educational Foundations
Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3100- Business and Non-instructional Operations -- Budget
Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3312 - Business and Non-instructional Operations -
Educational Travel Program Contracts

FUTURE MEETING
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees will be on Tuesday, January 14, 2013, in the

Bayside/Martin Luther King School Library

ADJOURNMENT
Thornton/Newmeyer/All to adjourn the meeting at 8:45 pam.

Signature/Date

Title

17 of 242



Sausalito Mavin City School Distriet

Agenda Item: 9.01 Date: January 14, 2014
Correspondence ~ Consent Agenda
_ Reports

General Functions
Pupil Services
mmmmm _Personmel Services
X Financial & Business Procedures
__ Curriculum and Instruction
Policy Development

Ftemn Reguires Board Action: X Btem is for Infermation Only:
Ftem: District Audit Report for 2012-2013

Background:

The District has just completed its ninth yvear with the firm of Stephen Roatch Accountancy Corporation for its

annual independent audit. The 2012-13 Audit Report was submitted to the County and State by the December

15™ deadline as required. It is also a requirement that the annual audit be reviewed by the Board of Trustees by
January 31 each year.

The audit includes examining evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the District’s {inancial
statements. [t also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

Mr. Habbas Nassar will be present to discuss the audit in general and answer any questions from the Board.
Fiscal Impact:

There is no direct financial impact from this discussion. The cost of this audit is $16,300 including

reimbursable expenses.

Recommendation:
This item is brought before the board for approval.

Prepared for: Steve Van Zant
Prepared by: P. Rigney

18 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COUNTY OF MARIN
SAUSALITO, CALIFORNIA
AUDIT REPORT

JSUNE 36, 2013

19 of 242



20 of 242



SAUSALITC MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

JUNE 36, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION

ndependent Auditor's Report
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Staternent of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Siatements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Shest
io the Siatement of Net Position

Staternent of Revenues, Expandifures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Reconcitiation of the Governmanial Funds Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
io the Statement of Activities

Statement of Net Position - Fidudlary Funds

MNotes 1o the Basic Financial Statemenis

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION

Schedule of Revenues, Expendiiures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual - General Fund

Combining Statements:
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenusas, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmenial Funds

Organization/Beard of Trustees/Administration
Schedule of Average Dailly Altendance

i
21 of 242

16

17

18

21

22

24

26

49

52
54
55



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

JUNE 36, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONCLUDEDR)

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION (CONCLUDED)

Schedule of Instructional Time
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Reconciiiation of Annual Financial and Budget Report
with Audited Financial Stetemenis

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

Schedule of Charter Schools

Motes to Supplementary Information

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report on State Compliance

independent Auditor's Report on internal Controt over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matiers
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS SECTION

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs;

Sectiont - Summary of Auditor's Resulls
Section i - Financial Statement Findings
Section il -  State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Status of Prior Year Recommendations

22 of 242

56
57

58
54
80
&1

83

67

6o

7G

75

81



FINANCIAL SECTION

23 of 242



24 of 242



STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Certtified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOKT

Board of Trustees
Sausalito Marin City School District
Sausaiito, California

Renort on the Financial Statemeants

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sausalito Marin City School
District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes o the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial stafements as lsted in the
table of contents,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant {o the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due fo fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is {o express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit,. We
conducted our sudit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the United
States of America and the standards applicable {o financial audits comained in Govermment
Audifing Standards, issued by the Complroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statemeants are free from matarial missialement.

An audit involves performing procedures o oblain audit evidence aboui the amounts and
disciosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due o fraud or emor.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the eniity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the enlity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit zlso includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
managemsnt, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficien! and appropriate to provide a
hasis for our audit opinians.

1
P.O. Box 2196 / Folsom, CA 85763/ Phone (916} 966-38853 / Fax (916} 966-3815

25 of 242




Board of Trustees
Sausalito Marin City School District
Fage Two

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial posttion of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Sausalito Marin City School District, as of June 30, 2013, and the
raspective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting princinles generaily accepted in the United States of America.

Other Mallers
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America reguire that the
management's discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 14 and the budgelary comparison
information on page 49 be presented to supplement the basic financial siaterments. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmeantal
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial stalements in an appropriate operational, sconomic, or historical
contexi, We have applied certain imited procedures to the reguired supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepled in the United States of Amaerica, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consisiency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
hasic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence io express an opinion or
provide any assurance,

Other Information

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Sausalite Marin City School District's basic financiatl statements.  The
accompanying combining fund financial statements and supplemerdary schedules listed in the
table of contents, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, which is presented as
required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audifs of Stales, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not &5 required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying combining fund financial statements and supplementary schedules listed in the
table of contents are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial stalements. Such
information has been subjacted to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
stgtements and cerfain addilional procedures, including comparing and reconciling  such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial staiements or io the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing siandards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
hasic financial statements as g whole.

2
26 of 242



Board of Trusiees
Sausalitc Marin City Schoot District
Page Three

Other Reporting Required by Govermnment Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 13, 2013 on our consideration of Sausalito Marin City School District’s internal control
gver financial reporting and on our fests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not fo provide an opinion on internal controf over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govemment Auditing Standards in considering Sausalito Marin City School District’s infernal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Stepllen. Roated. Pecovstaney Corgoration

STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants
December 13, 2013

3
27 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FIBCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

This section of Sausalito Marin City School District's annual financial report presents our
discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on
June 30, 2013, Please read it in conjunction with the Independent Auditor's Report presented on
pages 1 through 3, and the District’s financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

UBING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

Thiz annual report consisis of a series of financlal statements. The Sigtement of Net Position and
Staternent of Activities, preseniad on pages 16 and 17, provide Information about the activities of
the District as s whole and present a longer-tenm view of the District’s finances. The fund financial
statements for governmental aclivities, presented on pages 18 through 24, provide information
about how District services were financed in the short-term, and how much remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements also report the District's opersations In more detail than the
government-wide statements by providing information about the District’'s most significant funds,
The remaining statement provides financial information about activities for which the District acts
solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those cutside the District.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* The District's overall financial status declined during fiscal year 2012-13, as total net
position decreased 6.5%,.

w7

On the Statement of Activities, total current year expenses exceeded total current year
revenues by $539,069.

# Capital assets, net of depreciation, increased $200,592 due to the addition of $1,048,363
of new capital assets and the current year recognition of $847,771 of depreciation
expense.

%

Total long-term liabilities increased $3,139,396 due primarily to the current year issuance
of $3,675,000 of certificates of participation.

* On the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, totsl
current year revenues and other financing sowces exceeded iotal current vear
expenditures and other financing uses by $2,731,866 due primarily to the receipt of
procesds from the current year issuance of cerlificates of participation that remain unspant
at June 30, 2013,

¥ The District maintains sufficient reserves for a district its size. I meets the state required
minimum reserve for economic uncertainty of 5% of total general fund expendifures,
transfers out, and other uses {iotal cutgo). During fiscal yvear 2012-13, General Fund
expenditures and other financing uses totaled $5,968,514. Al June 30, 2013, the District
has available reserves of $1,555,347 in the General Fund, which represents a reserve of
26.1%.

4
28 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FIBCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

{(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

THE FINANGIAL REPORT

The full annual financial report consists of three separale parts, including the basic financial
statements, supplementary information, and Management's Discussion and Anaglysis. The three
sections together provide a comprahensive overview of the District. The basic financial statements
are comprised of twoe kinds of statements that present financial information from different
paerspectives, governmant-wide and funds.

»  Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first fwo statements, provide
both short-term and long-term information about the District's overall financial position.

¥ Individual parts of the District, which are reporied as fund financial statements comgprise
the remaining statemenis.

< Basic services funding is describad in the governmental funds statements. These
statements include shori-term financing and identify the balance remaining for
future spending.

% Short and long-term financial information about the activities of the District that
operate ke businesses are provided in the proprietary fund statements.

4% Financial relalionships, for which the District acts as an agent or trustee for the
benefit of others to whom the rescurces belong, are presented in the fiduclary
funds statements.

Notes to the financials, which are included in the financial statements, provide more delailed dala
and explain some of the informaiion in the statements. The required supplementary information
provides further explanations and provides additfonal support for the financial stalements, A
comparison of the District’s budget for the year is included,

Reperiing the District as 2 Whole

The District as a whole Is reported in the governmeni-wide statements and uses accounting
methods similar to those used by companies in the private sector. All of the District's assats and
fiabilities are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statemant of Activities reports all of
the current year's revenues and expensas regardiess of when cash is recefved or paid.

The District's financial health (net position) can be measured by the difference between the
District's assets and liabilities.

¥ Increases or decreases in the net position of the District over time are indicators of
whether iis financial position is Improving or deteriorating, respectively.

¥ Addiional non-financial factors such as the condition of school buildings and other
facilities, and changes in the property fax base of the District need fo be considerad in
assessing the overall heaith of the District

5
29 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND AMALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

{(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

THE FINANGCIAL REPORT (CONGLUDED)

Reporting the District as a Whole (Concluded)

in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the District into fwo
kinds of activilies:

Governmental Activities:

The basic services provided by the District, such as regular and special education, administration,
and special education transportation are included here, and are primarily financed by property
taxes and state formula aid. Non-basic services, such as child nutrition are also included here, but
are financed by a combination of local revenues and state and federal programs.

Business-type Activilies:

The District does not provide any services that should be included in this category.

Reporiing the District's Most Significant Funds

The District’'s fund-based financial statements provide detajled information about the District's
most significant funds. Some funds are required to be established by State law and bond
covenants. However, the District establishes many other funds as needed fo control and
manage money for specific purposas.

Governmental Funds:

The major governmental funds of Sausalito Marin City School District are the General Fund, Bond
fnterest and Redemption Fund, Corporation Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects - Special
Reserve Fund, and Corporation Acquisition Fund. Governmental fund reporting focuses on how
money flows into and out of the funds and the balances that remain at the end of the vear
A modified accrual basis of accounting measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the District's operations and services. Governmental fund information helps fo determine
the level of financial resources available in the near future {o finance the District's programs.

Propristary Funds.

Services for which the Disirict charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds on a full
accrual basis. These include both Enterprise funds and Internal Service funds. Enterprise funds
are considerad business-type activities and are also reported under a full accrual method. This is
the same basis as business-type activities; therefore no reconciling eniries are requirad. internal
service funds are reported with the Governmental Funds. The District has no funds of this tyvpe.

Fiduciary Funds:

The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its student activity fund. All of the District’s fiduciary
activities are reported in a separate fiduciary statement. We exclude these activities from the
District’s other financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance their
operations. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are
used for thelr intended purposes.

6
30 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FIMANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL RISTRICT AS AWHOLE

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The District’s total net position decreased from $8,332497 at June 30, 2012, down o
$7.793,428 at June 30, 2013, a decrease of 6.5%.

Comparative Statement of Net Position
Governmental
Activities
2012 2013

Assels
Deposits and Investments % 3,628,414 5 6,84% 380
Current Receivables 411,265 529,820
Long-ierm Receivable 547 734 72,734
Prapaid Expenses 0 168,345
Capital Assets, nat 22,161,980 22,382 572

Tolal Assets 26,650,383 30,082 771
Lizbilities
Current 1,463,704 2,252,881
Long-term * 16,854 192 20,036 452

Total Liabilities * 18,317,896 22 289343
Net Position
Invastment in Capital Assets

- Met of Related Debt 5825963 5,847 895

Restricted for Capital Projects 548,323 73,324
Restricted for Debt Service {52,801} (290,950}
Restricted for Educational Programs 255087 168,318
Restricted for Other Purposes 1,040 89,797
Unrestricted ™ 1,855,008 1,850 058

Total Nat Position * 3 8,332 497 % 7,793,428
* The prior vear balances have been adjusted to reflect the restatement described in Note 20,
Table includes financial data of the combined governmental funds

The defict balance presented above for Rastricted for Debt Service represents the difference
between the obligation for accumuiated accreted interest on the Dislrict's outstanding capital
appreciation bonds and the accrued interest on the District's long-term Habilities and amounts
avatlable in the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund. The deficit will be eliminated by future
property tax collections,

7
31 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYEBIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2013

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FIHAMCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS AWHOLE {CONTIRUED)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

The District's total current year expenses exceaded iolal current vear revenues by $538,068,

Comparative Btatement of Changs in Net Fosifion
Governmentat
Agtivitias
2012 2013

Program Revenues

Cperating Grants & Contributions 5 1,582,135 % 1,610,105
General Revanues

Taxes Levied 4217 184 4 208,238

Federal & Siats Ald 738,167 783,878

interest & Investment Earnings 51,238 {7,477}

Transfers from Other Agenciss 20,259 59,410

Miscellanzous 182,007 238 752
Total Revenues 6,810,980 3,873,906
Expenses

instruction 2,875,031 3,340,641

instruction-Related Services 834,861 850,399

Pupit Services 415 760 460,283

General Administration 752,240 787,167

Plant Services 653,972 619,797

Anciliary Services 4,521 3,930

Interest on Long-Term Deabt 783,783 799,878

Gther Outgo 578,482 550,882
Total Expanses 5,859,480 7,412 975
Change in Nat Position 3 (88,5007 3 {535,669)
Tabla includes financial data of the combined governmental funds

g
32 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY S8CHOGL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSEION AND ANALYSIS (UNALUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

{(PREPARED BY BISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FiNANCIAL AMALYEIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ({CONTINUED)

Comparative Schedule of Costs of Services

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Sarvices

2012 2013 2012 2013
Instruction $ 2875031 % 3,340,541 $ 1806413 § 2354398
instruction-Helated Services 834,991 850,308 K52 203 518,285
Pupll Services 415,780 480,283 295 975 250,485
Generat Administration 752,940 787,187 723,287 758,087
Plant Services 853,972 818,797 653,872 614,898
Anciliary Services 4 521 3,830 4,521 3,830
Interest on Long-Term Debt 783,793 798,976 783,783 759,975
Uther Outgo 578,482 550,882 394,101 402 120

Totais $ 5899480 § 7412875 % 53173585 § 5802870

Tabie inciudes financial data of the combined governmental funds

The table above presents the cost of major District activities. The table also shows each activity’s
net cost (total cost less fees generated by the aclivities and intergovernmental aid providad for
specific programs). The 35,802,870 net cost represents the financial burden thal was placed on
the District's general revenues for providing the services listed.

#%Program
Revenuas

#General
Revenues

in 2012-13, program revenues financed 21.7% of the tolal cost of providing the services listed
above, white the remaining 78.3% was financed by the gensral revenuss of the District.

g
33 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED]
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FINAMCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL BISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Schedule of Revenues For Governmental Funclions

FYE 2012 Percant of FYE 2013 Petrcent of
Amount Total Amount Total
Program Revenues
Operating Grants & Contributions  $ 1,582,138 23.23% 0§ 1,810,105 23.42%
General Revenues
Taxes lLavied 4217 184 61.9%% 4,208,238 B1.24%
Federat & State Aid 738,187 10.84% 763,878 1111%
Other Revepues 273,504 4.02% 290,685 4. 23%
Total Revenues 3 5,810,880 10000% $ 8,873,908 100.00%

Table includes financial data of the combined governimental funds

| $4.500.000
| $4,000,000

$3,500,000
| $3,000,000
| $2,500.000
F$2,000,000
- $1,500,000
| $1,000,000
$500,000

10
34 of 242

#wOperating Grants
&Contributions

#Taxes Levied

HFedaral & Siate
Ajd

# Other Revenues




SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOGL DISTRICY
MANAGEMENT'S BISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDR JUNE 30, 2013

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTMITIES (CONTINUED)

Schedule of Exnenses For Governmenial Functions

Expenses
instruction
instruction-Related Services
Pupl Services
Seneral Adminisiration
Plant Services
interest on Long-Term Debt
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

FYE 2012 Percent of FYE 2013 Percent of
Amount Total Amotnt Totat
2,875,031 41687% § 3,240,541 45.06%
834,991 12.10% 850,355 11.47%
415,760 6.03% 460,283 5.21%
752,940 10.91% 787,167 10.62%
B53,972 9.48% 619,797 8.36%
783,783 11.36% 798,976 10.76%
883,003 8.45% 554 812 7.48%
3,899 490 10000% $§ 7412676 100.00%

Tabls includes financiai data of the combined governmenta! funds

$3,500,000

$3.600,000

$2,500,000
$2,000.000
31,500,000
$1.004,000

3500,000

11
35 of 242

@instruction

#instruction-Related
Sarvices

aPupi Services
@General Adminisiraiion
Plant Services
#@intereston Long-Term

Dabt

E0ther Expenses




SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGENMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

{(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FINAMCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Comparative Schedule of Capital Assets
Governmenial
Activities
2042 2013
Land 3 948 870 3 948 870
Sites and Improvements 2,022 186 2,022,188
Buildings and improvemeants 24,046 205 24 (046 205
Furniture and Equipment 422 235 422,235
Work-in-Progress 13,803 1,062,268
Subiotals 27,453,389 28 801,752
Less: Acocumulated Depreciation {5,291,419) {6,138,150}
Capital Assels, net % 22,181,880 $ 22382572

Capital assets, net of depreciation, increased $200,552 due o the addition of $1,048,363 of new
capital assets and the current year recognition of 3847 771 of depraciation expensa.

Comparative Schedule of Lono-Term Liabilities

Govarnmental
Activitiag
2012 2013
Compensated Absences 3 17,236 % 9,412
General Obligation Bonds 15,701,400 15,656,262
Certificates of Participation 820,000 4,065,000
Capital Leases 1,081,148 1,065,390
Early Refirement Incentives 50,852 33,768
Totals * 3 17680438 § 20,819,832

* The prior year balance has baen adjusied fo reflect the restatement described in Note 20,

Total long-term liabiliies increased $3,139,386 due primarily to the current year issuance of

$3,675,000 of cenificates of parlicipation,

12
36 of 242




SALSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DIBCUSSION AND AMALYSIS (UNAUDITEDR)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2013

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONCLUDED)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (CONCLUDED)

The general chiigation bonds are financed by the local laxpayers and represent 75.2% of the
Oistrict's tolal long-term ligbilities. The 2006 ceriificates of participation are financed by the
proceeds from the Martin Luther King Jr. Site Lease/Purchase agresment with the City of
Sausalito and represent 1.8% of the total long-term liabilities.  The 2013 cerdificates of
participation and capital leases are financed by the General Fund and represant 22.8% of the total
long-term Habilities. The obligations for compensated absences and sarly refirement incantives
are also financed by the General Fund, and make up the remaining pertion of the long-lemn
fiahilities.

The notes to the financial statemenis are an integral part of the financial preseniation and contain
more detailed information as to intarest, principal, retirement amournds, and future debt retirement
dates,

FIMANCIAL AMALYSIS OF DISTRICT'S FUNDS

Comparative Schedule of Fund Balances
Fund Balances  Fund Balances herease
June 30, 2012 June 36, 2013 {Decrease)
General 1720402 8 1755685 3 35,263
Bond Interest & Redamption 571,830 589,041 17,241
Corporation Debt Service 323,513 328,259 4,745
Capital Projects - Special Reserve 106,570 185,474 78,908
Cormporation Acquisition 57 2452 145 2,452,088
Defarred Maintenance 181,780 271,314 89,534
Cafeteria 0 8,787 8797
Dbt Service 606,418 8457358 45 317
Building 248 246 0
County Schoot Facilities 588 560 1
Totals $ 35054056 § 86237271 0§ 2731866
il

The combined fund balances of ali District funds increased $2,731,868. The Corporation
Acguisition Fund increased $2,452,088 due o cerlificates of participation proceeds received in
the current year but unspent at June 30, 2013

GENMERAL FUND BUDGETARY MIGHLIGHTS

The District's budget is prepared in accordance with California law and is based on the modified
accrual hasis of accounting. Over the course of the year, the District ravises its budget based on
updated financial information. The original budget, approved at the end of June for July 1, is
based on May Revise figures and updated 45 days after the State approves is final budget. In
addition, the District revises its budget at First and Second Interim 1o reflect the most current
financial information available at that point in time.  The ariginal and final budgets for fiscal year
2012-13 are presented alongside the actual resulls on page 48,

13
37 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 349, 2013

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

ECONOMIC FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT'S FUTURE

The naw Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) has currently teen approved by legislators but
the full financial implications are still being clarified. LCFF in its current form has financial
implications to the Dislrict that will vary depending upon Willow Craek Academy's anroilment due
o the ingreased indlieu property tax contribution that may be required. The District will have to
make additional cuts to ongoing expenditures and maks some hard decisions about the direction
of its educational programs, facilities, slaffing, etc. The District's first steps foward dealing with the
hudget deficlt is the closure of one school campus {Bayside Elementary) in fiscal yvear 2013-14
and consolidating all District students onio one campus, Bayside/MLK Acadermy, as well as
reducing personnel at the District Office.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANGCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our cifizens, taxpayers, parents, investors, and
creditors with a general oveiview of the District's financas and o show the District’s accountability
for the money | receives, f you have guestions regarding this report or need additional financial
information, contact the District Office, Sauszalito Marin City School District, 200 Phillips Drive,
Marin Clty, California 94965,

14
38 of 242



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15
39 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

Azscis
Deposits and investments {Note 2)
Receivables (Note 4)
Long-Term Receivable (Note &)
Prepaid Expenses (Mote 11}
Capital Assets: (Nole 7}
Land
Sites and Improvements
Buiidings and lmprovemants
Furniture and Equipment
Work-in-Progress
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

Ligbilifies

Accounts Pavable and Cther Current Lisbilities
Long-Term Liabilities:

Portion Due or Payable Within One Year
Compensated Absences {Note 11}
General Obligation Bonds

Current Interest
Certificates of Participation
Capital Leases
Early Retirement Incentives

Pariion Due or Payable After One Year
General Cbligation Bonds (Mots 8}
Current Interast
Capitai Appreciation
Certificates of Participation (Note 8)
Capital Leases (Nofe 10}
Early Retirement Incentives (Nota 11)

Total Liabilities

Not Position
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted:
For Capital Projects
For Debt Sarvice
For Educational Programs
For Other Purposes
Unrestricted

Totat Net Position

Governmental
Activities

6,849,200
528,820
72,734
168,345

948,870
2,022,186
24,046,205
422,235
1,062,268

(6,138,190}

30,082,771

1,469,511

9412

350,000
380,000
27,084
18,884

10,216,000
5,008,282
3,875,000
1,038,308

16,884

22,288,343

5,842,866

73,324
{(280,065)
199,318
8,797
1,068,068

7,793,428

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS

40 ofs242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Met (Expenss)
Revenus and
Changss in
Program Revenues ket Position
Operating Capitat
Grants Grants
Charges for and and Governmental
Functions Expenses Serviges Contributions  Contribulions Activities
Geovernmental Activities
instruction 3 3,340,541 % 886,143 $ {2,354388)
Instruction-Helated Services:
Supervision of instruction 109,536 53,347 {58,189}
instructional Library and Technology 54,458 {54,458}
Schaootl Site Administration 886,405 178,057 {508,348}
Punil Services:
Home-to-School Transportation 95,005 12 {895,993)
Food Services 187,307 83,021 (104,288)
Other Pupll Services 176,971 128,765 (50.206)
General Administration:
Data Processing Services 31,083 5,137 {25,826}
Other General Administration 756,104 23,6963 (732,141}
Plant Services 619,747 4,898 (514,899)
Ancilfary Servicas 3,930 (3,830}
interest on Long-Term Debt 755,878 {789,976}
Other Ouigo 550,882 148,762 €402 1203
Total Governmental Activities 5 7&12,% $ G $ 1.8610,106 3 0 {5,802,670)
General Revenues
Taxes Levied for General Purposes 3,417 848
Taxes Levied for Debt Service 791,158
Taxes Levied for Specific Purposas 132
Federal and State Ald - Unrestricted 763,878
Interest and Investment Earnings {7,477}
Transfers from Other Agencies 53,410
Miscellaneous 238,752
Tolal General Revenues 5,263,801
Change in Net Position {539,068}
Met Position -~ July 1, 2012 8,332,487
(As Restatad - Note 20} T
MNet Position - Jung 30, 2013 3 ‘?,793,423_

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS
41 of242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOGL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FURNDS
SJUNE 30, 2013

Bond
interest
and
Genearal Redemption
Asseis
Deposits and Investments {Note 2} & 1,678,841 3 588,041
Receivables (Note 4} 480,236
Lang-Term Receivable {(Note 5}
Bue from Other Funds (Note 6} 120,746
Total Assets 3 2,298,823 % 58?3,04“?___
Liabiities and Fund Balances
{iahilities:
Accounts Pavable S K43 158
Due to Other Funds (Note 8)
Deferred Ravenue {(Note 1)
Total Liabilities 543,158
Fund Balances: {Note 13)
Nonspendable 1,000
Rastrictad 198,318 5 588,041
Assigned
Unassigned 1,585,347
Tota!l Fund Balances 1,755,665 588,041
Total Liabitities and Fund Balances $ 2,288,823 % 586,041

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS
42 of42

Sorporation

(et
Service
3 328,259
3 328,259
% 328,259
328,258
3 328,258




Capital

Prodects - Mon-Bajor Total
Bpecial Corgporation Governmentai Governmental
Reserve Acguisition Funds Funds
% (97 258} 3 3,600,508 3 949,900 5 6,949 300
30,584 528,820
72,734 72,734
1,048,363 1,162,108
$ 1,023,830 3 3,500,508 3 980,493 B 8,720,983
% 690,992 3 7,698 $ 1,241,849
74,634 3 1,048,363 46,112 1,169,108
72,734 72,734
538,360 1,048,363 53,811 2,483 602
40 1,040
2,452 145 655,328 4,224 091
185,478 271,314 456,793
1,555,347
185,479 2,452 145 926 682 6,237,271
% 1,623,839 3 3,500,508 5 880,443 3 8,720,863

43 of 242



20
44 of 242



SALSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECOHNCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JURME 20, 2043

Total Fund Balances - Governmenial Funds $  6,237.271

Amounts reporied for governmental activities in the statement of net position ars
different from amounts reporied in governmental funds due to the following:

Capital assets. In governmental funds, only current assels are reported. In the
statement of net position, all assets are reported, including capiial assets and
accumuiated depreciation. Capital assets and accumulated depreciation are:

Capital Assets $ 28,501,762
Accumulated Depreciation (86,139,180}
Mt 22,382,572

Unamortized cosis: In governmental funds, debt issuance costs are recognized as
expenditures in the period they are incured. In the govemment-wide stalements,
gebl issuance costs are amortized ovar the life of the debt Unamorfized debt
issuance costs included in prepaid expenses on the statement of net position are: 168,345

Deferred recognition of earmed but unavailable revenues: In govermmental funds,
revenue is recognized only to the extent that i is "available," meaning it will be
collectad soon enough after the end of the period to finance expenditures of that
period. Receivables for revenues that are samed but urnavailable are deferrad until
the period in which the revenues become available. In the government-wide
statements, revenue is recognized when earped, regardigss of avallability. The
amount of unavailable revenues that were deferred as a lability in governmental
funds, but are recognized in the government-wide statemants is: 72,734

Long-term liabllities: In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reporied. In
the statement of net position, all labiiites, including long-term liabilities, are
reported. Long-term liabilities relating o govemmeantal activities consist of

Compensated Absences % 9,412
Generat Obligation Sonds 15,856,267
Cedificates of Participation 4,055,000
Capital Leases 1,085,380
Early Retirement Incentives 33,788
Total (20,818,832)

Unmatured interast on long-term dabt I governmental funds, interest on long-term
debi is not recognized until the period in which & matures and s paid. In the
government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that i is
incurred.  The additional fiability for unmatured inferest owing at the end of the

period was! {227 662)
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities $ 7,793,428

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS
45 1242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2043

Bord
interest Corporation
and Debt
General Redempiion Service
Hevenues
Ravenus Limit Sources:
State Apportionment k3 201,487
Local Taxes 3,417 847
Total Revenue Limit Scurces 3,818,434
Federal Revenue 345,295
State Revenue B85 629 bt 31885
Local Revenue 1,150,418 787715 $ 39
Total Revenues 8,003,777 791,800 38
Expenditires
instruction 2,685 745
Supervision of instruction 109 538
Instructional Library and Technology 49,108
School Site Administration B48,057
Home-Te-School Transportation 98,005
Foud Servicas
Other Pupl Services 176,871
Data Processing Services 28,887
Oither General Administration 728,731
Plant Services 542 141
Faciliies Acguisition
and Construction 168,170
Anciifary Sservices 3,930
Dabt Service:
Principal Retirement 25,758 325,000 440 000
interest and issuance Costs 4,249 440 380 211 258
Other Cutgo 548,968
Total Expandituras 5644 405 774,384 651,258
Excess of Revenues Qver
{Under) Expendiures 358,372 17,21 {651,218}
Oither Financing Sources {Uses)
Operating Transfers in 480,898
Operating Transfers Out {324,108} (33}
Other Sources 175,000
Total CGlher Financing
Sowrces (Uses) {324,108} & 655,965
Net Change in Fund Balancas 35,263 17,211 4,748
Fund Balances - July 1, 2012 1,720,402 571,830 323513
Fund Balances - June 30, 2013 3 1.755665 5 582,041 ¥ 328,259

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS
46 6242



Lapital
Projects -
Special
Ressrve

475,383

Corporation
Acquisition

475,363

$ 418

Mon-Major
Governmental
Funds

1,053,883

418

77,700
10,248
{10,238}

Total
Govarnmental
Funds

3

201.487
3,417,947

1,053,883

77,708

3,619,434

422,995
Q02,782
2,403,715

{578,500}

187,420

10,705

7,348,908

1,194,174
(536,755)

418

168,125

2,685,786
109,538
49,108
548,057
96,005
157.420
178,871
28,987
728,731
552,846

1,070,033
3,930

790,758
664,808
548,889

657,408

33
{1,048,383
3,506,000

(90,416}

8,282,040

)

78,809
108,570

2451870

234065

(843,134)

185,479

2452088
57

234,065

1,808,270
(1.908,270)
3,875,000

$ 2,452 145

143,848
783,033

3,875,000

926,682

2,731,868
3,505,405

6,237,271

47 of 242




SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOGL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
ARD CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2018

Met Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds F 2,731,888

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of acliviles are different
from amounts reportad in governmental funds dus 1o the foliowing:

Capital outiay: In governmental funds, the costs of capital zssets are reporiad as
expenditures in the patiod when the assels are acquired. In the statement of activities,
costs of capital assets are allocated over thelr useful lives as depreciation expense.
The difference belween capital cutlay expenditires and depreciation expense for the

pariod is:
Capital Outiay Expenditures % 1048383
Depraciation Expense (847,771
Net 200,582

Debt procesds: In governmental funds, proceeds from debt are recognized as Other
Financing Sources. In the govemmentwide siatements, proceeds from debt are
reported as increases to liabilifles, Amounts recognized in govemmental funds as
proceeds from debt, net of issue premiums or discounts, wars: (3,675,000)

Earned but unavailable revenues: In governmental funds, revenues are recognized only
to the extent that they are "available,” meaning they will ba collected soon enough after
the and of the period to finance expenditures of that percd. In government-wide
statements, revenug is recognized when earned regardlass of availability. The amount
of sarmed but unavailable revenues relating to the cumrent period, less revenues that
became available in tha current period, but related o a prior period is: {475,008)

Debt issue cosfs: in govemnmental funds, debt issue cosis are recognized as
expendiures in the period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, issus
costs are amortized over the life of the debt. The diiference between debt Issue costs
recognized in tha current pericd and issue costs amortized for the period is:

Cost of Issuance $ 170,258
Cost of Issuance Amortized {1.813)
Net 168,348

Debt service: In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reporied as
expenditures. th the govemment-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are
reported as reductions of lsbilities. Expenditures for repayment of the principal portion
of long-term dabt were:

General Obiigation Bonds $ 325000
Cerlificates of Participation 440,000
Capitai Leases 25,758
Total T 790,758

Compensated absences and sarly refirement incentives: In governmenial funds,
compensated absences and early retirement incentives are measured by the amounts
paid during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated absances and early
refirement incentives are measured by the amounis eamed. The difference between
amounts paid and amounts earned was: 24,708

Unmatured interest on long-term debi In governmental funds, interest on long-term
dett is recognized as an expenditure in the pericd that it becomes due. In the
governmant-wide statements, i is recognized in the period incurred. Unmatured
intarest owing af he end of the period, jess matured interest paid during the period but

owing from a prior pericd, was:; {305,338}
Change in MNet Position of Governmental Activities $ (539.069)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS

48 02f4242



SALUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POBITION
FIDUCIARY FURDS
SUNE 30, 2093

Agency
Funds

Assels
Deposits and invesiments (Mote 2) 3 1,118
Liabilities
Due to Student Groups 1,118
Met Position
Total Net Position $ 4]

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS
49 of242

Tatal
Fiduciary
Funds
5 1,118

1,118
$ iy




SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MOTEDS TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

Financial Reporting Entity

The Sausalitc Marin City School District (the "District™ is a public educational agency
operating under the applicable laws and regulations of the Stale of California. 1t is governead
by a five member Board of Trusises elected by registered volers of the District, which
comprises an area in Marin County. The District serves students in kindergarten through
grade eight,

The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the policles and
procedures of the Depariment of Education’s California School Accounting Manual, The
accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principies as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASE) and the American
Institute of Ceriified Pubiic Accountants (AICPA).

The financial reporting entity consists of the following:

¥  The primary government

»  Organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable

¥ Cther organizations for which the primary government may determine, through
exarcise of management's professional judgment, that the inclusion of an organization
that does not meet the financial accouniabiiity criferia is necessary in order to prevent
the reporting entily’s financial statemenis from being misleading. In such inslances,
the organization should be included as a component unil,

Component Units are legally separate organizations for which elected officials of the primary
government (District) are financially accountable. The District is financially accountable for
the Sausalito School District Financing Corporation (the "Corporation”) and thersfore the
Corporation meets the reporting entity definition. Accordingly, the financial activities of the
Corporation have been included in the financial stalements of the District.

The following are those aspects of the relationship between the District and the Corporation
that satisfy the financial reporting entity criteria:

* The Board of Directors for the Corporation is appointad by the District's Board.

¥ The Corporation has no empioyvees or members. The District's Business Manager shatl
saerve as the Chief Financial Officer and the District's Superintendent shall serve as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Comporation. These individuals receive no additional
cornpensation for work performed in these capacities.

# The District exercises significant influence over operations of the Corporation as the
District will always be the sole lessee of all faciliies owned by the Corporation. Any
deficits incurred by the Corporation wilt be reflected in the lease payments of the District.
Any surpluses of the Corporation revert {o the District at the end of the lease period.

= Al mator financing arrangements, confracts, and financial fransactions of the Corporation
must have the consent of the District.

L7

The property, assets, profits, and net revenues of the Corporation are hrevocably
dedicated to the District, subject to the indebtedness of the Corporation.

'

The District has assumed a “moral obligation” and polentially a2 legal obligation for any
debt incurred by the Corporation.

26
50 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
HOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.

Financial Reporting Entity {(Concluded)

For financial presentation purposes, the Corporation’s financial activity has been blended, or
combined, with the financial dala of the District.  The financial activity of the Corporation is
included In the Corporation Debt Service Fund and Corporation Acquisition Fund, and the
certificates of participation issued by the Corporation are reported as a liability in the
Statement of Net Position.

The Corporation is a nonprofif, public benefit corporation, incorporated under the laws of the
State of California and recorded by the Secrelary of State in 1996, The Corporation was
formad for the sole purpose of providing financial assistance to the Sausgiito Marin Clly
School District by acquiring, constructing, remodeling, rehabilitating, equipping, improving
and financing various public facilities, land and equipment and by leasing certain facilities,
land and equipment for the use, benefif and enjoyment of the public served by the District.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Siatement No. 39 (GASB 39), Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, provides further guidance, stating that
a legally separate organization should be reported as a component unit if specific criteria are
met. The District has delermined that there are no organizations, for which the District is not
financially accountable, which should be reported within lts financial reporting entity under
GASHE 39,

Implementation of New Accounting Pronouncements

in June of 2011, the Governmental Accounting Standard Board issued Statement No. 63
{GASE 83} Financial Reporting of Deferred Oufflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position, with required implementation for the District during the year
ended June 30, 2013. The objective of GASB €3 is to identify net position, rather than net
assets, as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of financial position.
There was no effect on beginning net positionffund balance as a result of implementing
GASB 83,

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statemesits:

The government-wide finandial statements (.e., the Statement of Net Position and the
Statermnent of Activities) report infermation on alf of the nen-fiduciary activities of the District
and its component units. The effect of interfund activity within the governmental activities
has been removed from these statements. The primary government is reported separately
from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accouriable.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. This is the same approach used in the preparation of the propristary
fund and fiduciary fund financial statements but differs from the manner in which
governmental fund financial stalements are prepared. Governmental fund financial
statements, therefore, include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the
refationship between the government-wide sialemenis and the statements for the
governmental funds.

27
51 of 242



SALISALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
HOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATERENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Basis of Presentation (Concluded)

Govemmeni-wide Financial Statements (Concluded).

The government-wide statement of aclivities presenis a comparison belween direct
sxpenses and program revenues for each function or program of the District's governmantal
activities. Direct expsnses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program,
of department and are therefore clearly identifiable {o a particular function. The Dislrict does
not aliocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by a program, as weli as
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are
presented as general revenues of the District, with certain exceptions. The comparison of
direct expenses with program revenues ideniifies the axient fo which sach governmental
function is self-financing or draws from the generatl revenuss of the District.

Fund Financial Staternants:

Fund financial statements report detalled information abowt the District. The focus of
governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by
tvpe. Each major governmental fund is presented in a separate column, and all non-major
funds are aggregated into one column, Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

The accounting and financial treatment applied 1o a fund is determinad by s measuremeant
focus. Alf governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurament focus, only current assets and current labilitias
are generally included on the balance shest. The Stalement of Revenues, Expendiiures, and
Changes in Fund Balances for these funds present increases (ie., revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in nat cuirent
assets. Fiduciary funds are reporied using the economic resources measurament focus.

Basis of Accounting

dasis of accounting refers 1o when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the
accounts and reporfed in the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements
are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmenial funds use the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Fidugiary funds use the acorual basis of accounting.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions:

Revenue resuliing from exchange fransactions, in which each parly gives and recaives
essentially equal value, is recorded under the accrual basis whan the exchange iakes place.
Under the modified acorual basis, revenue Is recorded in the fiscal year in which the
resources are measurable and become available, "Available” means the resources will be
collected within the current fiscal vear or are expected to be coliected soon enough
thereafier (o be used fo pay liahilities of the current fiscal year. For the Distiict, "available”
means collectible within the current period or within 45, 60, 90 cdays afler year-end,
depending on the revenue sowrce, Mowever, to achieve comparability of reporling among
California Districts and s0 as not to distort normal revenue patterns, with specific respect o
reimbursement granis and corrections to state apportionments, the California Department of
Education has defined available as collectible within one year,

28
52 of 242



SALIBALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2013

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

m

Basis of Accounting (Concluded)

Ravenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions {Concluded):

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal
value in return, include property taxes, granis, and entiflements. Under the acorual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recagnized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants and entitlements is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requiremants have been satisfied. Eligibility reguirements include timing requirements, which
specily the year when the resources are o be used or the fiscsl vear when use is first
permitied; matching reguiremeants, in which the District must provide local resources o be
usad for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue
from non-exchange transactions must also be avallable before it can be recognized.

Deferred Revenue:

Deferred revenue arises when assels are received before revenue recognition criteria have
heen satisfled. Grants and entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are
recorded as deferrad revenue. On governmental fund financial sialements, recelvables
associated with non-exchange transactions that will not be collected within the availability
period have also been recorded as deferred revenue.

xpenses/bxpendiuras:

On an accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a lability is incurred.
On the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the
accouniing peried in which the related fund ligbility is incurred, as under the accrual basis of
accouniing. However under the modified accrual basis of accounting, debl service
expenditures, as well as expenditures relaied fo compensaied absances and claims and
judgmenis, are recordad only when payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation
and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, | is the District's
policy to use restricted resourcas first, then unrestricted resources as they are neaded.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accountad for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity or
retained earnings, revenues, and expenditures of expenses, as appropriate. District
rasources are aliocatad to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controfled. The
District maintains the following governmental fund types:

General Fund - The general fund is used to account for and report all financial resources not
accounted for and reported in ancther fund,

29
53 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 390, 2013

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

=3

Fund Accounting {(Continued)

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used fo account for and report the
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are resfricled, committed, or assigned o
axpenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. Othar
resources also may be reported in the fund if those resources are resticied, commitied, oy
assigned {o the specified purpose of the fund.

f2ebt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, commitied, or assigned to expenditure for principat and
interest.

Capital Frojects Funds - Capital prolects funds are used to account for and repart financial
resources that are restricted, commitied, or assigned {0 expenditure for capifal outlays,
including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assals.

The District’s funds are organized into major, non-major, and fiduciary funds as follows:
Major Governmental Funds:

General Fund is the general operating fund of the District.  For financial reporting purposes
the financial activities and balances of the Special Revenue - Special Resarve Fund have
been combined with the General Fund.

Bond Interest & Redemption Fund is used 1o account for District faxes received and
expendad (o pay bond interest and redeam bond principal and related costs.

Comoration Delt Service Fund i used fo account for the payment of interest and
redemption of principal on the cutsfanding certificates of parficipation issued by the Sausaliio
Marin City School District Financing Corporation.

Capital Frojects - Special Reserve Fund s used to account for proceeds from real property
saies and capital outlays for District property.

Corporation Acquisition Fund is used to account for proceads from the szle of certificates of
parficipation that will be usad to finance the renovation, construction, and modernization of
the District's school facilities.

Non-major Govemmental Funds:

Deferred Maintenance Fund is used for the purpose of major repairs or replacement of
District property.

Cafeterla Fund is used to account for revenues received and expendituras made o operate
the District's cafeteria program.

Debt Service Fund is used to account for payments made to the sinking fund, which is
required by the lease purchase agreement that was entered info with California School
Board Association Finance Carporation, for purposes of financing capital improvements at
the District's two schools.

30
54 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2013

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E.

Fund Accounting {Concluded)

Non-major Governmental Funds (Concluded):

Building Fund is used to account for acquisition of major governmental facilities financed
from bond proceeds.

County School Facilities Fund is used to account for state apportionments (Education Code
Sechions 17008.5 and 17070.10-17076.10).

Fiduciary Funds:

Agency Funds are used {o account for asseis of others for which the District acts as an
agent. The District maintains an agency fund for the student body account at Martin Luther
King Jr. Academy, which is used fo account for the raising and expending of money to
promote the general welfare, and educational experience of the student body.

Budoets and Budaetary Accounting

Annual budgeis are adopled on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United Siates of America for all governmental funds. By state law, the
District's Governing Board must adopt a final budget no fater than July 1. A public hearing
must be conducted 1o receive commenis prior to adoption. The District's Governing Board
satisfied these requirements.

These budgets are revised by the District's Governing Board and Superintendent during the
year to give consideration to unanticipated income and expenditures. The original and fingl
revised budget is presentad for the General Fund as required supplementary information on
page 49,

Formal budgetary integration was employed as a management conirol device during the
year for all budgeted funds. The District employs budget control by minor object and by
individual appropriation accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by
major object account {(See Note 3).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial stafements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepied in the United States of America requires management o make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
resuits could differ from those astimates.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commitments have heen made. Encumbrances are recorded for
purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are writien. Encumbrances
are liquidated when the commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated at June 30,

31
55 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOCL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2043

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

i, Assets Linhilities and Equity

1.

3.

Deposits and invesiments

The District is authorized to maintain cash in banks and revolving funds that are insured
to 250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FIDIC).

The District is considered 1o be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool
as the District is required to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their
County Treasurer (Education Code Section 41001). The County is authorized to deposit
cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Seclion 53848 et zeq,
The funds maintained by the County are either secured by the FDIC or are
collateratized.

The District is authorized under Cafifornia Government Code to make direct investments
in local agency bonds, nctes, or warrants within the State; U5, Treasury instruments;
regisiered State warrants or treasury noles; securities of the U5, Governmend, or its
agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit placed with
commercial banks and/or savings and lean companias; repurchase or raverse
repurchase agreements; medium ferm corporate notes; shares of bensficial interest
issued by diversified management companies; certificates of participation; obligations
with first pricrity security; and coliateralized mortgage obligations.

Investments with original malunities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair
value is estimated based on guoted market prices at year-end. All investments not
reguired to be reported at fair value are stated at cost or amortized cost.

Prepaid Expensas

Prepaid expenses represent the unamortized debt issue costs associated with the
cartificates of participation issued since the implementation of GASB 34. Thesa debt
issue costs will be amortized annually over the life of the debt.  Reported prepaid
expenses are equally offset by a reserve, which indicates that the amounts are not
availabie for appropriation.

Capltal Assets

Capital assels purchasad or acguired with an original cost of 35,000 or more are
reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost, Contribited assets are repotiad at
fair market value as of the dale received. Additions, improvements, and cther capital
outlays that significantly axiend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add 1o the value of the assets or materially
axtend the assel’s livas are not canpitatized, but are expensed as ingured, Depreciation
on all capital assels s computed using a siraight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives in the following table:

Agset Class Years

Sites and mprovements 14-36

Buildings and Improvements 10-40

Furniture and Equipment 5-20
32

56 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
ROTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR EMDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

£

Assets, Liabilities and Eouity (Conlinued)

4. Deferred Revenus

Cash received for federal and state special projecis and programs s recognized as
ravenue to the exent that qualified expendilures have been incurred. Deferred revenus
is recorded to the extent that cash received on speciiic projects and programs exceeds
grialified expenditures. The deferred revenue balance at June 30, 2013, reprasents the
remaining payment to be received from the City of Sausalite that will not be collected
within the avaliability pericd (see Note 5).

Compensated Absences

All vacation pay is acorued when incurred in the governmeni-wide financial stalements.
Accumistated sick leave benefits are not recognized as Habilities of the District. The
District’s policy is (o record sick leave as an operating expanse in the perlod taken, since
such benafits do not vest, nor is peyment probable; however, unused sick leave is
added to the creditable service pericd for calculation of refirement benefits when the
employee retires.

Long-term Liabilities

in the govermnment-wide financial statemants, long-term obligations are reporied as
liabilitles in the Statement of Net Position. Fremiums and discounts as well as issuance
costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the obligation. The lability is reported
net of applicable premiums, discounis or issuance costs.  In the fund financial
statemenis, governmental funds recognize premiums and discounts as well as issuance
costs, during the period the debt is issued. The face amount of the debt issued,
premiums, discounts, or issuance costs is reported as other financing sources or uses.

Fund Balance

The governmenial fund financial siatemenis present fund balances based on
clagsifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the
Dhstrict is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the
respective governmental funds ¢an bhe spent. The allowable classifications in the
governmental fund financial statements are as foliows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance consist of funds that are inherently nonspendable, due fo
their form {e.g. inventories and prepaid amounts), or that are legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact.

Resiricted Fund Bafance consisis of funds that have limitalions on use that are
externally enforceable by exernal parties, constitutional provisions or enabling
fegisiation.

Commitfed Fund Balance consists of funds that are set aside for a specific purpose by
the district’s highest level of decision maling authority, the Goverming Board. The
Governing Board may commit fund balance by taking formal action, such as majority
vole or resolution. The same formal action must be taken by the Governing Boeard 1o
ramove of change limitations placed on the funds.

33
57 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES 70 THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L

Assels, Liabilities and Equity (Continuad)

7. Fund Balance (Concluded)

Assigned Fund Balance consisis of funds that are set aside with the intent to be used for
& specific purpose by the District. The Governing Board has delegated authority to the
Superintendent andfor their designee to identify intendead uses of assigned funds.

Unassigned Fund Balance consists of positive net resources of the General Fund in
excess of what can properly be classified in the previous four categories. The Board is
commitied to maintain a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the nead
to reduce service levels because of temporary revenue shorifalls or unpredicted
expenditures. The District's minimum fund balance poficy requires a Reserve for
Economic Uncertainties, consisting of unassigned amounts equal to at least 10% of the
General Fund operating expenditures and other financing uses.

The District considers restricted fund balances to have bsen spent first when an
expenditure is incured for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available. Similarly, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which
amounts in any of the unrestricted classifications of fund balance could be used, the
District considers comymitted amounts to be reduced first, followad by assigned amounts
and then unassigned amounis.

Revenye Limit/Property Tax

The District’s revenue limit is received from a combination of local property taxes, state
apportionments, and other local sources.

The County of Marin is responsible for assessing, collecting and apportioning property
faxes. Taxes are levied for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property in the
county. The levy is based on the assessed values as of the preceding January 1, which
is aiso the lien date.

Property taxes on the secured roll are due on November 1 and February 1, and taxes
become delinquent after December 10 and April 10, respectively. Property taxes on the
unsecured rolt are due on the fien date (January 1), and become delinguent if unpaid by
August 31.

Secured property taxes are recorded as revenue when apportioned, In the fiscal year of
the levy. The counly apportions secured property tax revenue in accordance with the
alternative mathod of distribution prescribed by Section 4705 of the California Revenue
and Taxation Code, This alternate method provides for crediting each applicable fund
with its total secured taxes upon completion of the secured tax roll, approximately
Cctober 1 of each year,

The County Auditor reports the amount of the District’s allocated property tax revenue to

the California Department of Education. Property taxes are recorded as local revenue
limit sources by the Districh,

34
58 of 242



SAUBALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL BISTRICY
MOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2013

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONCLUDED)

i, Assets, Liabilities and Equity {Concluded)

2. Revenue Limit/Property Tax (Concluded)

The District's Base Revenue Limi# is the amount of general purpose tax revenue, per
average dally attendance (ADA), that the District is entitled to by law. This amount is
muitiplied by the applicable aflendance period ADA to derive the Diskict's total
entilement. The District is considered a “basic ald school district” because property
taxes exceed the computed revenue imit, therefore the District dogs not receive stale
aid for their revenue limit,

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Summary of Deposits and Investiments

Deposits and invastments as of June 30, 2013, consist of the following:

Governmental Fiduciary
Agtivities Activities
Cash in Bank 5 1,118
Cash in Revolving Fund 3 1,640
Cash with Fiscal Agent 4 536,251
County Fool Investments 2,412 009
Total Deposits and investments 3 6949 300 $ 1,418

Cash in Benk and in Revolving Fund

Cash in bank consists of alf cash maintained in the commercial bank account owned by the
Cistrict, exclusive of amounis held in revolving funds. Cash in revolving fund consisis of all
cash maintainaed in commercial bank accounts that are used as revolving funds.

Cash with Fiscal Agent

Cash with Fiscal Agent consists of $328,259, $3,500,508, and $645,735, held by US Bank
as trustes, for fulure payment of interest and redemption of principal for cerlificates of
participation, for the MLK Classroom Construciion Project, and for the future pay-off of a
capiital lease, respeciively.  Cash with fiscal agent also consists of $61,749 of earned
construction retention funds, held in an escrow account by Bank of America that will be
releasad {0 the contractar at the completion of the MLK classroom project.

County Pool Investments

County pool investmeanis consist of District cash held by the Marin County Treasury that is
invaesied in the county investment pool. The falr value of the District's investmeant in the pool
is reported in the financial statements at amaounis that are based upon the District's pro-rata
shara of the fair value provided by the Counly Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to
the amoriized cost of that portfolic).

35
59 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
HOTES TO THE BASIC FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JURNE 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

General Authorization

Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concantration of credit risk are
indicated in the following schedule:

Maxdmum Maximum Maximum
Authorized Remaining Percentage fnvestment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in Gne issuer

Local Agency Bonds, Notas, Warrants 5 yaars None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warranis 5 years Naone None
U8, Treasury Obligations 5 years Noneg None
1.5 Agency Secutities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptance 180 days 40% 30%
Commerciat Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year Mone None
Reverse Repurchase Agreemenis 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Tem Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds NIA 20% 10%
dMoney Market Funds /A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securilies 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investiment Funds N/A MNone Nona
Local Ageney Investment Fund (LAIF) BIA None Mone
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None

Interest Rale Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market inferest rate will adversely affect the fair
vatue of an investment. Generally, as the length of the maturily of an investment increases,
the greater the sensitivity of its falr value to changes in market inferest rates. The District
manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing i the County Treasury that
purchases a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash
flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfclio is maturing or coming close to maturity
evenly over time as necessary o provide the cash flow and liguidity needed for operations.

Seamented Time Distribution

information about the sensitivity of the falr value of ihe District’s westment to market
interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following scheduie that shows the distribution of
the District's investment by maturity:

Carrying Fair Less Than Mare Than
Investment Tvpe Value YValue 1 Year 1 Year

County Pool investments & 24120080 % 2411803 & 2088030 3 325,079

38
60 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIK CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FIZCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONMCLUDED)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organizaetion. Presented below is the minimum rating reguired by the
California Government Code, the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the
actual rating as of the year-aend for each invastment type.

Carrying Fair Rating as of Year End
Investiment Tvpe Value Valug AAN Aa Unrated
County Pool investments § 2,412,000 § 2,411,803 $ 2,412,009

Concentration ¢f Cradit Risk

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be
invested in any one issuer beyond the amourd stipulated by the California Government
Code. However, the District dces not hold any investments in any one issuer, at year-and,
that represents five parcent or more of the total investments held by the District.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposils

This is the risk that in the event of 3 bank failure, the District's deposits may not he refurnad
fo it The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the
Catifornia Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposiis made by
state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral paol heid
by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market vaiue of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at lsast 110 percent
of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure public deposits by pledaing first trust deed morigage notes having a
value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the
Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured
deposits. As of June 30, 2013, the District does not have a bank balance that is exposed to
custodial credit risk because i was uninsured and coliateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institulion’s trust department or agent, but not in the name of the District.

Custodial Credit Risk - nvesiments

This is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will not be abie
to recover the value of iis investments or collateral securities that are In possession of an
outside party. The District does not have a policy limiting the amount of securities that can
be held by counterparties. As of June 30, 2013, the District does not have any investments
that are held by counterpariies,

Derivative Investments

The District does not directly invest in any derivative investments. information related to the
use of derivative investments by the Marin County Treasury was not available

37
61 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIK CITY SCHOOQL DISTRICT
MOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20143

NOTE 3 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

Excess of expenditures over appropriations in the General Fund were as follows:

Excess
General Fund Expenditures
Capital Outlay 3 749
Debt Service: Principal Retirement 9,242
Dabt Sarvice: interest and Fiscal Charges 1,365

The District incurred unanticipated expenditures in the expenditure classifications above for
which the budget was not revised.

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES

Recelvabies at June 30, 2013 consist of the following:

Non-Maior
Genaral Governmental
Fund Funds Totals
Fedaral Government 3 112,471 5 28,632 3 141,103
State Governmeant 196,982 1,952 198,934
Local Governments 183,443 183,443
Miscallaneous 6,340 5,340
Totals 5 4899236 % 30,584 % 529,820

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE

During fiscal ysar 1898-97, the City of Sausalifo entered into a site leasefpurchase
agreament with the Sausalito Marin City Schood District for the purchase of Martin Luther
King Jr. school sife. Under the terms of the agreement, the City of Sausalito is required to
make 17 annual lease payments {o the District, with an inferest rate of 7.46% factored into
the annual payment amount. The lease does not include a prepayment option. As a result,
the City of Sausalito is required fo pay the full amount of each annual payment, even if the
city were {o decide to prepay the entire lease balance. Proceeds from the lease agreement
are used to make the debt service paymenis on the outstanding 2006 certificates of
participation, which are discussed in Note 10. The remaining payment to be received under
this agreement is $72,734 during fiscal year 2013-14.

NOTE & - INTERFUND ACTIVITIES

interfund transactions are reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements, or
transfers. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and pavables, as appropriate, and
are subject o elimination upon consolidation, Services provided, deemed to be at markest or
near market rates, are freated as revenues and expenditures, Reimbursements ocour when
one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost
as a relmbursement. Al other interfund transactions are treated as transfers.

38
62 of 242



SAUSALITO MIARIM CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

A Due FromfDue To Other Funds

individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances af June 3G,

2013 are as follows:

interfund interfund
Funds Receivables Payables
General $ 120,746
Capitat Projects - Special Ressrve 1,048 363 B 74534
Corporation Acquisition 1,048,363
Cafeleria 465,112
Totals $.1.169.109 51,169,109

Adl interfund receivables and payables are scheduled to be paid within one year.

interfund Transfers

interfund transfers consist of operating transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds
through which the resources are (o be expandad.

Funds Transfers in Transters Dut
General 5 324108
Corporation Debt Service $ 480,888 33
Capital Proiects - Special Reserve 1,194,174 536,765
Corporation Acquisition 33 1,048,363
Deferred Maintenance 85,102
Cafeteria 83,1686
Debt Service 557687

Totals $_1.909.270 51909270

Transfar $90,000 from General Fund to Capital Projects - Special Reserve Fund for architect
faes.

Transfer $44 from General Fund {o Capital Projects - Special Reserve Fund to cover
negative interest in fund.

Transfer $85 102 from General Fund to Defarred Maintenance Fund of contribution for future
deferred maintenance projects.

Transfer $83,186 from General Fund to Cafeteria Fund to support the cafeteria program.

Transfer $585,787 from Generai Fund o Capital Projects - Special Reserve Fund for capital
iease sinking fund payment.

Transfer $33 from Corporation Debt Service Fund o Corporation Acguisition Fund excess

interast eamings from the certificates of parlicipation reserve account, which will be used fo
finance fulure construction projecis.

3¢

63 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY
HOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FIBCAL YEAR £NMOED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND ACTIVITIES (CONCLUBDED)

2. interfund Transfers (Concluded)

Transfer $3480,998 from Capital Projects - Special Reserve Fund to Corporation Debt
Service Fund for debt service payment on outstanding 2006 cerificates of participation,

Transfer $55,7687 from Capital Projects - Special Reserve Fund to Debt Service Fund for
capiial lease sinking fund payment.

Transfer $1,048,383 from Corporation Acquisition Fund to Capital Projects - Special Reserve
Fund to reimburse fund for expenditures incurred for MLK classroom project.

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Capital asset activity for the year ended Juna 30, 2013, is shown below:

Balances Balances
Judy 12012 Additions Delations Juneg 30, 2013
Land $ 948,870 % 948,870
Sites and Improvements 2022188 2022188
Buildings and Improvementis 24,046 265 24 048 205
Fumiture and Equipment 422 235 422 235
Work-in-Progress 13,803 § 1,048,383 1,062,268
Totals at Historical Cost 27,453 368 1,048 363 § G 28,501,762
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Sites and Improvemenis 1,204,114 B3 479 1,257 583
Buildings and Improvemaents 3,888,246 762,306 4,750,652
Furnifure and Equipment 89,058 31,886 131,045
Totat Accumulated Depreciation 5,291,419 847,771 0 5,139,190
Governmentat Activities
Capital Assets, net 3 22181880 &% 206,582 & 0 & 22362572

Depreciation expense was chargad o governmental activities as follows:

Governmental Aclivities:

instruction 5 591,630
instructional Library, Media, and Technology 5,352
School Site Administration 38,348
Food Services 29,887
Data Processing Services 2,078
Other General Administration 24 G889
Flant Senvices __ B5489
Total Degreciation Expense 847 77
40

64 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY
MOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 8 - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

The outstanding generat obligation debt of the District as of June 30, 2013 was as follows:

A, Current interest Bonds

Date Amount of issued Redeemed
of Interest  Maturity  Ovriginal Cutstanding  Current Gurrent Outstanding
issue Rate % Date issue July 1, 2012 Year Year duna 30 2013
8/18/05 3.65-550 8/M/30 § 7840000 $ 6,530,000 $ 230,000 3 8,300,000
9708 3254125 8/1/22 1,680,000 1,245.000 95,000 1,154,000
97708 3.854.375 B/Z8 3,110,000 3116000 3,116,068
Totals $ 12430000 510885000 3 0 § 325000 3510560000

The annual requirements o amortize the current interest bonds, as of June 30, 2013, are as

follows:
Year Ended
June 3¢ Princinat intergst Totals
2014 3 350,000 3 432 808 § 782,808
2015 385,000 414 6286 784,625
2018 425,000 397 187 822 167
2017 455,000 380,798 835,798
2018 450 000 362,991 852 991
2018-2023 3,065,000 1,479,541 4,544 541
2024-2028 3,550,000 798 845 4 348 645
2029-2033 1,840,000 102,711 1,842 741
Totals 5 10,560,000 3 4,369 7288 $ 14,829,288
B. Capital Appraciation Bonds
Accreted
Date Date Amount of basyed interast
of  Accration of Origina! Quistanding  Current Current Outstanding
issue Rate %  Maturity Issue July 1, 2012 Year Year dune 30, 2013
Q/7/06 7.585 B/1/33 $ 309,891 % 478,051 § 36,852 3 515,003
Q708 5523 /142 3,159,933 4 338,349 242 910 4 581 259
Todals $.34680924 F 4818400 § 4 § 279862 5 5098267

The outstanding obiigation for the Series 2006A capiial appreciation bonds at June 30, 2013, is

as follows:
Year Ended  Accretion Oniginal tssue Accreted
June 30 Rate {Principal} Interest Totals
2014-2018 3 0 & g 3 4]
2019-2023 0 0 o
2024-2028 7.586% 172,333 113,971 286,304
2029-2033 7 586% 118,765 78,545 197,310
20342038 7.586% 18,883 12,486 31,389
Totals 3 300,991 3 205012 3 515,003
41

65 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIM CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR EMDED SUNE 30, 2013

MNOTE 6 - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (CONCLUDED

B, Canital Anpreciation Bonds (Concluded)

The annual requirements to amortize the Series 20064 capital appreciation bonds at
June 30, 2013, are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Principal inferest Totals
20142018 $ G $ O § G
2018-2023 § G 0
2024-2028 172,333 527 867 760,000
2028-2033 118,765 581,235 700,000
2034-2038 18,883 121107 140,000
Tolals 3 309,991 % 1,230,008 3 1,540,000
The outstanding obligation for Serles 20088 capital appreciation bonds at June 30, 2013, is
as follows:
Year Ended Accretion Origingl issue Accreled
June 30 Rate {Principal) Interest Totals
2014-2018 $ 0 $ 0 3 Q0
2019-2023 0 0 G
2024-2028 0 0 G
2029-2033 5.523% 778,788 350,281 1,129,078
2034-2048 5.523% 1,275,448 573,714 1,849,182
2038-2043 5.523% 1,105,697 A97 321 1,803,018
Totals 5 3,155,833 3 1421326 % 4,581,259

The annual requiremenis to amoriize the Series 20068 capital appreciztion bonds at
June 306, 2013, are as follows;

Year Ended

June 30 Principal interest Totals
2014-2018 % 8] % 9] $ G
2019-2023 8] 0 G
2024-2028 [y 0 G
2028-2033 778,788 2,221,212 3,006,600
2034-2038 1,275,448 4 884 552 6,173,000
2039-2043 1,105 6897 5,888 303 7,005,000

Totals 3 3,158,833 $ 13,015,087 $ 18,175,000

NOTE 8- CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

in August 2008, the Sausalito School District Financing Corporation issued certificates of
participation (COPS} in the amount of $3,235,000 {o refund the outstanding 1996 Refunding
COPS and to provide financing for the renovation, construction, and modsarnization of certain
District faciliies. At June 30, 2013, the principal balance outstanding was $3806,000.

42
66 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICTY
MOTES 7O THE SBASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2043

NOTE ¢ - CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION (CONCLUDED)

On February 12, 2013, the Sausalito School District Financing Corporation  issued
certificates of participation in the principal amount of $3,675,000 to provide financing for the
MUK Jr. Academy Classroom Construction Project. At June 30, 2013, the principal balance
outstanding was $3,675,000.

The annual requirements o amortize the certificates of participation as of June 30, 2013 are
as follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Pringipal interest Totais

2014 3 380,000 3 143,835 3 523,835
2015 $5,000 102,215 187,215
2016 85,000 101,669 196,669
2017 95,000 160,980 165,880
2018 85,006 100,125 165,125
2018-2023 480,000 430,065 970,065
2024-2028 545 000 420 180 865,180
2029-2033 B30,000 334,125 964 125
2034-2038 750,000 220,412 970,412
2038-2043 880,000 79,100 958,160

Totals 3 4,085000 $ 2,082 808 $ 6,137,806

NOTE 10 - CAPITAL LEASES

A,

Gn December 1, 2002, the Disfrict entered into a 51,000,000 lease agreemsant to finance the
remodel of fis existing school facilities and the update of its technology systems. The
agreement requires the District to make fifteen (15} annual paymerts of $55,766 to a sinking
fund maintained by US Bank. The sum of the annual paymants plus interest earned on the
sinking fund balance are expected o be sufficient to make a singls $1,000,000 lease
payment on December 18, 2017 and pay-off the eniire lease balance at thal time. The lease
doas not include a prepayment option. The agreement providas for title to pass upon
expiration of the lease pericd. Future required sinking fund payments as of June 30, 2013
are as follows:

Sinking
Year Ended ~und
June 36 Paymenis
2014 % 55,766
2015 55 768
2016 55766
2017 55766
2018 55,768
Total sinking fund payments remaining § 273830
L ease payment due December 19, 2017 § 1,000,000

Atdune 3G, 2013, the Debt Service Fund has a fund balance of $845,735.
43

67 of 242



BALUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY
BOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 306, 2013

NOTE 10 - CAPITAL LEASES (CONCEUDED)

23 The District entered inlo lease agreements o finance the acguisition of energy management
equipment and the purchase of compuier equipment valued at 3156800 and $28.752,
respectively. The agreements provide for fitle to pass upon expiration of the lease periods.

Fuiure minimum lease pavments under these agreements are as follows:

Year Ended Lease
June 30 Payments
2014 $ 30,007
2015 19,399
2016 19,399
Total payments 68,805
Lass amounts representing interest (3415
Present value of net minimum lease paymeants $__ 65390

The District will receive no sublease rental revenues nor pay any contingent rentals for the
leased assets,

NOTE 11 - EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVES

in addition to the pension henefits described m Note 15, the District offered an early
retirament incentive benefit program through the Public Agency Retiremeant System (PARS)
in fiscal year 2009-10. The PARS program was offered to ali cerlificated employees with at

least 30 vears of teaching experience and 10 years of service with the District, The future
paymenis are as follows,

Year Ended
June 30 PARS
2014 $ 16,884
2015 16,884
Total $ 33768

NOTE 12 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The changes in long-term Babilities for the vear ended June 30, 2013, is shown below:

Balances Balances Due within

July 1, 2012 Additions Deductions  June 30, 2013 One Year

Compensatad Ahsences 5 17,235 % 49412 § 17,238 % 9,412 % 9,412

General Obligation Bonds:

Current Interest 10,885,000 325000 10,580,000 350,000
Capital Appreciation 4,816,400 279,862 5,086,252

Certificates of Participation 820,000 3,675,000 440,000 4,055,000 380,000

Capital Leases 1,091,148 25758 1,085,390 27,084

Early Retiremant Incentives 50,852 16,884 33,768 16,884

Totals * $ 17880436 3 3064274 3 824878 § 20819832 § 783330

* The prior year balance has been adjusted to reflect the restatement described in Nole 20.

44
68 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN GITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 398, 2043

NOTE 13 - FUND BALANCES

The District's fund balances at June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

Bond Capital
nterest Corporation Projects-
and Debt Special Corporation MNon-Major
Genaral Redemption Service Raserve Acguisiion Governmental
fund Fund Fund Fund rund Funds Totals
Nonspendable $ 1,000 & 40 3 1,040
Restrictad 199,318 § 589041 § 328259 P 2452145 555,378 4,224,091
Assigned % 185479 271,314 456 753
Unassigned:
Economic Uncertainties 588 541 588,841
Giher 966 500 986,508
Total Fund Balances S 175b865 5 689041 0§ 328200 & 185472 0§ 2452145 0§ 928682 0§ 6237271

NOTE 14 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS MADE BY THE STATE OQF CALIFORNIA

The District was the recipient of on-behalf paymenis made by the State of California o the
State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) for K-12 Education. This payment consisis
of state gensral fund confributions to CalSTRS of $62,720 {(5.175512% of salaries subject to
CalSTRS).

NOTE 15 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Qualified amplovees are covered under multiple-employer contributory retirement plans
maintained by agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of
the State Teachers' Retirement Systemn {CalSTRE) and classified employees are members
of the Public Smployees’ Retirement Systern (CalPERS).

A Siate Teachers' Retirement Systam (CalBTRS)

Pian Description

The District contributes to the State Teachers' Refirement System (CalSTRS), a cost-sharing
muitiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan
administered by CalSTRS. The plan provides retirement, disabiiity, and surviver benefits to
plan members and beneficlaries. Benefit provisions are established by Siate statules, as
lagislatively amended, within the Slate Teachers' Refirement Law. CalS3TRS issues a
separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. Coples of the CalSTRS annual financial reporf may be
obtained from the STRS, 100 Waterfront Place, Wast Sacramente, California 85805,

Funding Policy

Active plan members are reqguired to contribute 8.0% of their salary and the District s
required fo contribute an actuanally determined rate. The actuarial methods and
assumpiions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalSTRSE Teachers'
Retirement Beoard, The required employer confribution rate for fiscal year 2012-13 was
8.25% of annual payroll. The contribulion reguirements of the plan members are established
by State siatule. The District’s contributions to CalSTRS for the fiscal vears ended June 30,
2013, 2012, and 2011, were $116,109, 590,718, and $998,979, respactively, and equal 100%
of the required contributions for each year.

45
69 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 15 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONCLUDED)

8.

C.

California Public Emplovees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)

Plan Description

The District contribudes fo the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees’
Retirement System {CalPERS), a cost-sharing muitiple-employer public employae relirement
system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides
retirement and disabiiity benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to
plan members and heneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as
legisiatively amended, within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a
separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be
obiained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 Q1 Strest, Sacrameanto, California 85811,

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 7.0% of their salary and the District is
raquired to contribute an acluarially determined rate. The acluarial methods and
assumplions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of
Admirdstration. The recuired employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2012-13 was
11.417%. The contribution requirements of the plan members are estabiished by State
statute. The District's contributions fo CalPERS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013,
2012, and 2011, were $106,520, $106,308, and $106,473, respectively, and egual 100% of
the required contributions for each year.

Sccial Security

As established by Federal law, all public sector emplovees who are not membears of their
amployer's existing refirement system (CalSTRS or CalPERS) must be covered by sockal
secwrily of an allernafive pian. The District has elected to use Social Sectrity as s
alternative plan. Contributions made by the District and participating employee vest
immediately. The District contributes 8.2% of an employee’s gross earings and employees
were required o confribuie 4.2% of their gross earmings from July 2012 through
December 2012 and §.2% from January 2013 through June 2013

NOTE 18 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed 1o various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During fiscal
year 20112-13, the District participated in one joint powers authority (JPA} for purposes of
pooling for risk. There were no significant reductions in coverage during the vear
Setilements have not exceeded coverage for each of the past three years.

NOTE 17 - JOINT VENTURES

The District participates in two joint ventures under joint powers agreements with Marin
School Insurance Authority (MSIA) for workers’ compensation and property and Hability
nsurance, and Marin Pupils Transportation Agency (MPTA) for pupil fransportation services
for special education children. The relationships between the District and the JPAs are such
ihat the JPAs are not componant units of the District for financial reporting purposes.

48
70 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
HOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FIBCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2013

NOTE 17 - JOINT VENTURES (CONCLUDED)

The JPAs arrange for and/or provide coverage or transportation services for its members.
The JPAs are governed by a board consisting of a representative from each member district.
Each board conirols the operations of their JPAs, including selection of management and
approval of operating budgets independent of any influence by the member districts beyond
their representation on the Board, Each member district pays a premium commensurale
with the level of coverage or service reguested and shares surpluses and deficils
nroportionately to their participation in the JPAs. The District is charged by the MPTA based
upon actual cost of pupil transportation. The JPAs are audited on an annual basis. Financial
information can be oblainad by contacting each JPA’s management.

MNOTE 18 - CHARTER SCHOOL

in accordance with Education Code Section 47605, the Disirict approved a charter school
agreement with Willow Creek Academy Charter School, which was renewed for an
additional five years for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2014,

Under the terms of the agreement, the charler school is responsible for managing,
budgeting, and accounting for its activiies in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Therefore, the financial activities of the
charter school are not included in the District's financial reports; however, the financial
transactions between the charter schoo! and the District are included.

NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A

State and Federal Allowances, Awards and Grants

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subiject to
review and audit by the granior agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure
disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required refimbursements will
not be material,

Litigation

The District is subiect to various legal proceedings and claims. In the opinion of
management, the ultimate lability with respect to these actions will not materially affect the
financial position or results of operations of the District.

Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 2013, the District has the following commitments with respect to unfinished
capital projects:

Remaining Expected

Construction Date of
Capital Project Commitment Completion
MLK New Classrooms Consfruction Project & 755820 August 2013

47
71 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY
MOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 20 - RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The beginning government-wide net position balance has been restated to reflect an
adjustment o the other post employment benefits (OPEB) liability batance, which has been
deemed to be immaterial to the financial statements. The affect of the restatement on the
current year financial stetements is as follows,

Governmental

Achivilies
MNet Position - July 1, 2012 (as originally stated) $ 8330984
Dverstatemant of OPEB Liability 1513
Met Position - July 1, 2012 (as restated) $ 8332497

NOTE 21 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District's management has evaluated evenis or transactions that occurred for possible
recognition or disclesure in the financial siatemenis from the balance sheet date through
Becember 13, 2013, which is the dale the financial statemants were available o be issued.
Management has determinad that there were no subsequent evenis or {ransaclions that
require disclosure in or adiustment to the current year financial siatements,

48

72 of 242



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION

73 of 242



74 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Yartance with
Final Budgst

Originatl Finatl Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
Revenyes

Revenue Limit Sowrces:

State Apportionment 3 16843,224 3 201,268 3 201,487 3 218
Local Sources 3,302,345 3,411,558 3,447,947 6,381
Total Revenue Limit Scurces 3,481,564 3612824 3,618,434 6610

Federal Revenuse 209,978 328,058 345 295 17,237

Other State Revenue 765,812 894,280 B88,629 {6,351)

Other Local Revenue 1,022,915 4,128,671 1,150,418 21,748

Total Revenues 5,480,374 5,984 533 6,003,777 38,244
Expendifires

Ceriificated Salaries 1,638 217 1,627,384 1,576,754 50,830

Classified Salaries 884 414 941,765 Q37,709 4,058

Empioves Bensfits 781,800 785,407 780,723 14,684

Books and Supples 136,172 328,674 255 887 74,387

Services and Qther

Ciperating Expendilures 1,488 838 1,782,224 1,528,486 253,738
Capital Qutiay 15 421 18,170 (748
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 15,877 18,518 25,758 (9,242}
interest and Fiscal Charges 3,623 2,884 4,249 (1,385}
Other Expendifures 518,641 580,644 548 969 31,875
Total Expenditures 5,445 978 5,062,219 5.644.405 417,814
Excess of Revenues Ovar

{Under} Expendituras 14,395 {97 886) 355,372 457,058
Gither Financing (Uses)

Operating Transfers Out {209,851} (299.851) (324,109) {24,258}
MNet Change in Fund Balances {195,458} (387,537} 35,283 3 432,800
Fund Balances - July 1, 2012 1,720,402 1,720,402 1,720,402
Fund Balances - June 30, 2013 % 1,524,548 3 1,322,865 3 1,755,665

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEQRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS

75 of242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING BALANCE SHEEY

JUNE 30, 2013

HON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Aszels
Daposits and Investments
Hacelvables

Total Assels
Liabilities and Fund Balances
i.iahilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds

Tolal Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilties and Fund Balances

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS

Defe
Bainte

rred
nance

274,214

Cafeteria

28,124
30,584

274,214

2,900

59,708

4,793
48 112

2,900

271314

54,911

271,314

40
8,757

274,214

8,757

54,708

76 0¥242



Total

County Mon-Major
Debt School Governmental
Service Bulding Facilities Fundds
845735 $ 245 $ 540 5 843,808
30,584
845 735 3 246 5 5890 3 980,493
§ 7.608
46,112
53,811
AG
645,736 3 245 % 580 855,328
271,314
845738 248 590 §26.682
845735 3 245 3 540 $ 980,493

77 of 242



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPERDITURES, AND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
MHON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Ravenues
Federal Revenue
State Revenue
Local Revenue

Total Revenuas

Expenditures
Food Servicas
Plant Services

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Qver
{Under) Expenditures

Ceher Financing Sourges
Operating Transfers In

Met Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - July 1, 2012

Fund Balances - June 30, 2013

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS

78 of242

Deferred
Maintenance

$ 4,688
238

Cafeteria

5137

¥ 77,700
5,380
{29)

10,705

10,708

{5,568}

85,102

(74,389)

83,534
181,780

83,186

$ 271,314

8,797
0

3 8,757




Dabt
Servics

Buiiding

{10,450)

{10,450}

{10,450)

85,767

45317
800,418

845,735

Totat
Non-fajor
Governmental
Funds

3

77.700
10,248
{10,239}

77,708

157,420
10,705

168,125

(90.415)

2340865

County
Schaool
Facilities

% 1
1
0
1
1
248 588
245 % 550

143,648
763,033

$ Y26,682

79 of 242




SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
ORGAMIZATION/BOARD OF TRUSTEES/ADMINISTRATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2043

ORGANIZATION

The Sausalito Marin City School District comprises and serves the City of Sausalito, Marin City,
and several military installations. There were no changes in the boundaries of the District during
the curtent year. The Distric currently operates two elementary schools serving students in
kindergarten through grade eight,

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Name Office Term bxpires
William Zlegler Presidant Lecamber 2018
Joshua Barrow Vice President December 2014
Thomas Newmeyer fember December 2014
Caroline Van Alst Clerk December 2016
Shirtey Thornton, Ed. D, Member ecaember 2014

ADMINISTRATION

Dr. Valerie Piits
Superiniendent

Paula F. Rigney
Business Manager

54
80 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

P-2 Report Annuat Report
District District

Elementary Reported Audited Reported  Audifed
Kindergarten 16.23 16.23 16.46 16.46
First through Third 38.85 38.08 40,22 39.44
Fourth through Sixth 34.82 34 .46 34.89 34.59
Seventh and Eighth 22.40 22.07 22.21 21.80
Special BEducation - Special Day Class 1.77 2.53 2.64 2.55
Special Education - Nonpublic 4,83 3.03 4.58 3.10
Extended Year - Nonpublic g 0.27 0.27 0.27
Totals 118.890 116.68 121.37 118.21

SEE NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

55
81 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY 8CHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TiME

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2013

Grade Level

Kindergarten

Grade

Grade

Grade

Grade

Grade

Grade

Grade

Grade

1

2

Adjusted Adjusted Mumber
1982-83 1982-83 1586-87 1986-87 204213 of Days
Actual Actual Minutes Minutes Actual  Traditional
Minutes Minutes Reguired Required Minutes  Galsndar
31.500 30,825 38,000 38,000 58,530 180
45,500 44,236 50,400 48,000 58,530 180
45,500 44,236 50,400 458,000 59,890 180
45,500 44,236 50,400 45,000 59,850 180
54,250 52,743 54,000 52,800 59,89G 180
54,250 52743 54,000 52,800 §1,195 180
54,250 52,743 54,000 52,500 51,165 180
54,250 82,743 54,600 52,500 61,195 180
54,250 52,743 54,000 52,500 61,185 180

SEE NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

56
82 of 242

MNumber
of Days
Multitrack
Calendar
MNIA
M4
NiA
N/A
MNA
MN/A
M/A

MR

BA

Status
tn Compliance
in Compliance
in Compliance
in Compliance
in Comgpliance
in Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance

in Compliance



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ERNDED JUNE 30, 2013

Program Mame

L1.5. Department of Agriculiure:

Passed through California Department of Education (CDEY

Child Nutrition Cluster:
National School Lunch
School Needy Braakfast

U.S. Departmeant of Education:
Passed through CDE:
Education Johs Fund

NCLE: Title | - Basic Grant Low-Income & Neglected

i
NCLB: Title I - Improving Teacher Quality
NCLE: Title Il - immigrant Education Program
NOLE: Title i - Limited English Proficient
Passed through Marin County SELPA
Special Education Cluster:
IDEA Part B Baslc Local Assistance
IDEA Part B Mental Health Allocation Plan
Receivad Direct:
Federal Impact Aid

Total

SEE NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

83 01242

Fedearal Pass-Through Federal
Catalog ldentification Program
Mumber Number Expenditures
10.5655 13524 $ 58,955
10.553 13528 18,745
84 410 25152 508
84.010 14329 169,138
84,367 14341 25,029
84,3685 15146 400
84.365 14346 2842
84.027 13379 £9,533
84.027A 14468 30,247
£4.041 n/a 17,428
3 422 627



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT
WATH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Speciai Capital
Ravenue - Corporation Projects -
Special Debt Special Corporation Deixrt
General Reserve Sarvice Raserve Acguisition Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
June 30, 2013 Annual Financial and
Budget Heport Fund Balances 3 1684385 § 172310 0§ 323513 & 184671 3 57 % 600,418
Adijustments Increasing/{Decreasing)
Fund Batances:
Overstaternent of Stale Revenues {3,839}
Undersiatement of Employee Benefits (2,152)
Understatermnent of Gther Quige 82213
Oversiatement of Other Cutgo 536,765
Understatement of intarest Nevenus 39 418
Overstatement of Interest Revenue (10,450}
Understatement of Contract Services {170,258}
Understatermnent of Debt Service Interest {41,000)
Overstaterent of Caplial Outlay 58,248
Understatement of Debt Service Principat {440,000)
Understaternent of Transfers In 480,988 1,048,382 33 58,767
Understaternent of Transfers Out {33 {536,785) (1,048,363}
Understatement of Other Sources 175,000 3,500,008
Overstatement of Other Sources {1,105,804)
Reclassifications Increasing/{(Decraasing)
Fund Balances: 172,310 {172,310)
Net Adjustmenis & Reclassifications 71,300 (172,310} 4,748 208 2,452,088 45317
Jung 30, 2013 Audited Finandal
Statements Fund Balances $ 17588685 & 0 § 328233 § 185478 § 2452145 § 645735

Auditor's Comments

The audited financial staterents of all other funds were in agreemeant with the Annual Financial and Budget Report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2613,

The reclassification of fund balances above was required as a result of the definition of spedial revenue funds prescribed hy GASE 54,

SEE NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

84 06f8242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL BISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

GENERAL FUND

{Budget)*

2013-14™ 201213 2011-12 2010-11
Revenues and Other Financial Sources $ 5487104 $ 8003777 $ 5868977 $ 6,518,778
Expenditures 5,668,575 5,644 405 5,505,000 5,345 571
Other Uses and Transfers Cut 283,800 324,109 295,018 108,133
Total Quigo 5,852,175 5968 514 5,800,018 8,453,704
Change in Fund Balance (455 074) 35,283 69,981 83,072
Ending Fund Balance $ 1,300,581 $ 1755685 3 1,720,402 % 18504414
Avaitable Reserves $ 1,139,198 5 1,585347 3 1,384459 $ 1,382,842
Reserve for Economic Uncarainties *** $ 595,218 ) 588,841 3 577,517 3 824 140
Available Reserves as 8 Percentage
of Total Outgo 19.1% 26.1% 23.5% 21.4%
Average Daily Attendance at P2 119 117 128 157
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 20,036,452 $ 20,815,832 5 17,680,438 (U § 18,140,296 ()

F*

Amounts reported for the 2013-14 budget are presented for analytical purposas only and have not been audited.

*= Amounts have been adjusied to ensure comparability with the current vear GASB 54 financial statemeni
presentalion.

*** Raported balances are a component of available resarves.

M The amounts presented have been adjusted to reflect the restatement described in Note 20.

The fund balance of the General Fund increased $108,224 (5.4%) over the past two years. The fiscal vear 2013-14
budget projects a decreass of $455,074 (25.9%). For a district this size, the state recomimends availabla reserves of at
least 5% of total general fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses {fotal cutgo).

The District produced operating surpluses of $35,283, $69,961, and $83,072 during fiscal years 2012-13, 2011-12, and
2010-11, respactively.

Average daily attendance (ADA} decreased 40 ADA (25.5%) over the past two vears. The District anticipates an
increase of 2 ADA during fiscal year 2013-14.

Total long-term labilities increased $2,679,538 over the past two ysars dus primarily fo the issuance of $3,6875,000 of
certificates of participation in fiscal year 2012-13.

SEE NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

59
85 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER 8CHOOLS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR EMDED JUNE 30, 2013

Charter School Hsirict Audit

Willow Creek Academy Excluded

SEE NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
60

86 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
HOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1-PURPOSE OF STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

A

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASE) Statement No. 34,
the District is required to present @ Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance budgetary comparison for the General Fund and each Major Special Revenues
Fund that has an adopied budget. This schedule presents the original adopted budget, final
adopted budget, and the actual revenues and expenditures of each of these funds by obiject.

Combining Statements

Combintng statements are presented for purposes of additionsd analysis, and are not a
required part of the District's basic financial statements. These siatements present more
detaited information about the financial position and financial activities of the Districl's
individual funds.

Schedule of Average Daily Allendance

Average daily atfendance is a measurament of the number of pupils aftending classes of the
District. The purpose of atlendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is o provide the
basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to school districts. This schedule
provides information ragarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and In
differant programs.

Scheduyle of Instructional Time

The District received stale funding under the Basic Ald Provision and therefore did not
receive incentive funding for incraasing instructional time as provided by the incentive for
fonger instructional day. This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional
time offered by the District and whether the Disirict complied with the provisions of Education
Code Sections 46200 through 46206,

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The acccmpanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activities of the District and is presented on the modifled accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule s presented in accordance with the reguirements of OME
Circular A-133, Audils of States, Local Govemments, and Non-Frofit Grganizations.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budael Report with Audited Financial Statemenis

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balances of all funds,
as reported in the Annual Financiat and Budget Report to the audited financial statements.

Schedule of Financia!l Trends and Analvsis

This schedule discloses the District’'s financial trends by displaying past years’ data along
with current vear budget information. These financial trend disclosures are used o evaluate
the District's ability to confinue as a going concermn for a reasonable period of tima.

&1
87 of 242



SAUBALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2013

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES (CONCLUDED)

H. Schedule of Charter Schouols

This schedule lists ali charier schools chartered by the District and identifies whether or not
the charier schools were included or excluded from the audit of the District.

52
88 of 242



OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS SECTION

89 of 242



90 of 242



STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Certified Fublic Accountanis

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Board of Trustees
Sausalito Marin Clty School District
Sausalito, California

Report on Siate Compliance

We have audited Sausalito Marin City School District’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Sfandards and Procedures for Audits of Calffornia K-12 lLocal
Educational Agencles 2012-13 for the year ended June 30, 2013,

Management's Responsibiiity

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of state laws, reguiations,
contracts, and grants.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on Sausalito Marin City School District's compliance
based on our compliance audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Educational
Agencies 2012-13, prescribed in the California Code of Regulations, Title 5, section 18810 and
following. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audif to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompiiance with the types of compiiance requirements referred to
above occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Sausalito Marin Cily
School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such ofher procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that cur audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with state
laws and regulations applicable in the following areas. However, our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Sausalitc Marin City School District's compliance with those requirements,

Procedures
in Education Audit
Appeals Panel's Frocedures

Dascription Audit Guide Performed
Attendance Accounting:

Aftendance Reporting 6 Yes

Teacher Certification and Misassignments 3 Yas

Kindergarten Continuance 3 Yes

Independent Study 23 Not Apnlicable

Continuation Education 10 Not Applicable

63
P.O. Box 2198 / Folsom, CA 35763 / Phone {916) 966-3883 / Fax (816} 966-3815

91 of 242




Board of Trustees
Sausalito Marin City School District

Fage Two
Procedures
in Education Audit
Appeals Panel's Procedures
Description Audit Guide Parformed
instructional Time:

School Districts 6 Yes

County Offices of Education 3 Not Applicable
instructional Materials:

General Requirements 8 Yes
Ratios of Administrative Emplovees to Teachers i Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries 1 Yeas
arly Retirement Incantive 4 Not Applicable
Gann Limnit Calcudation 1 Yes
School Accountabliity Report Card 3 No {see below)
Juvenite Court Schoals 8 Not Applicable
Ciass Size Reduction,

General Reguirements 7 Yas

Option One 3 Yes

Option Two 4 Mot Applicable

Districts or Charter Schools With

Cnly One School Serving K-3 4 Not Applicable
After School Education and Safety Program:

General Regquirements 4 Yes

After School 5 Yes

Before School 8 Mot Appiicable
Contemporaneous Racords of Attendance

For Charter Schools 9 Not Applicable
Mode of Instruction for Charter Schools 1 Not Applicable
Nonclassroom-Based instruction/

Indaependent Study for Charter Schools 15 Not Applicabls
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based

Instruction for Charter Schoois 3 Not Applicable
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based

For Charter Schools 4 Mot Appilicable

We were unable o parform the procedures for the school accountability report card becausa the
District did not publish the school accountability report card for fiscal year 2012-13.

Opindon on Complianee

in our opinion, Sausalite Marin Clty Schoot District complied, in all material respects, with the state
laws and regulations referred to above for the yvear ended June 30, 2013, except as describad in
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, as noted in Findings 13-5, 13-§,
and 13-7.

64
92 of 242



Board of Trustees
Sausalito Marin City School District
Fage Three

The District's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
Schedute of Findings and Questioned Costs. The District's responsas were not subjected fo the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the District's Board, management,
California State Controlier's Office, California Department of Finance, California Department of
Education, and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and shouid not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Wﬁm« Raoatcd ﬁcamw«/‘?@m% orfpenatios

STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Certifled Public Accountanis

December 13, 2013

85

93 of 242



86
94 of 242



STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountanis

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLUANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Sausalito Marin City School Gistrict
Sausalito, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standsrds generally accepted in the United
States of Ametica and the standards applicable to financial audits contalned in Goverriment
Auditing Standards issued by the Compiroller General of the United States, the financial
statemenis of the governmental acliviies, sach major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Sausalito Marin City School District, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Bistrict's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 13, 2013,

internal Control Cver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing owr audit of the financial statements, we considerad the District's
internal confrol over financial reporting (Internal control} (o determine the audi procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenass of the District's
internat control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
finternal control.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limiled purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal conirel that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficlencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Guestioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal controd
that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal conirol exists when the design or operation of a confrol does not allow
managemeant or employees. in the normal course of performing thelr assigned functions, o
prevent, or aetect and correct, misstatements on s timely basis. A maleral weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internatl control such that there is a reasonable
possiblity that a materiat misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be a material waskness, as noted in
Finding 13-1.

A sfgnificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combingtion of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, vel important enough to merit altention by those charged
with governance. We consider the deficlencies described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs to be significant deficiencies, as noted in Findings 13-2, 13-3,
and 13-4,

g7
P.Q. Box 2196 / Folsom, CA 85763/ Phone (916) 966-3883 / Fax (316} 966-3815

95 of 242




Board of Trusiees
Sausaiito Marin City School District
Page Two

Compliznce and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Districl's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with cerlain provisions of laws,
reqgulations, contracis, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on cormpliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
axpress such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required 1o be reporied under Govermment Auditing Standards.

District’s Responses to Findings

The District's responses {o the findings tdentified in our audit are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Ouestioned Costs. The District's responseas were not subjected to the
auaiting procedures applied in the audit of the financial statementis and, accordingly, we exprass
no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the resullts of that tesling, and not o provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
sntity's internat control or on compliance. This report is an integrat part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Acscordingly, this communication is not suitable for any oiher purpose.

mm Reatcd chm%cﬁ @@MMM
STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Certified Public Accouniants
December 13, 2013

68
96 of 242



FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS SECTION

97 of 242



98 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2013

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Tyoe of auditor's report issued:

internal control over financial reporting
Material weaknesses ideniified?
Significant deficiencies identifled not considered
o be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
State Awards

internatl control over state programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not congidered
o be material weaknasses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
state programs:

89
99 of 242

Unmodified
X Yes  No
X Yes  Nonereporied
o Yes X No
_Yes A No
X Yes  Nonereporied
Qualified



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL BDISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION @ - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

13- 1730600

MATERIAL WEAKNESS
FINANCIAL REPORTING - UNAUDITED ACTUALS

Criteria Each year, school districts are responsible for preparing compiete and
accurate financial information, which is reported to the California
Department of Education in the form of the “Unaudited Actuals”
Financial Report. In addition, sach year the govaming board cerlifies
that the report was prepared in accordance with Education Code
Section 41010, and approves the report as the official submission of
financial information that will be used as the basis for the District's
annual financial statemsants. Accordingly, districts should have an
effective system of infernal control over financial reporting that will
ansure that the information contained in the report is free of material
misstatement.

Condition: During the performance of the annual audit, we noled several
misstatements on the "Unaudited Actuals” that we consider to be
material to the District’s annual financial sialements.

Guestionsd Costs: None.

Context: The adjustments made o ensure that the financlal statements were
falrly stated are presentsd on page 58 of this report.

Effect: The “Unaudited Actuals” approvad by the Governing Board cordained
misstaiements that are material to the District's annuat financial
statements,

Cause: The District eliminated an administrative position in the District Office

that required other District Office personnel to absorb additional ob
respansibilities.  In addition, the District Office moved locations in
August 2013, in the middle of thelr yaear-end closing process, due 1o
ongoing construction required for the consclidation of the two school
sites.

Recommendation: The District should add procedures to their comprehensive financial
reporting checkiist to ensure all relevant areas are covered during the
year-end closing process,

District Response: The District agrees and wili start the vear end process earlier in the
schoot year now to ensure that errors are minimized and that there is
more time to double check everything prior to finglizing the unaudited
actuals,

70
100 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION U - FIMANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

%3 - 27 300400
SIGHIFICANT DEFICIENGCY

CAFETERIA FUND ENCROACHMENT

Criteria;

Condition:

Questioned Cost:

Context:

Effect:

Caouse:

Recommendation:

District Response:

The Cafeteria Fund should attempt (o operate as close to break-even
as possible to ensuwre that the fund does not encroach on the General
Fund in significant amounis.

The Cafeteria Fund has not operated close to a break-even basis.
The program continues to incur increasing operating deficits and has
refled Upon annual contributions from the General Fund. A summary
of the operating deficits and annual contributions are as follows:

Budget
2013-14 201213 201112 2810-11

Cafeteria Fund
Operating Deficits $ 42,833 $ 74,388 § 60,908 $ 61,857

General Fund
Contributions $ 42,833 $ 83196 % 060,159 $ 52,388

None.

The Cafeteria Fund is incurring annual operating deficits and has
become dependent on significant annual General Fund contributions.
in addition, the District issued $3,675,000 of certificates of participation
that will be financed by the General Fund, which will further deplete the
District's reserves.

if appropriate program culs are not made, the current irend of deficlt
spending in the Cafeteria Fund will likely continue and may begin o
impair the District’s ability io maintain adeguale reserves in the
General Fund in the fulure

The District has been unsuccessful in reducing cafeteria program
costs down to a level that is consistent with the revenues genserated by
the program.

The District should continue to nvestigate program changes that will
allow the Cafeteria Fund to operale closer o a break-aven basis and
bacome less dependeant on annual General Fund contributions,

The District has implemented an in house cafsteria program with the
hope of being able fo provide an all organic/environmental food
prograim thai is cost effective and efficient.

71
101 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUMNE 306, 2013

SECTION Il - FINAMCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

13 - 37 30000

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES CALCULATIONS

Criteria:

Condition:

Cluestioned Costis:

Contexd:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

The 1983 Educational Reform Act estabiished financial incentives for
school districts that offer at least a specified minimum number of
instructional minutes per school year. Accordingly, districts should
develop procedures fo ensure thal the required number of
instructional minutes are provided and property documented,

instructional minule calculations are not routinely prepared, by school
site adminisirators, on an annual basis fo ensure compliance with
instructional minute requiremenis. As a resull, no independent review
is performed by the business office to ensure that the instructional
minute calculations are accurate and comply with siate incentive
funding reguirements.

None. The District complied with the instructional minute requirements
for fiscal year 2012-13. In addition, the District was funded under the
hasic aid provision in 2012-13, and therefore did not receive longer
day incentive funding.

Both school sites were lested for instructionat minutas compliance in
fiscal year 2012-13.

The District's procedures for instructional minutes compliance is
inadequate and may result in a loss of funding if the District is unable
o detect and prevent a potential instructional minute shortfall in the
future. If school sites do not meet minimum daily instructional minute
requirements, the school day cannot be counted for apportionment
purposes, and could potentially result in a loss of average daily
atfendance that could potentiaily affect categorical funding.

The District has not enforced procedures that require school sits
administrators to compute annual instructional minutes caloulations at
the beginning of each school vear, The 2012-13 instructional minules
calculations were not completed by the Distriet unt August 2013,

The District should enforce procedures that require each site
administrator fo compute the annual instructional minutes at the
beginning of each school year, and submit their calculation, along
with the related school calendar and bell schedules, {0 the business
office for review. Site administrators should be nofified that changes
may not be made to bell schedules without obtaining prior approval
from the business office. If revisions are made {o site bell schedules,
site adminisrators should recalcutate instructional minules and
submit the revised calculations o the business office for review,

72
102 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY BCHOOL DISTRICY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDR JUNE 3¢, 2013

SECTION I - FINANGIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES CALCULATIONS (CONCLUDED)

District Response: The District will enforce procedures that require school site
adminisiration io compute annual instructional minutes at the
beginning of each school year, and submit thelr calcuiation, along with
the related school calendar and bell schedules, to the business office
for review,

73
103 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CIVY S3CHOOL DIBTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDHNGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2013

SECTION I - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FIMDINGS {CONCLUDED)

13 - 4730060

SIGHIFICANT DEFICIENCY

TRANSACTION AUTHORIATION

Criteria:

Condition:

Cluestioned Cost

Contaxt:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

District Response:

Discretionary funds that are transferred to other agencies should be
supported by approved agreements signed by both parties or by
specific approval from the Governing Board that is documentad in the
Governing Board minutes,

There was no writlen agreement approving the discretionary
supplemental funding provided to Willow Creek Academy {(Charter
School) in fiscal year 2012-13.

MNone. {(This is an administrative comment only to promote better
internal controls and increase fransparancy).

The supplemental funding provided to the Charter School was not
approved in a memorandum of understanding between the District and
the Charter School.  In fiscal year 2012-13, the District provided
$328,876 of supplemental funding to the Charter School. The only
documented approval for this trangler {o the Charler Schoaol was the
Governing Board’s approval of fhe Dislrict’s 2012-13 Budget on
June 28, 2012, which included $328,876 on a line item described as
“Afl Other Transfers Out to All Others”

When firansactions are not supported by appropriste  written
authorization, errors, improprieties, or misinterpretations are more
likety to cceur.

The amount of supplemental funding provided fo Wilow Creek
Academy has been an ongoing process of negotiations between the
District and Charter School.

The supplemental funding provided to the Charter School should be
approved in a memorandum of understanding between the District and
Charter Schoot so the Business Manager has documented
authorization to support the transfers of supplemental funding to the
Charter School.

The District strongly agrees and will require that all agreements be
formalized in writing, in the form of 2 memorandum of understanding
{(MOLU), contract, or agreement.

74

104 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION Ul - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

13- 5710000
SIGRIFICANT DEFICIENCY
ATTENDANCE
Criteria; 1-3.
Conditions: 1.
2.
3,
Cluestioned Costs: -3,
Cordext: 1-3.
HHfect 1-3.
Causes: 1.

In accordance with Education Code Section 46000, altendance in ali
schools and classes shall be recorded and keplt according to
regulations prascribed by the State Board of Education.

One special day class student was misclassified as a regular
education student.

The average daily atfendance for some special day class students was
reporied hwice.

The “alt day” absence code o record student attendance, whenever a
student was absent for the entire day, was not consistently used by the
attendances clerk,

Average daily aftendance (ADA}, reported on the P-2 and Annual
attendance reports was understated/(overstaled) by the foltowing
amounts. There is no significant fiscal impact of this finding as the
District is funded under the Basic Ald provision; howeaver the District
may experience reduced categorical funding and SELPA funding as a
result of this finding, which has not been calculated.

iine  Program Pz Annual
A-2  Grades 1-3 {0.76) {G.78)
A-3  Grades 4-6 (0.36) {0.30)
A4 CGrades 7-8 (0.33) {041
A-S  Bpeciat Educalion - SBC 076 {0.08)
A-10  Spedial Education - Nonpublic {1.80) (1.58)
A-15  Extended Year - Nonpublic 0.27

Totals (2.2} (3.18}

The errors were noted during the review of supporting documents for
the P-2 and Annual attendance reports.

The District overstated the total ADA reporied to the State in fiscal year
2012-13.

The attendance clerk did not review the “Monthly Attendance
Summary” repoit which showed the SDC teacher being reported under
the regular education classes for one grade level instead of under
Program 5 for the SDC class.

75
105 of 242



SALUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JURNE 30, 2013

SECTICN Hi - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

ATTENDANCE (CONCLUDEDRY

Causes (Concluded):

Recommendations:

District Response:

2.

Attendancs reports are not independently reviewad for accuracy prior
to belng submitied to the State.

The District has not established formal procedures and documentation
requirameants to ensure that the use of “all day” absence codes and the
verification of partial day versus full day absences is properly being
performed and documented by site personnel.

The District should establish procedures to ensure that site attendance
clarks review monthly aftendance reports to ensure that the average
daily attendance for SDC pupils is properly reported in Program S
instead of the regular education program.

The District should esiablish procedures to ensure that attendance
raports are independently reviewed for accuracy prior to submiiting the
attendance reports fo the Slate.

The District should establish format procedures and documentation
requirements to ensure that the use of “ali day” absence codes and the
varification of partial day versus full day absences is properly being
performed and documentad by site parsonnel.

in addition, the District should revise the P-2 and Annual aftendance
raports fo refiect the audited numbers on page 55 of this report,

The District has provided written Instructions and additional training {o
the attendance clesk {school site secretary). The District will continue
to work with the aftendance clerk and school site administration 1o
emphasize the importance of reviewing accurate monthly alfendance
so that once the District Office receives and runs the reports there will
be less errors.

76

106 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDRULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

BSECTION HI - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

13 - 6 146000

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENGY

CLASS SIZE REDUCTION

Criteria:

Condition:

Cuestioned Cosls:

Context:

Effect:

Cause:

Racommendation:

In accordance with Education Code Section 52124.5, school districts
and charter schools should compute the average daily enrcllment for
each class by adding the aclive enroliment for each class for sach
instructional day starting from the first day of instruction through
Aprit 15, and dividing that total by the count of instructional days.

The District did not compute the average daily snroliment for each
participating class in accordance with Education Code Seclion
52124.5.

Class size reduction funding claimed in fiscal year 2012-13 was
cverstated by $9,638. (€ ineligible pupils x $1,071)

The District complied with all other class size reduction program
compliance reguirements.

The District claimed more funding than it was entitled to receive for
fiscal year 2012-13, based on the actual number of eligible pupils
served in gualifying class size reduction classeas.

The raport normally used by the District to calculate average daily
enrofiment was not avallable at the time the Form J-7CSK report was
due to the State and the substitule report used by the District did not
accurately calculate the average daily enroliment for each participating
class.

The District should develop procedures o ensure thal the average
daily enrofiment for each pariicipaling class claimed for funding is
calculated in accordance with Education Code Sechion 521245
in addifion, the District should file a revised Form J7TCOSR for fiscal
year 2012-13 with the following class sizes reported:

Class Size

Grade Level 13 14 18 18 Totals
Kindergarten 1
Grade One

Grade Two 1
Grade Three 1

Total Classes i 1 g 1

s

N A e

Total Eligible Pupils 13 14 16 18 51

77
107 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTHRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION il - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

CLASS SIZE REDUCTION (CONCLUDED)

District Responsge: The District is working closely with technical support staff to ensure
that all software upgrades are implemented so that alfernatives
reports are not needed to be used

78
108 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR EMDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION Il - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

13- 772000

SIGRIFICANT DEFICIENCY

SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT CARD

Criteria:

Condition:

Questionad Costs:

Context:

Effact:

Cause:

Recommaendation:

On November 8, 1988, California voters passed Proposition 88, also
known as The Classroom Instructional Improvement and
Accountability Act. This baliot initiative provides California public
schools with a stable source of funding. in return, all pubiic schools in
California are required to prepare school accountabillity report cards on
an annual basis and disseminate tham fo the public.

The District did not publish a school accountabilily report card for
Bayside Elermentary Schoeol and Mariin Luther King Jr. Academy for
fiscal year 2012-13.

None.

There were no complainis noted on the guarterly report of summarized
complaint data in fiscal year 2012-13. The District completed OPSC’s
Facility Inspaction Tool for both school sites in Cctober 2012 The
District approved a compliant resolution regarding the sufficiency of
taxthooks and instructionad materials for fiscal vear 2012-13 within the
first eight weeks of the school year.

The District did not comply with the requirements of Proposition 98 and
tharefore did not comply with any of the additional requirements added
since the passage of Proposiiion $8.

The employee responsible for the publication of the schodl
accountability report card was on medical leave for a portion of the
2012-13 fiscal vear, and later retired from the District. Due to budget
cuis in administration, the District chose not to hire a replacement for
that position, and those responsibilities were abserbed by other District
personnel.  in addition, the Disfrict Office moved locations in the
summer of 2013 due fo the ongeing consbruction required for the
consolidation of the two school sites,

The District should establish procedures to ensure that the required
school accountability report cards are prepared for all school sites on
an annual basis and disseminated to the public in accordance with
Proposition 98. In addition, the District should contact the Califomnia
Department of Education to determine i the District needs to take
further action as a result of this finding.

79

109 of 242



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY BCHOGL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FIBCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION HI - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONGLUDED)

SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT CARD {CONCLUDED)

District Hesponge: The Uistrict will established procedures fo ensure that the required
school accountability report cards are prepared for all school sites on

an annual basis and disseminated to the public in accordance with
Froposition 98,

a0

110 of 242



BAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2013

Recommendations

FINAMNCIAL STATEMENT

12 - 1730000

FINANGIAL REPORTING - UNAUDITED
ACTUALS

The District should develop a
somprehansive financial reporiing checklist
to ensure all relevant areas are covered
during the year-end closing process.

12 - 2130000

MEAL REIMBURSEMENT CLAIM
REPORTING

The District should revise the meal
reimbursement  claims  for  the months
November 2011 and March 2012 for the
accumulation errors noted.  In addition, the
District  should  investigate whether an
automated system can be implemenied at
the elementary sife lo accumuiate meal
scounts and reduce eTors,

12 - 3130000
CAFETERIA FUND ENCROACHMENT

The Disirict should Investigate program
changes that will aflow the Cafeteria Fund
to operate closer fo a break-even basis and
hacome less dependent on General Fund
contributions.

STATE AWARDS

12 - 4716000

ATTENDANCE REPORTING

The District should establish proceduras to
ensure  thal  allendance reporis  are
independently reviewed for accuracy and
completensss  prior o submilling the
attendance reports to the state.

Current Status

Partially
implemented

implemented

Not
implemented

Not
implemeried

81
111 of 242

Explanation f Not
Fully Implemented

Comment Repeated
{Finding 13-1}

Comment Repeaaied
{Finding 13-2)

Comment Repeated
{Finding 13-5}



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR EMDED JUNE 30, 2013

Recommendations

STATE AWARDS (CONCLUDED)

12 - 4716000

ATTENDANCE REPORTING (CONCLUDED]}

The District should estabilsh procedures {o
ensure  site persennel properly  handle
student enrollment and disenroliment from
the attendance system.

The District should revise the P-2 and
Annual attendance reporls o reflect the
audited numbers.

12 - § 110000

KINDERGARTEN CONTINUANGCE

The District should instruct personnel at the
elementary school site fo maintain a
separate flile for approved kindergarten
continuation forms completed each year.
The District should revise the P-2 and
Arnnual attendance reports to reflect the
audited numbers.

12 - 6 1 40000

AFTER SCHOOL EDUCATION AND
SAFETY PROGRAM - ATTENDANCE

The District should establish procedures o
ensure that after school staff reconcile daily
attendance folals {o thelr  monthiy
attendance fotal reports.  in addition, the
District  should esiagblish  procedures to
agnsure that site monthly attendance report
totals are accurately entered onic the
District's attendance summary worksheet.

Explanation If Not

Current Status Fully implernented

Implamentad

implemented

tmplemenied

implemented

82

112 of 242



Sausalito Marin Cily Schoo! District

Agenda [tem: 9.02 Drate: January 14, 2014

___________ Correspondence
__ Reports
General Functions
_ Pupil Services
Personnel Services
X __ Financial & Business Procedures

_ Curriculum and Instruction
Policy Development

__Consent Agenda

item Requires Board Action: X item is for Information Only:

ttem: Willow Creek Academy Audit Report for 2012-2013

Background:
The Willow Creek Academy Audit for fiscal vear ended June 30, 2013, prepared by Vicenti Lloyd & Stutzman
LLP, was received in early December and distributed to WCA’s Board at its [ecember meeting.

The audit includes examining evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in WCA financial statements.
There were no audit findings for the prior vear; there were no required responses,

Clark Warden or a representative from WCA will be present to discuss the audit in general and answer any
guestions from the Board,

Fiscal Impact:
None

Becommendation:

The Board of Directors for Willow Creek Academy recommends acceptance of the audit for the year ending
June 30,2013,

Preparved for: Steve Van Zant
Prepared by: P. Rigney

113 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY

{A California Non-Profit
Public Benefit Corporation)

Andited Financial Statements
for the Year Ended
June 30, 2813

114 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

June 36, 2013
Page
Independent Auditor's REPOTT ...ttt j-2
Statement of FInancial POSHION vttt ebe s 3
Saternient OF ACTIVIHIES it st raessm s e s 4
Statement 0f Casht FLOWS .o s e 5
Notes to Financial STaISMENLS. ..ot a s eres s ees 6-8
History and Organmizalion ot eaess e rs e sess e erseaes s 9
Schedule of Expenditures by State Cate@Ories vt s 1o
Schedule of Instructional MINUIES oot s il
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA) i i2
Reconciliation of Anmual Financial Report with Audited Financial

SEAEEIMIEIIIS .t eret ettt en ettt b es e e e s et e b st es s s st bnsn s I3
Notes to Supplementary Information ... 14

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.....ooeiiveceveeeeen... 15-16
independent Auditor's Report on State Compliance ... 17-18
Scheduie of Findings and ReSpOnses oot een e e 19
Scheduie of Prior Year Findings and ReSpOnses ..o 20

115 of 242



K § LLP

BUSINESS CONSULTANTS AND ©€Pa-

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Direciors
Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito, CA

Report on the Financial Statements '. |

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Willow Creek Academy (the Academy), a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation, which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2013, and the related statements of actmtses and cash ﬂows ﬁ}r the ye,&r then ended, and the
related notes to {he fiz]aima] statements. o

Management’s Respﬂnsﬁibﬂi&y for the Finaaciai Statements. ..o

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

pmsentation cf f‘ nanuai smtemants that are frec ﬁom materlai misstatement whgther due to ﬁcu,id O ITOr.

Audxmr s Respens;bﬂzw

Qur ;'espanmb;ht\; is to exp;ess an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards appizcabie to: financial audits contained " Government Auditing Stavdards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
.1-

2210 E. Route 66, Suite 100, Glendora, CA 91740
857, i .CO ) NVESLLPLC
Tl 626.857.7300 | rx 626.857.7302 E1E1“£§E'OEF}5?§)W"SE“W COM | weh WWW . VISLLP.COM



Board of Directors
Willow Creek Academy

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Academy as of June 30, 2013, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying supplementary schedules on pages 10-13 are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the finaneial statements as a whole.

Other Renorting Reauired by Government Auditine Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 17, 2013
on our consideration of the Academy’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of this report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Govermment Auditing Standards in considering the Academy’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

VICENTL LLOYD & STUTZMAN Lip
Glendora, CA
November 17, 2613

R

117 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
{A California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 34, 2013

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - state and local governments
Prepaid expenses

Taotal current assets

LONG-TERM ASSETS:
Buildings
Equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation

‘Total long-term assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AMND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued Habilities

Total current labilities
Total Habilities
MNET ASSETS:
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Total Habilities and net assets

£ 279,728
380,791
1,433

661,952

54,335
27,616

(37,254)
44.697

$ 706,649

$ 131,66t
131,594

263,285

263,285

443,364
443,364
3 706,649

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

23
118 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
{A California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2613

REVENUES:

Revenue in-licu of property taxes
State revenue:

State apportionment

Block grant - categorical

Lottery revenue

Other state revenue
Federal revenue:

Osher federal revenue
Other local revenue:

Interest income

Other revenue

Total unrestricted revenues

EXPENSES:

Program services:
Educational programs
Support services:
General and administrative

Total expenses
Increase in unrestricted net asscts
Beginning unrestricted net assets

Ending unrestricted net assets

$ 1,438,510
55,620
172,153
43,130
94,911
119,259

349

668,312
2,592.244

2,201,422

283,719

2.485.141

107,103

336,261
$ 443364

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

A
119 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
(A California Non-Frofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 36, 2013

CASH FLOWS from OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in Net Assets

$ 167,103
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets {o net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 7.686
{Increase) and decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable - state and local governments (68.517)
Prepaid expenses 750
increase and (decrease) in operating Habilities:
Accounts payable (12,166}
Accrued Habilities 28,532
Net cash provided by operating activities 63,388
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 63,388
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 216,340

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 279728

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5
120 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
{A California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 36, 2613

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Nature of Activities — Willow Creek Academy (the Academy) is a California non-profit
public benefit corporation and is organized to operate a K-8 Charter Academy and is
sponsored by Sausalito Marin City Academy District (the Distriet). The charter was
granted on March 2001 by the District.

Willow Creek Academy is funded principaily through the State of California public
education monies received through the California Department of Education and the
District.

The charter may be revoked by the District for material violations of the charter, failure
to meet pupil outcomes identified in the charter, failure to meet generally accepted
standards of fiscal management, or vietation of any provision of the law.

Net Asset Classes ~ The Academy is required to report information regarding its finanicial
position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily

restricted, and permanently restricted.

Net assets of the Academy consist of the following:

& Unrestricted:  All resources over which the governing board has discretionary
control to use in carrying on the general operations of the Academy.

® Temporarily restricted: These net assets are restricted by donors o be used for
specitic purposes. The Academy does not currently have any temporarily restricted
net assets.

8 Permanently restricted: These net assets are permanently restricted by donors and

cannot be used by the Academy. The Academy does not curtently have any
permanently restricted net assets.

Revenue Recognition — Amounts received from the California Department of Education
are recognized as revenue by the Academy based on the average daily attendance (ADA)
of students. Revenue that is restricted is recorded as an increase in unrestricted net assets
if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All
other restricted revenues are reported as increases in temporarily restricted net assets.

-6-
121 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACABDEMY
(A California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 38, 2013

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (countinued)

Cash and Cask Eguivalents — The Academy defines its cash and cash equivalents to
include only cash on hand, demand deposits, and liquid investments with original

maturities of three months or less.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities

and disclosure. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Accounting — The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual
method of accounting and accordingly reflect all significant recetvables and other

Hiabilities.

Functional Allocation of Expenses — The cost of providing the various programs and
other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supportive

services benefited.

Land, Buildings and Eguipment — Land, buildings and equipment are stated at cost if
purchased or at estimated fair market value it donated. Depreciation of buildings and
equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The Academy capitalizes all expenditures for land, buildings and eguipment in

excess of $3,000.

Income Taxes — The Academy is a non-profit entity exempt from the payment of income
taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)3) and California Hevenue and
Taxation Code Section 23701d.  Accordingly, no provision has been made for income
taxes. The Academy has evaluated its tax positions and the certainty as to whether those
positions will be sustained in the event of an audit by taxing authorities at the federal and
state levels. The primary tax positions evaluated are related to the Academy’s continued
qualification as a tax-exempt organization and whether there is unrelated business income
activities conducted that would be taxable. Management has determined that all income
tax positions are more likely than not (>50%) of being sustained upon potential audit or

examination; therefore, no disclosures of uncertain income tax positions are required.

The Academy files informational returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and the state of
California. The statute of limitations for federal and California state purposes is generally

three and four years, respectively.

-
122 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
{A Calfornia Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

Evaluation of Subsequent Events — The Academy has evaiuated subsequent evenis
through November 17, 2013, the date these financial statements were available to be
issued. There were no subsequent events requiring recognition or disclosure.

NOTE 2 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK:

The Academy maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts at various institutions.
Accounts at these institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDICY up to $250,000. At times, cash in these accounts exceeds the insured amounts.
The Academy has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not
exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Accounts receivable consists of funds due from state and federal governments, therefore
no provisions for uncollectible accounts were recorded.

NOTE4-EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS:

The Academy offers an Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) retirement plan to each of
its qualifying employees. Employer and employee contributions are used to purchase
annuily contracts for each participant emplovee. Employer matching contributions are
made at the rate equal to 50 percent of the first two percent of elective deferrals for each
employee who is eligible for employer contributions.  Additionally, the employer may
elect to make a discretionary contribution for each qualifying emplovee for each plan
year. The amount of employer contributions used to purchase annuity contracts for the
vear ended June 30, 2013 was $54,754.

NOTE S - CONTINGENCIES:

The Academy has received state and federal funds for specific puiposes that are subject
to review and audit by the granior agencies. Although such audits could generate
disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement
would not be material.

.8
123 of 242



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

124 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
{A California Non-FProfit Public Bepefit Corporation)

HISTORY AND ORCANIZATION
June 38, 2013

Willow Creek Academy {(the Academy) is a California non-profit public benetit corporation and
is organized to operate a K-8 Charter Academy and is sponsored by Sausalito Marin City
Academy District (the District). The charter was granted on March 2001 by the District.

The District granted the charter through June 30, 2014,

The charter Academy number 15 0351,

The Board of Directors and the Administrator for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 were as
follows:

Board of Directors

Member Ofice Term Expires
Orlando Lobo President 2016
Phil Kerr Vice President 2316
Jeffrey Knowles Secretary 2013
Clark Warden Treasurer 2014
Kathy Pearson Member 2013
Kurt Weinsheimer Member 2016
Glen Hayashi Member 2016
Douglas Lioyd Member 2016
Sue Krenek Member 2013
Robert Greene Member 2014
Johnathan Logan Member 2015
Adminisirator
Caroline Cooper Head of Academy

0.

125 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
{A California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURKS BY STATE CATEGORIES
For the Year Ended June 38, 2013

Certificated salaries

Classified salaries

Employee benefits

Books and supplies

Services and other operating expenses
Depreciation

Total

See the notes to the supplementary information.

-10-
126 of 242

Program Support

Services Services Total
$1.0603581 % - $1,060,581
446,087 59,531 5365618
280,311 16,049 290,360
136,871 21,194 158,165
269,786 192,945 462,731
7,686 7,656
$2201,422 § 283,719 $2,485,141




WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY

{A California Nop-Profit Public Benelfit Corporation)

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES
For the Year Ended Jupe 30, 2013

2012-13 Minutes

Requirement Reduced Actual Status
Kindergarten 36,000 34971 56,550 In compliance
Grade 1 50,400 48,960 57,650 in compliance
Grade 2 54,400 48.960 57,650 in compliance
Grade 3 50,400 48,960 57.640 in compliance
Grade 4 54,000 52,457 57,6580 in compliance
Grade 5 34,000 52,457 57,690 In compliance
{rade 6 34,060 52,457 57,650 In compliance
Grade 7 54,000 32,457 57,690 in compliance
Grade 8 54,000 52,457 57,690 In comphance

See the notes to the supplementary information.

-1i-
127 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
{A California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DALY ATTENDANCE {ADA)
Yor the Year Ended June 30, 2613

Second Period Annual Report
Classroom Classroom
Based Total Based Total
Kindergarten 5635 56.35 56.69 56.69
Grades 1 through 3 106.54 106.54 107.32 107.32
Grades 4 through 6 66.93 66.93 66.93 66.93
Grades 7 through 8 48.28 48.28 48.08 43.08
ADA Totals 278.10 278.10 279.02 279.02

See the notes to the supplementary information.

12~
128 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
(A California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 34, 2013

There were ne differences between the net assets reported on the June 30, 2013 audited financial
statements and the Annual Financial Report fund balances (net assets).

See the notes to the supplementary information.

-13-
129 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
(& California Nop-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 38, 2013

NOTE { - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Al

Schedule of Lxpenditures by State Categories

This schedule presents expenses by the object codes according to state categories
for analysis purposes.

Schedule of Instructional Minutes

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by
the Academy and whether the Academy complied with the provisions of Education
Code Sections 46200 through 46206,

=chedule of Averase Daily Attendance (ADA)

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending
classes of the Academy. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal
standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state funds are made
to the Academy. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of
students at various grade levels.

Reconciliation of Avnual Financial Report with Audited Financial
Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance (net
assets) of the Academy as reported on the Annual Financial Report form to the
audited financial statements.

14
130 of 242



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito, CA

We have audited, in accordance with the audﬁmg standards g@negaiiv acccpicd in.the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptrotler General of the United States, the financial statements of Willow Creek Academy
(the Academy), 2 California swmp;of t pubim benefit corporation, as of and for. the. year, “ended June 30,
2013, and the related notes to-the financial statements, which collectively -comprise - the Auademy g
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated Novemiber 17, 201 3.

Entemai ii‘ﬁnt;‘ﬁi ()%r ?énanciai Reg}arting o

In planning and performing our audit of financial statements, we considered the Amdem s internal control
over financial: z‘cportmg {internal control} to determine the di “procedures that are appropriate in the
urc*zmstances for they purpos&: of expressing our opinion on the é_ncial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing aﬂ Gpmzou ‘G the cffec‘:wf::ness ofithe Acaciemv s internal. aoﬂtmi'- over imanua& reporting.
Accordingly, we. do m‘at expm' san Opmmn on t%xe @fiectwe:mss ef the Academy mtamcd control.

A deficiency in mz‘ef mi -'wnfmf" E‘:‘{IQiS when the dsszgn or Opﬁti&tl@ﬁ ef a cemrol does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course: of performing: their. asszgned “functions, to prevent or
detect and correct, misstatements onza timely basis. A material'w ieakne. ‘a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control; such that there is a reasonable pm&zbﬂﬂyihat a material misstatement of
the Academy’s financial statements Wiii not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deﬁc&ez‘;cy, ora combination of {ieﬁuumies in'internal control that 1s less severe
than & material weakness, yet :mportant enouﬁh to meut dttenimn by ihose charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal canm}i O'sf&i“ iiﬂanuai i‘epoﬂinﬁ was %Or the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to jdentify. all deficiencies in internal contro! that might
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control t}m we! wrzsxder to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

-15-

2210 E. Routle 66, Suite 160, Glendora, CA 91740
T 626.857.7300 | rax 626.857.7302 1 SHbREEVISLLP.COM | Web WWW. VLSLLP.COM



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTY
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDY

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Academy’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opmon. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Governmeni Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance

and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal

control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Govermment Aud:ng Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

VICENTE, mm & STUTZMAN 11p
Glendora, CA
November 17, 2013

-16-
132 of 242



B USINESS CONGSULTRAR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Board of Directors
Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito, CA

We have audited the compliance of Willow Creek Academy (the Academy) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 2012-13 Standards and Procedures for. Audits of California K-12 Local
Educational Agencies, published by the -Education Audit Appeals Panel for the year ended June 30, 2613,
The Academy’s State compliance requirements are identified inthe table below.

Management’s Responsibility

Compliance with the %tate iaws and wfuiamﬁs as zdemzﬁed beiow is ihe i‘EonnSibﬂEW of the Academy’s
mdn;i(rcmg;m e e

Aunditor’s Responﬁlb;hw

Cur respon&bz ity is to express an op;mon on ihe Academy’s compliance based on our &Udlt of the types of
compliance referred to below. We conducted our audit of compliance in accor dance with auditing standards
generaily accented in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standaurds,-issued by the Comptroller: General of the United States. and the 26/2-13
Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Educational Agenc:eg pizbhsheé by the
Educatior - Audat Appeais Panel. Those standards require that "é' P 1‘;*.531(% perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether mncompiiame with the: speczf ic areas listed _below ims occurred. An
audit includes 'exa:mnmg ‘on atest basis,” evidence abeui, the. Academjy S comphanca with those
requirements and- per fermmg such h other pmcedur@s as W OiiSidCi ed necessaz'y n the - circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for ou plﬂi()ﬁ on State compl! 1ame ‘Our audit does not
provide a legal determmdim o;‘” the Acadcmy s compisance mﬁx thow ;equzrements

Compliznce Requiremfeﬁis .Tested . :

in connection with the audit. refmred 1:0 above we selected and tesied trg,nsacﬂons and records to determine
the Academy’s compliance with iha iaws and reouh“{isns appiicabia *éo the foliowing items:

oo R :R_r{}cedlzms n Procedures
Description e e Audit Guide Performed

Attendance accounting:

Attendance reporting : 6 Not applicable
Teacher Certification and ‘vhsas&gnment% 3 Not applicable
Kindergarten continuance 3 Not applicable
Continuation education 10 Not applicable
Independent study 23 Not applicable

-17-
ZZT0 . Boute 66, Suite 1090, Glendora, CA 91740

Tl 626.857.7300 | rx 626.857.7302 § 380 VISLIP.COM | web WWW . VISLLP.COM



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Procedures In

Description Audit Guide
Instructional time:

School Districts &

County Offices of Education 3
Class size reduction program (including charter Schoolg):

General requirements 7

Option | 3

Option 2 4

One School serving K-3 4
Instructional materials general requirements 8
Katios of administrative employees to teachers t
Classroom teacher salaries i
Early refirement incentive 4
GANN limit calculation i
School Accountability Report Card 3
Juvenile Court Schools 8
After School Education and Safety Program:

General requirements

After School 5

Before School 6
Charter Schools:

Conternporaneous records of attendance 1

Mode of Instruetion 1

Nonclassroom—based instructional/independent study 15

Determination of funding for nonclassroom—based instruction 3

Annual instructional minutes — classroom based 4

Opinicn on State Compliance

In our opinion, the Academy complied with the Taws and regulations of the state programs referred to

above in all material respects for the vear ended June 30, 2013,

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on state compliance is solely to describe the results of testing based on the
requirements of the 2012-13 Standards and FProcedures for Audils of California K-12 Local Education
Agencies, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any

other purpose.

VICENTL LLOYD & STUTZMAN wop
Glendora, CA
November 17, 2013

18-
134 of 242

Procedures
Performed

Not applicable
Not applicable

Yes

Yes
Not applicable

Yes
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

Yes

Yes
Not applicabie
Not applicable

Yes



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
{A California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AWND RESPONSES
June 30, 20613

ATl audit findings must be identified as one or more of the following cleven categories:

Five Digit Code Finding Tvpes
10000 Attendance
20000 Inventory of Equipment
30060 Internal Control
400600 State Compliance
41000 CalSTRS
50000 Federal Compliance
60000 Miscellaneous
61000 Classroom Teachers Salaries
70000 Instructional Materials
71000 Teacher Misassignments
72000 Academy Accountability Report Card

There were no findings for the year ended June 30, 2013,

19
135 of 242



WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
{A California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation)

SCHEDULFE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
June 30, 2613

There were no findings for the yvear ended June 30, 2012,

-20-
136 of 242



i 4 LLP
C P As

Movember 17, 2013

To the Board of Directors of
Willow Creek Academy

We have audited the financial statements of Willow Creek Academy (the Academy) for the vear
ended June 30, 2013, and. have issued our- reports” thereon dated November 17, 2013,
respectively. Professional standards require that we “provide you with information about our
tcspomibsimus under gener&liy accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards,
as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our-audit; We have
communicated such information in ‘our letter to you dated April 18, 2012. Professional standards
also require that we communicate to you the following information refated to our audit,

Significant Audit Findings . .

Ozzahmme Aspeczs af Accaum‘ma Pf’(fclgc,eg R

Mczzmoement is ieﬁg}onszbia for the seiectm;} and use ef appmpnate accauntmg pohs;: es. The
significant accoummg peiicms used- bv the Acaﬁem}z are described in'Note 1 to. the financial
statements. No new accounting pohmcs were adopted ;md tﬁe &’ppilbaﬂi)ﬂ of xisimg policies has
not changed during the year ended June 30; 2012: We noted no transactions entered into by the
Academy during the’ year. for which there is a’ iack-ﬂi auﬂmnt&twe guld&nca or consensus. All
significant transactions have bwn umamzecﬁ inthe ﬁndncfai statements m the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an mtegmi p:m of the financial statemeﬁts ;}repared by management
and are based on management’s. k:éowicdﬂa and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events, Certam accoummg estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financia! statements and because’ of the ‘possibility that future events
affecting them may differ swmﬁcaﬂtl}f ﬁ'om thOSv expectcd Wﬁ evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop estimates in dﬁtermmmv that they are reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole. See the &ttached &chedule of accounting estimates.

Certain financial statement disclosures ar’e”p’aftéc&ii’&ﬂy"sensitive because of their significance {o
financial statement users.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

2210 E. Route 66, Suite 100, Glendora, CA 91740
W 626.857.7300 | ra 626.857.7302 I 8T0MELFRVLSLLP.COM | Wab WWW VLSLLP.COM



To the Board of Directors
Willow Creek Academy
Page 2

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing ocur audit,

Caorrected and Uncorrecied Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no adjustments made during the audit.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Meanagement Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated NMovember 17, 2013,

Management Consullations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on cerfain situations. I 2
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the Academy’s financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinton that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

138 of 242



To the Board of Directors
Willow Creek Academy
Page 3

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matiers, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Academys’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and
our responses were not a condition of our retention,

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

We are not aware of other documents that contain the audited financial statements; if such
documents are fo be published, we have a responsibility to determine that such financial
information is materially consistent with the audited statements of the Academy.

Closing

We will be pleased to respond to any questions you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the
opportunity to continue to be of service to the Academy.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors, management and others
within the Academy and s not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

ot ol Sl LLP

VICENTE LLOYD & STUTZMAN LLP
Glendora, CA

139 of 242



Witlow Creek Academy

Swnmary of Significant Accourtting Estimates

Accounting estimaies are an integral part of the preparation of the financial statements and are based upon
management’s current judgment, The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and
experience about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to
moritor throughout the year the process used to determing and record these accounting estimates. The
following describes the significant accounting estimates reflected in the Academy’s June 30, 2013 financial
statements:

Estimate Accounting Policy Management’s Basis for Our
Estimation Process Conciusions on
Reasonableness of
Estimate
Valuation of Management does not Management believes We reviewed
receivables record an allowance for | receivables are management’s estimate
doubtful accounts, collectible since most noting the method and
are from governmental | assumptions were
uniis. However, reasonable and in
management reviews accordance with generally
individual recetvable accepted accounting

balances at vear end to | principles {GAAP)
evaluate the appropriate | requirements,
allowance, if any.

Fixed assets and Management Management reviews We reviewed
depreciation depreciates fixed assets | fixed asset Hsting and management’s estimate
on a straight-line basis estimates usefu! life neting the method and
over the astimated based on industry assumptions were
useful Hives of the norms. Any impairment | reasonable and in
assets. of fixad assets is accordance with generally
identified on an annual | accepted accounting
basis. principles {GAAP)
requirements.
Allocation of The costs of providing Throughout the vear We reviewed
functional expenses various programs and management codes management’s estimate
activitics have been certain expenses based | noting the method and
summarized on & on a functional assumptions were
functional basis in the classification. For other | reasonable, consistent with
Statement of Activities. | expenses, management | prior vears, and in
Accordingly, certain | prepares an analysis of | accordance with applicable
costs have been the expense recognized | GAAP requirements.
allocated among the to data and calculates
programs and the allocation.

supporting services
based on management’s
estimates.

140 of 242



Sausalito Marin City Schoel District

Agenda ltem: 9.03 frate: January 14, 2014
Correspondence X Consent Agenda
_____________ ~ Reports

General Functions
_ Pupil Services
______ _Personnel Services
X __ Financial & Business Procedures
. Curriculum and Instruction
Policy Development

ftem Requires Board Action: X item is for Information Unly:
ftem: Audit Contract for Year End June 30, 2014

Background:

The Board bas a three (3) year contract with Stephen Roatch Accountancy Corporation for the 2012/2013,
2013/2014 and 2014/2015 school years. The auditing firm’s policy is to send out an annual engagement letter
for the District to sign, even with a multi-year contract, so the Board is aware of the various responsibilities for
both parties.

Stephen Roateh Accountancy Corporation will conduct the district’s 2013-2014 annual financial audit to
analyze all reports and make suve that the district is in compliance. The audit will focus on the following areas:
s Audit objectives: audit will be conducted in conformity and accordance with auditing standards
generally aceepted in U.S. and the standards for Governmental Auditing Standards, CA Code of
Regulations, Title 5, Education, Section 19810 and Education Audit Appeals Panel’s Standards and
Procedures for Audits of CA K-12 Local Education Agencies
» Review Management’s Responsibilities
¢ Review District’s general auditing procedures, internal controls, compliance, ete.

Fiseal Impact:
The cost of this audit is $16,300 including reimbursable expenses.

Recommendation:
This item is brought before the board for review and discussion.

Prepared for: Steve Van Zant
Prepared by: P. Rigney

141 of 242



STEFHEN ROATCH ACOCOUNTARNCY CORFORATION
ertified Publio Accountanis cszmhm; Rostoh - Preskient
Habkhas MNassar - Vice President

December 23, 2013

Management and Governing Board of
Sausalito Marin City School District
30 Nevada Glrest

Sausalito, CA 94965

Year 2 of 3 vear contract

This letter confirms that Sausalitc Marin City Schoeo! Disirict has requested our firm to perform only the
audii services described in this letter, and has not requestad owr firm to progide any specific internal control
review of fraud audit service, This L%zier also confirms our understanding of the terms and objectives of our
audit engagement and the nature and imitations of the services we will orovide,

We are pleased {o confirm cur understanding of the services we are to provide Sausalifo Marin City Schaoo!
Disirict for the fiscal vear ending June 30, 2014, We will audit the financial statements of the governmenial
activiiies, each maior fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the reiated notes fo the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial stalements of Sausalito Marin City
School District as of and for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, Accounting standards generaily acceplied
in the Uniled States of America provide for cerain required supplementary information (RS1), such as
management’s discussion and anslysis (MD&AY, to supplement Sausalito Marin City School District’s basic
financial staiemenis. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Government Accounting Standards Board who considers i {0 be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial siatements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As
part of our engagement, we will apply certaln limited procedures to Sausalitc Marin City School District's
RSl in accordance with auditing standards generally accepled in the United States of America. These
limitad procedures will consist of inguiries of management regarding the methods of oreparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and ofher knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
fmited procedures do not provide us with sufficlent evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance. The following REl is required by gensrally accepted accounting principles and will be sublected
fo certain limited procedurss, but will not be audited:

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
2. Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances budgetary comparison for
the General Fund and each Major Special Revenue Fund that has an adopted budget.

We have also been engagsd o report on supplementary information other than R8! that accompanies
Sausalito Marin City School District’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary
information io the auditing proceduras applisd in our audit of the financial siatements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciiing such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statemanis themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generailly accepted in the United States of
America and will provide an opinton on it in relation to the financial statements as 3 whole.

1. Schedule of expenditures of faderal awards.

2. Combining statements and the remaining schedutes included in the supplementary informatio
saction of the audit,

PO Box 2196 @ Folsom, CA 9678321964 Bof P4 (216) 0GA-3882 8 Fax (018) 98B-3B18



Management and Governing Board of
Sausalitc Marin City School District
December 23, 2013

Page Two of Eight

Audit Oblectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your basic financial statements are
fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
and to report on the fairmess of the supplementary information referred fo in the second paragraph when
considerad i relation to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducled in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for
financial audits contained in Govemnment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrofier General of the
tnitad States, and will include tests of the accounting records of Sausalitc Marin City Schoot District and
other procedures we consider necessary o enable us fo express such opinions. We cannol provide
assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it Is necessary
for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matier or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions on
the financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. 1
circumstances occur related o the condition of your records, the availability of sufficient, appropriate
audit evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstaternent of the financial staterments
caused by arror, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which In our professionat
judgment prevent us from completing the audit or foriming an opinion on the financial statements, we
retain the right to take any course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to
axpress an opinion orissue a report, or withdrawing from the engagement,

We will also provide 2 report {that does not include an opinion) on internal control refated to the financiat
statermnents and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agresments,
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statemenis as required by
Government Auditing Standards. The reports on internal control and compliance will each include &
paragraph that states that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of tasting of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance, and the result of that testing, and not o provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financlal reporting or on compliance, and that the
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering internal controf over financial reporting and compliance. The paragraph will also state that e
report is not suitable for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that Sausalito Marin
City School District is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this
engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in
accordance with U.8. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual
reguirements,

Management Responsibiiitiss

Management is responsible for the nonaudit services we provide and all accompanying information as
well as all representations contained therein. Nonaudit services include preparation of your financial
statements, note disclosures, GASB 34 conversion entries, depreciation schedule, schedule of federal
awards, and proposing standard, adjusting, or correcting journal entries or other changes affecting the
financial statements. Management is responsible for making all management decisions and performing
all management functions relating to these nonaudit services. The scope of the nonaudit services does
not constitute an audit conducted under Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS )
Management is also responsible for identifying government award programs and understanding and
complying with the compliance requirements. As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your
financial statements, note disclosures, GASR 34 conversion entries, depreciation schedute, schadule of
federal awards, and may propose standard, adjusting, or comrecting journal entries or other changes
affecting the financial statements {nonaudit services).

143 of 242



Management and Governing Board of
Sausalito Marin City School District
December 23, 2013

age Three of Eight

Hanagement Responsibiilties {Continuad)

You will be required io acknowiedge in the wiiiten represeniation letter our assistance with the
oreparation of these nonaudit services and that you have reviewed and approved these nonaudi
services, pricr to thalr issuance and have accepted responsibiiity for them. You agres to assume all
management responsibilities for the nonzudit services we provide;, overaee the services by deasignating
an individual, prefersbly from senior management, who possesses suilable skiff, knowledge, or
expetience, evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for them.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including
avaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriale goals and objectives are
met; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the preparation and falr
presentation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information avaiable fo us
and for ensuring that managemsnt is reliable and financial information is reliable and properly recorded.
You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access io all information of which vou are aware that is
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, (2} additional information that
wa may reqguest for fhe purpese of the audit, and {3) unrestricted access to persons within the District
from whom we determine # necassary to obdaln audit evidence,

Your responsibilities include adiusting the financial statements o correct material misstatements and for
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the sffecis of any uncorrecied misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the lalest period presenied are
immaterigi, noth individually and in the aggregate, to the financial slatements faken as a whole. As part
of our engagement, we may proposs standard, adjusting, or correcting journal entries to your financial
statements. You are responsible for reviewing the entries and understanding the nature of any proposed
antries and the impact they have on the financial statements.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and conirals to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government Involving (1)
managasment, {2) employeess who have significant roles in internad control, and (3} others where the fraud
could have a material effect on the financial statemenis.  Your responsibiiities include informing us of
your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, of others, In addition, you are
responsible for identifving and ensuring that the eniity complies with applicable laws, regulations,
confracts, agreements, and grants, and for {aking Hmely and appropriaie steps to remedy any fraud,
viclations of contracts or grant agreements, or abusa thal we may report.

You are responsible for the preparstion of the supplementary information in conformity with 1.5,
generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report on the supplementary
information in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the supplementary
information. You also agree to include the audited statements with any presentation of the supplementary
information that includes our report thereon or make the audited financial statements readily available to
usars of the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued
with our report thereon. Your responsibiliies include acknowledging to us in the written representation
letter that (1) vou are responsible for presentation of the supplementary informsation in accordance with
GAAP; (2) that you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly
presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) that the methods of measurement or presentation have not
changed from those used in the prior period; and {4} vou have disclosed fo us any significant
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary
information.

144 of 242



Management and Governing Board of
Sausalite Marin City School District
December 23, 2013

Page Four of Eight

Management Responsibilities (Concluded)

With regard to the slectronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements
published electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means (o distribute
information and, therefore, we are not reguired o read the information contained in these sites or fo
consider the consistency of other information in the elecironic site with the original document.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for fracking the status of audit
findings and rscommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous financial
audits, atfestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related fo the objectives discussad
in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying o us corrective actions
iaken to address significant findings and recommendations resulling from those sudits, atiestation
engagements, performance audiis, or other studies. You are responsible for providing management's
views on our currant findings, conclusions, and recommandations, as well as your planned corrective
aclions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that informaiion.

Audit Procadures - General

An audit includes examining, on a lest basis, evidence supborling the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statemeants; therefore, ouwr audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be
examined and the areas fo be i{ested. An audil also inciudes evaluating the appropriatensss of
accounting policies used and the reascnablensss of significant accouniing estimales made by
managemeant, as wall as evaluating the overall pressniation of the financial statements. We will plan and
perform the audit to obiain reascnable rather than absclde assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether from {1} errars, (2) fraudulent financial reporting,
(3} misappropration of assels, or (41 viclations of laws or governmeantal regulations that are atiributable to
the entity or fo acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity. Becauss the
determination of abuse is subjeciive, Gavernment Auditing Sfandards do not expect auditors to provids
reasonable assurance of detecting abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audil, combined with the inherent limilations of internal control,
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material
misstatemants may axist and not be detected by us, even though the audit s properly planned and
nerformed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws
or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements,
However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, any fraudulent
financial reporting, or misappropriation of assels that come fo our attention. We will alsc inform the
appropriate lavel of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that comes 1o our
attention, unless clearly inconsequential. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by
our audit and does not extend {o later perinds for which we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedurss will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, and may includs fests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of
raceivables and certain other assets and Habilities by correspondence with selected individuais, funding
sources, creditors, and financial institutions, We will request written representations from vour attomeys
as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding fo this ingquiry. Al the conclusion of cur
audit, we will also require certain written representations from yau about the financial statements and
refated matters.

145 of 242



Management and Governing Board of
Sausalito Marin City School District
Deacamber 23, 2013

Page Five of Eight

Audit Procedures - internal Controd

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal
control, sufficient {o assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statlements and to design
the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performad Lo test the
affectiveneass of cerfain conirels that we consider relevant {o preveniing and detscting errors and fraud
that are material o the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from
Hegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial
siatements. Our tasts, If performed, will be less in scope tharn would be necessary o render an opinion
on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed In our report on intarnal control issusd
pursuant to Government Audifing Standards.

An audit s not designed {o provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those
charged with govermnance internal control related matters that are reguired to be communicated under
AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures - Compliance

As part of oblaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial siatemenis are free of material
missiatement, we will parform test of Sausaliic Marin City Schoo! District's compliancs with the provisions
of applicable laws, reguiations, coniracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit
will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will nol express such an opinion in our
raport on compliance issued pursuant o Govermnment Auditing Standards.

Engagement Adminisiration, Fess, and Other

Whenever possible, we will altempt {o use the District's personnsl fo assist in the preparation of
schedules, analyses of accounts, and localing any documents selected by us for tesling. This effort
could substantially reduce our time reguirements, facilitate the timely conclusion of the audii, and help
vou hold down audit {fees,

You may request that we perform additional sarvices not addressed in this engagement lefter. If this
ccours, we will communicate with vou regarding the scope of the addifional services and the estimated
fees. We also may issue a separate engagement ieller covering the additionsa! sepvices. In the absence
of any other written communication from us documenting such addifional services, cur services will
continue fo be governed by the terms of this engagement letter.

In accordance with Educaiion Code 41020, audit reports will be filed with the Counly Superintendant of
Schools, the California Department of Education, and the Slate Controller’s Office by December 15
following the close of the fiscal year. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and
confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a2 minimum of seven vears after the
report release date or for any additional periad reqguested by the Sfate Controlier's Office. If we are
aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the pariies
contesting the audit finding for guidance prior {o destroving the audit documentation.

146 of 242



Management and Governing Board of
Sausalito Marin City School Disirict
Decembar 23, 2013

Page Six of Eight

Engagement Adminisiration, Fees, and Other (Continued)

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Stephen Roalch Accountancy
Corporation and constifutes confidential information. However, pursuant fo authority given by law or
reguiation, we may be requestad o make certain audit documentation available o the State Controlier's
Office or its designee, Department of Education, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or
the U.8. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, o rescive audit
findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We wili notify you of any such request. if requested,
access o such audit documentation will be provided undsr the supervision of Stephen Reatch
Accountancy Corperation personnel. Furthermovre, upon request, we may provide copies of selected
audit documentation to the aforementionsd parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribule the
copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

Stephen Roatch, Certified Public Accountant (CPA) Is the engagement partner and is responsible for
supervising the engagement and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. Our
fos for these services will be al our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs. Our standard hourly
rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnet
assigned to vour audit, Our invoices for these fees will be rendered sach month as work progresses and
are payable on presentation. We agres that our allnclusive fee will not excead $18,360 for the audit of
Sausalito Marin City School District for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, The above fee is based on
anticipated cooperation from your personne!l and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not
be encountered during the audit. if significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and
arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. An additional fee will be charged for
sltending mestings with the District's Board, if deemed appropriate.

Fither party may terminate this agreement af any time for any reason, providing 30 days written notice is
given to the other party. It is understood that payment shall be made for services rendered to the point of
termination,

it is agreed that the District will withhold ten (10} percent of the audit fee until the State Controtler certifies
that the report conforms to the reporting provisions of the Education Audit Appeals Panel's Standards
and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Educational Agencies.

tre accordance with Education Code Section 14505, it is further agreed that the District will withhold fifty
(50} percent of the audit fee for any subsequent year of a mulli-year contract if the prior year's audit
report was not certified as conforming to reporting provisions of the Education Audit Appeais Fanels
Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Educational Agencies.

The State Controller of California has reguired that all Districts and auditors confracting for multi-year
engagements include a stipulation that the contract is null and void If the auditor is declared ineligible to
nerform LEA audits.

in the event that the GASB, FASB, AICPA, GAQ, OMB, or the Education Audit Appeals Panel’s Office
issues additional standards or audit procedures that require additional work during the audit period, we
will discuss these requirements with you hafore proceeding further. Before sterting the additional work,
we will prepare an estimate of the time nacessary, as well as the fee for performing the additional work.
OQur fee for addressing the additional requirements will be our standard hourly rates for each person
involved in the additional work.

147 of 242



Management and Governing Board of
Sausalito Marin City School District
Plecamber 23, 2013

Page Seven of Eight

Engagement Adminisiration, Fees, and Other {Concluded)

In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via emall transmission. As
amails can be infercepted and read, disclosed, or otherwise used or communicated by an unintended
third party, or may not be delivered to sach of the parties o whom they are directed and only to such
parties, we cannotl guaraniee or warrant that emails from us will be properly deliverad and read only by
the addressee. Tharefore, we specifically disclaim and waive any liability or responsibifity whatsoever for
interception or unintentional disclosure of emails transmitied by us in connection with the performance of
this engagement. in that regard, vou agres thal we shall have no Habllity for any loss or damage to any
person or entity resulting from the use of email fransmissions, including any consequential, incidental,
direct, indirect, or special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated profits, or disciosure or
communication of confidential or proprietary information.

in the svent we ars required {o respond to a subpoena, court order or other legal process for the
production of documents andfor testimony relative to information we obtained and/or prepared during the
course of this engagement, vou agree o compensate us at our applicable hourly rates, for the time we
axpend in connection with such response, and to reimburse us for all of our cut-of-pocket costs incurred
in that regard.

in the svant that we are or may be obligated to pay any cost, seilemeant, judgment, fine, penally, or
similar award or sanclion as a result of 2 dlaim, investigation, or other procaeding instituted by any third
party, then to the extent that such obligation is or may be a direct or indirect result of your intentionat or
knowing misrepraseniation or provision to us of inaccurate or incomplete information in connection with
this engagemert, and nat any faillure on our part fo comply with professional standards, you agres o
indemnify us, defend us, and hold us harmiess as against such obfigations.

Government Auditing Slandards require thal we provide you with a copy of our most racent external peer
review report and any letter of comment, and any subsegquent peer review reports and leflers of comment
recaived during the period of the contract. We have attached a copy of our latest external pesr review
report of our firm for vour considerstion and files. We are very pleased o participate in this review
nrogram as continued evidence of our emphasis on providing Sausalite Marin City School District, the
highest quality augit.

This engagement lstler Is contractual in nature, and includes ali of the relevant terms that will govern the
engagement for which it has been prepared. The terms of this letter superseds any prior oral or writlen
representations or commiimenis by or between the parties,

We appreciale the oppotiunily to be of service to Sausalito Marin Clly School District.  #, after full
consideration, you agree that the foregeing terms shall govern this engagement, please sign this letter in

the spaces provided and retumn the original signed leltar to ms, keeping 2 fully-executed copy for yvour
records.

148 of 242



Management and Governing Board of
Sausalito Marin City School District
December 23, 2013

Page Eight of Eight

Sincersly,
STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

PR

Stephen Roatch, Certified Public Accountant
Fresident

~
i
i
!

}

|
» oy .L?,.—{f\,%‘

RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Sausalito Marin City School District,

Manaysmeant

Approved by

Title: Superintendent

{ate: 1/14/20614

Governing Board

Acknowledged by
Title: Baard President
Date: 1/14/2014

149 of 242



Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda [tem: 5.04 Brate: January 14, 2014
_Correspondence X Consent Agenda
Reporis

_______ ~ General Functions
__ Pupil Services
_ Personnel Services
X Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction
_ Policy Development

Item Reqguires Board Action: X Item is for Information Only:
ftem: Annual Adjustment to Bid Threshold

Background:

The California Department of Education under the State Superintendent of Public Instraction office (85PI) is
required to annually adjusts the $50,000 competitively bid and award contract/expenditure amount for Pubhic
Contract Code (PCC) Section 20111 (a). The annual amount is adjusted for inflation (to the nearest $100} and to
retlect the percentage change in the annual average value of the mplicit Price Deflator tor the State and Local
Government Purchases of Goods and Services for the United States

Attached 1s the California Departinent of Education’s bulletin on the 2014 annual adjustment.

Fiseal {mpact:
There is no direct financial impact from this adjustment.

Hecommendation:
This item is brought before the board approval.

Prepared for: Steve Van Zant
Prepared by: P. Rigney

150 of 242



TOM TORLAKSON
STATE SUPERINTENGENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

CALIFORNIA : %ﬁ&%
DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

Decamber 20, 2013

Dear County and District Superintendents and Chief Businass Officials, and Charter
School Administrators:

ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT TO BID THRESHOLD FOR CONTRACTS
AWARDED BY SCHOOL DISTRICTS

Public Contract Code (PCC) Section 20111(a) requires schoot district governing boards
to competitively bid and award any contracts involving an expenditure of more than
$50,000, adjusted for inflation, to the lowest responsible bidder. Contracts subject to
competitive bidding include:

1. Purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies to be furnished, sold, or leased to
the school district

2 Services that are not construction senvices.

3. Repairs, including maintenance as defined in PCC Section 20115, that are nol
public projects as defined in PCC Section 2200Z{c).

The State Supsrintendent of Public instruction (SSPI) is reguired o annually adjust the
$50,000 amount specified in PCC Section 20111{a} fo reflect the percentage change in
the annual average vatue of the Implicit Price Deflator for State and Local Government
Purchases of Goods and Sarvices for the United States, as published by the United
States Department of Commerce, for the 12-month period ending in the prior fiscal year.
The inflation adjustment is rounded to the nearast one hundred dollars {5100}

Pursuarnt o the above calculation, and effective January 1, 2014, the S5F1 has
determined that the inflation adjusted bid threshoid will increase by $700, from
$83.400 to $84,100. Shown below are the inflation adjusted bid thresholds for the
current and two prior years.

Calendar Year Bid Threshoid F’em;&gt&gg -Ghaﬁge‘.m
- miplicit Price Deflator
2012 381,000 2.72%
2013 $83,400 2.98%
2014 $84.100 B858%
1430 N OSTREET, SATERAMENTO, CA 95814.3901 - GI1E&-3VC. 0800 ¢+ WWW . CDE CA. GGV

151 of 242



December 20, 2013
Page 2

Also note that public projects as defined in PCC Section 22002(c), such as construction
or recenstruction of publicly cwned facitities, have a lower bid threshold of $15,000 that
is not adjusted for inflation. For more information on bidding requirements for all
projects, refer to PCC sections 20110 to 20118.4.

This letter (with links to the PCC sections cited above) is posted on the Office of
Financial Accountability and Information Services Web page at
hito/fwww cde ca govlfglacicol.

If you have questions regarding this subject, please contact the Office of Financial
Accountabiiity and Information Services by phone at 916-322-1770 or by e-mail at
sacsinfo@cde.ca.nov.

Sincerely,

e Y .
e L oSBT

Peter Foggialo, Director
School Fiscal Services Division

PEib

y2R1 31701

152 of 242



Sausalite Marin City School District

Agenda Htem: 9.05 Brate:r January 14, 2014

_ Correspondence

Reports
_ {eneral Functions

Pupil Services

- Persomnel Services
X Financial & Business Procedures
__ Curriculum and Instruction
_ Policy Development

& Consent Agenda

Btemn Requires Board Action: ftem is for Information Only:

{tem: InterbSchola Service Agreement

Background:
[nterSchola provides auction services, planning, inventory and scheduling for iterns agreed upon by both parties.

Fiscal Impact:
None

Recommendation:
This item is brought before the board for approval.

Prepared for: Steve Van Zant
Prepared by: PP Rigney

153 of 242



INTERSCHOLA™: SERVICESAGREEMENT
This Services Agreament A gm»emmi } 1s made sy of e last date setforth below inthe dgnamre
tlocks of this Agreemaent {the "Effective Datd’) by and between Inwracholastic Trading Compsny;
LLC., baving it mincipel gace of business in San Francisco, California £ (“TaterSchola B and
Sauzalite Marin i?,ry Scheol Diswict, a California Poblic Agency lesated in Sausalito,
Califormia{"Client’.

Kecitals

A InwerSchela offers 3 service wassist Clisntin selling surplus new and used public agencv goods inan
cnline aucticn environment and through other surplus govds channelsin compliance with relevant sate and
federal law.

B. Clientdesres o sell smpluspublic agency goods and to engage InterSchola 1o asustim such endeavor.

Agreement
In consideration of the forezoing Recitals (whick are incorporated herein) and the mutmal covenants and
agreements contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows

1. InterSchola Responsibilites.

TnoterSchola shall use aﬁm&rcmi s reasonable efforts to perfonn the services as move fully desenibed in

: 3 2nd w complete such servicesin g pm..ﬁ&sa{mai and workmazlike
rmanner, iuwSe:hﬁia may retain fndependent contractors fo ranage the auction sctivities remotely and t the
Clisntlocation{s) { Field &ﬂeﬁm& Spectalist(s)”) and shall use wmmemaﬁ -reasonable efforts tw ensura
that the Field Auction Emm}; st perform their msks ina professional and w @rmni&e manper. Interdchola
shall be in compliance with all laws, erdinances, niles and regulations relevant as a resilt of the aervices
cm&mﬁa%ﬁ hereunder. ﬁmes:“ chelo shall secure and mainwin in force such perits and licensesasars
required by lawin connection with the furnishing of services pursuantto this Az reement, InterSchols may
update ngg}g;t A {(*Aucrion Plan and Schedule’ °} by providing Client thirty é\s{?‘ davs writlen notice.

2. Chent Rfsgmms&xhim.

Clientagrees & asign s repeasentative who will be the primary contact for InwrSchela (e “Client
ﬁ;ﬁg&rewamwe 7 o work with InterSchola and i1 Fleld Auction Specialist(s). Client will provide a safe and
clean snvironmentfor the Fizld Anction Specialinds) in which o *gmfmn his her inventory and re lated wark.
Further, Client acknowledges that InterSchola’s ability 1o perforn a5 Tequired wder the Auction Plan and
Schedule will require Client to perform certain tasks as mn‘t&m'plat. 2 in ExhibitA, which Client agrees &
perform in a conmercially reasonable manner Clientshall bz in mmphance with all laws, crdinances, rules
and z'emﬁamrm relevant as a result of the services mn%mgémaeé hereander, Client ze;xea&zzts that it has the
rightto sl any item s to be sold in connection with this Agreement. Client will indemnify and hold harmiess
m‘ierﬁﬁhﬁia and its officers, Managers, emplosees and agents from and against all c%ams @:iamacea- losses or
coRts xmf‘lzxémﬁ mawm’%ﬁﬁ attomey fee s} arizing in comnection with any claim based on or axising from
items sold or offered for sale in commection with this A \greement of qile theret, excepteo the extentsuch
claim is based on the neglizence or will il misconduct of Interschola or its agents.

154 of 242

Pewe 1



3. Relationship of the Parties.

Nothing contained herein shall be deemed w establish 2 partmership, jeint veature, assctiation, of

emyloymentrel ationship between Client and InwrSchola or between Clientand nterSchols’s Field Auction

Specialist(s). InterSehola agreesand ackuowledges that neither itner any of Reempioizes ori ndependent
contactors shall be considered officers, employees or agents of Client and are not entited 1 benefits of any
kind from Clientand InerSchola shall be responsible for payment of all federal, s and local wresor
conmibutions ifany, inchuding for unempleyment insurance, social security znd meome wwes With respect
interSchola’s emplovees. -

4, Fees _

Clignt agrees to receive payment for tems sold by ImterSchola on behalf of Clientless fees o InterScholaas
zet forth in Eshibit B (Fee Structure’. InterSchols may updaw Exhibit B from dme to dme by providing
Clientthirg (30} davs wrtien nolice, butin no eventwill such an update affect anv Hstungs for which Public

Notice has already been povted. Clisnt shall be responsble. for the pevmentof any other fees fines, Hesnses
or taxes (including sales @z collecizd) required of or imposed ag atnst Chent

%, Client Acknowledgements,

Clientacknowledwes and agrses that (1) InterSchola cannot predict how much, if sy revenre will be
produced for Clie ntthrotgh the sctvites contempl 3{6& inthe Auction Plan and Schedule; (i) the paries may
not suceeed in dgnificant rduction of inventory or storage requirements for Client; (i) active pardcipaton
inthe Anction Plan and Schedule by an appointed C lient Representative will be required by Client and its
employees or comwactors (as set forth in thisagreement; (iv) the Feld Auction Specialiss maybe
indepsndent contractors Tetined by InterSchola, and may ot e fullv bonded er insured; and (v Client
agress to assign Client Repreepmave(s) supervise and moniter InerSchela’s employees or Field Auction
Specialists while they are on Client’s site and not © vermit InerSchola nor any of its employees or Field
Auction Specialists to have contact with any pupi during the course of performing the services conemplated
herein. ' '

5. Confidentialiy; Linits Imposed by Law

InterSchola acknowledges thatits Confidental Information may be gisclosed o members of the public erat
Client’s public board meatings a3 required by law. Except o the extant required by these or other laws, 3
party receiving Confidential Information from the other party will not disclose or use it except a3 necessary
to perform its obligations or enforce its rights under this Agresment and each party will take all reasonable
stEre o enzure Tatits employees and agents compdy with the foregoing. Inthe sventof use or disclosure by
the receiving party in violation of this Agreement, he discloging party will be entitled to-seck e guitable relief
withoeut posting bend. - R o

“Confidential Information” means: {) with respectto Client, any personally identifiable imformauon ofan
ernplovee or studentof Client's; {il) with respect ip InterSchola, all information which gives interScicha a
competitive business advantge of the disclosure of which would be dewimenial t its interests; (Ui the terms
of thiz Agreement, and (i) all information thatismarked as confidential. “Confidential Information™ does
not incheds information which: () is or becomes generally kmown 1o the public by any means other than a
breach of the obligatons of the receiving party; (i} is received by the receiving party from a third party other
than iz breach of confidentalicy obiigations; (i) isindependently developed by the receiving part; or (i) 13
subject to disclosure under courtorder or other landul process. ‘

T Bischimer of Warrantiss. 155 of 242

SORIIRATAET A FRlT L e

Dcin, oo owre Page 2 Thunday, Julv 21, 2011



,&\W?‘E’.‘&{;?@L %Z} E‘CL ,,,zf»ffﬁ ALLW &RR %}““E"’« E@R‘EEE« :‘1,}13 W‘”L,ZE'} "\QL ";%}%""&G BUTNOT
CLRETEDTO. THE &?iﬁi}?\ %&\“E&S or X%RC%%K‘"%EELE’E’; QUET ENJOVMENT
QUALITY OF INT {}ﬁi\ﬁ’ﬁ(}\ FYINESS ! rGR %?ﬁ.ﬁﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬁ PURPOSE, AND EER‘E HNON-
ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ\ I mOORAL CRW RITTENI INFORMATIONOR ADVICE GIVENBY TYTERSCHOLA
ORITS. w:%%;am REPRESENTAIIV £ SHALL {:REAEE %‘fx %R&ﬁﬁx i1 G’%; I\* ANY WAY
‘“\ﬂ?ii ASE ’ﬁ%}l bﬁﬁﬁ i}z “\TE%S{E*{}L faﬂ i)ﬁ;, ﬁ»"ﬁ; 2 A

8.1 mﬁatm& of im%ﬁm m&& ﬁamag@ R B _
EXCEPTY ﬁiﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁ??@ﬁiﬁi‘& TE ?\'BE {111 {}EQG %ﬁ@\”ﬁ "‘s EECTE@E 2 “‘Qﬁ?ﬁiﬁg
PARTY ”“AGR ANy OF 178 OFFL ICERS, EAPLOY E§$ ACENTS OR iﬁ‘ﬁ’&%ﬁ:?@ﬁ% Si’gf&i BE
LIABLETO THE OTHER PARTY OR ANY OTHER INDIVIDU AL ORENTITY FOR. ANY DNDIRECT,
NCIDENTAL, SEECIAL G Q@“&ﬁﬁ{éd@k’&% DAMAGES, TNCLUDINGLOSS OF BROFIT
%ﬁ:&‘&*t“&h s.}"@u 5&. Qi{ w“*f:: %&ﬁi&i\iz i}b TOF THIS *’*’&is;{a_ﬁ“sﬂ\ei R ?K“mﬂ “R%f’%h;‘h{; iﬁi}\i
CONTENEL %E %Kﬁﬁﬁ i \{} QX’E’& TWILL INIERSCHOLAS LL %%jﬁ"i ARISING UTOF
OR GW?;%?%E WITHRESPECT TOTHES %&%E%‘Q’f AND TEE TRANS ACTIONS
CONTEMPLAIED HEREBY ﬁ%’%ﬁmg ™ CONTRACT TORT OR OTHERWISE) EXCEED THE
GREAIEROL. THE MANR SOMANDUS TTCOVERED BY AXY APFLICABLE INSURANCE

Lok %ﬁzf{;t»} BYIN ﬁtﬂbﬁyﬁba TR THE &%%\ s RECEIVED BY INTERSCHCL ATINDER THIS
AGREEMENT TALRING T ”?':{E, TWELVE {i ¥ '\” i}\whﬁ @Rﬁ}ﬁ o1 THE f‘m &%&B LAY 15
BE%RB@E’?} L

i g}e wﬁ:ﬁ { &ﬁm 3 i:ai this ﬁ“!ﬁi’:m{tﬂi ﬁmu. m:‘ﬂﬁ it ;ﬁ.\r ﬁxsm.uuf Jﬁw mm ::m:m adum,m: u.l“&?.u..ﬁ“i«..i So7 onE
wear with automanic one YR ar mnmai;s Either party may B inate this Agreement for maﬁml breach by the
other rany thatis not wreé tairty (30} days after receiptof nTittn notice by the non-breaching '{:am
Feliowing the firg anniversary of the £ fective Date, either party may wrmina® His Agreement for no cause
by ;:izm 16:«.11@ thirty a0 days *;m*%ezz netice o the other party

i Pablickty.

Chem grants i .nmﬁyhela the rightte and agreesthat, interSohola may us Client's name and the existence of
this Agreementin dient lists, presentations of ;xamaﬁen» with prier writen aygbmial %em Clisnt, which
-«}z:ﬂ} not be WIes aaeaahl* *%:iﬁz&ié

il. ‘imw&ma&

TnterSchela shall procure ! and maintin for the duration of the Term insurance aam*ﬁz claims for injuries ©
persons of Jamages W PrOpETY that may arise Fom oF ip connection witkh te performance of the work
heyeunder by inte xS»hd&

,,mezsmala sﬁa&% mamtam E;m. azs 1o 1ess than.

' General Liability: ?;»w@z},vﬂs?ez occurence; SLE00,800 aggregate.

156 of 242

et AT N AT T B e o DPaze 3 Thundsw Tl 21, 201



iz, i}‘m@mi Provisions.

. Arhitration and Gover sring Law ﬁmepﬁ: ] gxmzéefa below, any dispue, COBUOT SRy O chaim relating @
t}m aﬁreemﬁm shall %& in aamréame with the thenexisting ﬁnmmezczai Arbitration Rni es promulgated by
the American Arbitration Asscciation. The dacision of #he arbitrator shall %:@ final and binding on the parties,
and ;u&vmem upon the award reaﬁemd by the arbigator may be extared in Ay court having jurl isdicuon
thereof, Notwithstanding ‘the foregoing ’shsa Section shall not preclude either warty fom seeking wOpoTary;
;s-mmaﬁal of mjum:tzw relief from any cowt ThisAgreement shall be gov cermed ’m the 1aws of the Suae of
Califorms mﬁmﬁt reference @ the principles of ¢ conflictof laws
122 Entize A ent This Agreement sets forth the entire agream&m betwesn the partes withregard
the ~«;:=ft:}&z:t matter hersof. Ne &m agresments, TepEe! serttions, of W arranties have been mads by either
party w the other with fegpectin the ﬁ%}jeﬁt matter of this A Lgreement, eXcept 28 referanced herein, This
Agreement may be amended only bya wrivan ETesment éswm{%; by both parties.

103 %mx&‘kn@mm&mn mtefﬁmz}la will not engage in mﬁmﬁ;} diserizination in employment of parsons
becanse cfrace, color, religious cresd, patondl origin, ancesTy phyzical handicap, medical conditon,
mmm’i atus, 3, sexual orientation oF gender of such persons '

2.4 Asignment. The pblizatons 0% x?}tbi’S&ﬁ‘\%& ;ﬁzzmamm this Agreement may notbe assigped, except, i
the cage of @ METEeY OF angmwmm of all or substantialiyall of xﬁt&{%ﬁhﬁ}a & DusiE .
133 3ev erability, ifanyol f the provigons of this %uraemém are found o deemed by a courntic be invakid of
unanforceable, ey shall be severable fom the rema inder of this Agreament an{‘i shgaiz not cange he
invalidivy of umnfmc&ahdaﬁ of the remainder of fhis Agresment
12 6 Waiver Neither party shall by mere Lapse of time witheut giving nofice o7 saking other sction hereunder
e desmed © have waived Ay breach by the other party of any “of the provisions of this Agresment. Further,
the walver ! +either party of 3 ymmiar breach of this: a*f&?gm‘tﬁti}"m@ other party shall zwtba construed
as, of mnmm& 2 «:{mtm&mg W aiver of ;us:ém reach, of of other %re:aa:};es oftae same of OMeT provisions of
this Agreement
2.7 fﬁ"«n& Majeure. Mo i‘ihv“i‘ DAY whail be liable *“ox any del avor fallure @  perfonn its obligations hersunder
HC miﬁm from ALY CAUR pevond such party’s reamnable contrel, including s ot limited to 20t of God,
weather, fire, { .g;av&s% srikes, Work SOPpAZes: siowdowns of other indusial dispwies, accidents, riots or civil
mswi@ama‘t acts of government, and scts of war of BITONAM.

2.9 Survival, The ﬂ::-!iﬁm ing provisions shall survive ermination of expiradon of Bis Agreement: 3%’“&&3} 2
”‘souz onby with respectio Client's indemnity shligatdony Secucn &{C anfi dentialing; Section T (Disclaimer 21
Warrandes), Section ¢ {Limuaton of Ligbliey aaé Diamages), and Section 12 (Gegeral Brovisions).

ACREEDAND ﬁ&mﬁ"ﬁi%i}:

CLIENT %?Eﬁﬁﬂ@&mﬁﬂ m@m@ffﬁ%ﬁ’&lﬂ L1
BEGATRE oo Symrange 'W%/
BeEENERE e PrerNme  Aldssd Hrers

Tk i Tife o0

D D WL 7/od

Pleaze faxthe complele %zgm& rontract to {415 £5] 86T
Tn addRion, plerie mgiltwo{2) gompleiz signed copies ofthe complete areemenl 100
Inter Scholn
10044 0 Reslly Ave, FEFiser
San Fraucise, CAB4IE

157 of 242
s Fhes e en g e S R e SYEHET R vy Page 4 Thurudey, Jahv a1 2011



.%"(:’é’iﬂf\f PLAN & SCHEDULE

Gﬁ“&ﬂﬁ& ﬁﬁiﬁ‘% gggﬁ '
* For pwposer of this agresment, Suwrphs {"Sm?iuz FRE ai-zfma{i 35 material wheh B onwned by the Clanr, deemed no lonzsr
ua&éeqs Dy the Clisny, nm& bes Taan dechred 2y such by s responsibl wty; group o Basyd acoerding o ;m%hm&é p’*’mwﬁ_

3 -Elu.&ﬁum % arspaadd Brben T g M ey o
and for which, the Chimntwould ke InterBrkols to provide the Company's savvizes to stalume & Sale £'Sale™,

‘mez Schols will sondust am Orisntition with sxch {:Ezi-m;,m person of by phone) { Clisn Orenation™ o seview hest Tractizes
for Surphus 3 sxles (including apmizvegwwxm swategies foy orzanizing Swples sgles), Clent iy azkad 1o invite 31 mashers
of 3:if who mav E}me srcEad © o7 knowledue ol ﬁwzﬁﬁﬁ ftema o periipate Inths Orlentstion.

Client iy asked 1o specily s first snd zatond level contactfor asth Sale ;hezamféf srred 1o a5 Clizot Represenmriva(s)y 1o enmus
tmaly gnd efficlent soowavniz stions with InverSehols, '

TtisTurerSshoks policy thet »ma%.iw‘ig shall mot 1zke thia o o gm’:&saamn of oy assets 3 any ime, AR items will remzin &
- Cliens location Tooughom Be dwwanos o Ge Bak,

® A Compleed Sale™ is defined 35 an e which has been sold, pavinent has basn received from bagyer, and i hae been
removed from Cliem location {hinped or picksd wp by the Buver or g repreaanizfive of e Buver in azsevdence with
z‘ag;ﬁ_stz;a} rs:gwamﬁ.m. '

w®

?

ALCTION SERVICES - INVENTORY ALDIT
’i?‘iwa motidiad of Ssx*pim the ToterSchols Field Auction Spetiatiat will visi the Clieat jovstion 10 parfoms sn Investory Andit
Cimventory Audivy, e {irs1 step 1o The Furtion process 1o review ssien idemtiliad as Swrplus for Sule,

* Phying the Inwantory Audit, the InerSchola Feid Agcrion Sperislist will review idenrified swrplas 3339t inventory, evalusn
2338t {g}:}h A aﬁﬁﬁatﬂ*mza@@ﬁm of azms for Sake inoan open make SEvironrasnt.

* E‘eer al imras deernad feasible for Sa&a the Inser Schols Fleld Ancton Sgﬁ!;miiﬁ will mmark Zerss for mv SHIONY, [TeE ¥ basy
amtory list, t3ke dirital photos sndior videas, and grther detailed product mfmmma on #ch iemar LOT of Jike) szaws

* Ap Inventorv Ao wdit mpmﬁa 3 mw;i@sv mxﬂ ié:aamg #vent “‘tvgn,;e:,s g 0 excesd 4 h{ma mima ;:ﬁaf;‘mmh: am ad Wb
b::«ﬂsmma 3

¢ i ‘mmmmzs iz J:Ezﬂ.eha.wé :;:s &0 an :m ﬁmm max bt e *:a\ Do iy Wﬁwea 318 Bot Vet sdsoguately sovned Iy Qmmz o
=usfy stzesalble; o there i wmissing iferzestion (i, mie.«:'s oy, if 3 damiled inventony im;;szee\; a3 from mterﬁa}z@is inordsy
for temes 1o te darlared :m;:sm, then .z;ser&méa wav sugzest and agee to pedoms 2 Suwrplws Assesyment {Swrples
Assesient’) in Hew of 5o Inventory A‘Lsf%r‘ {07 purposes o _k&l;r z the Clent prepare #e gemsior 2 Full foveniory .s?m«i;t Han
Tovenmry Audit B copleted, bun an 2urthon dosr not rulmia&e_ within (orey 1 st o] the Toventory Audn dste dus to
ﬁz:*‘mmnhab ROt x.&‘_ii.,&fi by Inter &}191&' 3 follow up Swplus Assezment will ba :ﬁ;‘a}x@i 1o coniimm that the iems reman in
e mms condition 5331 the thme of tha Taventory Aundir, i‘Sé&’ﬁhﬁbﬁﬁ ~BURELUS ASSEEEMENT)

* Once the Inventory Audit hes been ompletad %ﬂ the E;zezﬁ'k&ia Fizid Avction Specmiber, gl eons St hyve Deen nnentoried
by Inter Schola are considarad “in werSchola-Manszed Toventory”, #ud a3 such, InterSchols reservas all vizhes to manage the
salevemonal of such ©3e% in agrordmre wih this. Aaxe«emt %&l&p sorns are M8, paid, sod ;nka:% wE ot s&zpp&ei oy il
e fewms are of ficially veleysed burk 1o the Clisot for disposel through otbey yapans, Bersin referrad 88 ‘Reloased” I the Clizmt
ThoosEs 10 &é,,xmﬁe % wuaqi ir minimum price o7 toe irane §«m Sule or R&l@aw this if ormaton must be providad o
Toer Sckola 3t the tinee of the Ez}.“%ﬁmt Aulitzsd "%‘151 be r@m&ﬁ"af:ﬁ z i BuT in i“‘&E"‘“ &ﬁi& 5 evaination znd plennizg aé ths
Saie.

* POTENTIALLY D%\CBRGUE E’fmﬁb Wk *E:.’f.‘&':: o oaseds) whch ImerSehols mazmb? Saermaines © ba polentisliv
dgngarons 1¢ ppergte, induding items nhick v s ekoivivgl, mechanisl maotonzad o otharwise operable (&2, nwemutbies,
pover tools, sharp tools ox 3, Clisny thall be revponsible for opsrming the asmt in the pravence of InterBcholy Feld Aucticn
Spacizlist in ordey f@' %‘h& gmdﬁ": Hafing o mjuc:iﬁ 3 mlzi EIRTATHEY rag:ﬁrdms proven opayshility of the iem a1 the time of
fsting,

* Should Inter Scholz Feld 5‘.‘&1‘3{:{5 ESpecighist diteover 2u emvoonmmant et is mot sefs o riazu to pard orms an Imventery Audn,
imeﬁcmia TRy me 'm&‘: e canial 07 paspone the Iﬁiéﬁ:‘ii‘.&.’f‘- Ak&ﬁm‘tﬁuﬁma :&aﬁmﬁm gre Dygwoved,

.m,mm ‘“»ER‘%"X{:ES ATCTION \im.wmmw
prSales whish culmmare within sne (13 ntonth of the Isventory Audit, IngrSchols amees to coordinate, Tost snd mansze the
mﬁaamz Auction S;amx.a Byants: onk { 1} on sie Impu:mw Event and up to three (3} ensite Pidkup’ Smppm#& ents for etk
'«}W}gl»tagi Tmventory Audit
* Inte Schola’s Fald Auction | mmi&* 08 ﬁa’ with InterSchols’s Baver Servites Tezes will uie commercisly reasensbl
i orts to determine beit in clas Joting strappies, 1o ot denikd ite desriptions (including text, pictures o VERROEL
and to mzge st oplintm minim 38T prite 3 fiem Dagriptions™) for sach Baet m%mﬁzam@i& i«;@s Szle.
Fover Sehals will saed 3 schedule of Avrtion Servize Brents snd Ters Dascriptions to the Clisny Raprasentative vis emcail prics 10
guotion lauech Clent Rapresenmadve ix asked o yeview Tewe Dax criprions sod to confime Clisng’s ghiliny m adhere o the
propasad suction schedule, ressomably accowsey of lmting coment and sroepmuce of mintmn stary prives. Showld {:’iﬁm
Repra tentative 2ot vespa&d b amail 18 Im&af&quggs 5&2&@ of auction Iomch, Inter Sohiels will necasuarily aszuwee tharths

rorae pe Bage ¥ Thursdey, Julv 21, 2817

»

AN RS PN+ 101




Clisnt has &wmea she zuttiom scheduls, immw wx;‘w: mﬁ suggested minlrums start price(s), Should & Duver laver 's.m 58
eowect staement fo e Listing ss the basis ?s:;? 5 valid refund reguest, snd tha Ao b not due to willful negligeste of the

Fiald Anction Sperislisy then Yha rawss &’5 ] !f;&:g will he i&érﬁﬂi the e _._-shﬂm f.:ﬂ' the Client. (See Exhibi B ~ B YER
REPL‘%E&} o . :

&@m@a %&M@%&ﬁﬁﬂ mmmﬁwa@;%ﬁm‘%@mw%
Prier to & Sale, mon public azency Tlents must give public notica. Emri«:&a&a g%nﬁ;«‘a &“wa.,.mmm i i:;mt 0 e usad for
pwg:sme;,m satisfving the Tequirerent of Publis Nofice for 3 swrphes awotion. .

* In complisace” with pz;%,air 3ZEDIY vemiawn"vewma@ Ez:azzﬁz:hm ;amz:e appec»p\'me mcton Hotings 1o eBav or oths

eaBe$oa Wi b & - - T
puble 13 pledormds) B satisly - public sgamey ragulnory raguiaments for public suction, InterSckiols pavs oll lee exspnigtad

with Histing sssetson eBav mdoy salRs and .ms’katmz cons thronzh other levally vighle fme% mwg; ’m zmﬁ@m
fmwfkkﬁis mnmias anm;.,mz mzes}.&ma 0 the buver Communiy. IpterSobola’s pzasm:e Tor novfvisy potential buvers about
InterSchols aucdons may include, but B not hmm{% 3 am*& Public Wetize doruentstion; publiz advertisement
faewepapey, ingmer, Teiio, and &h-‘*? méﬁ} ‘asset cmezory spacifi sagrri'divectony of iteyws on the Xm‘erﬁﬁm el
i}‘t"&ﬁ ?nxﬁz &.h@ﬁ,\mﬂ ayy crling promotion thronzh 3¢ pany sites; key word W”ma social voadis prometion; email
’”ﬂzﬂ&ﬁﬁ‘ anilor divectmail o zwpimm &.M@&i% 10 e peted %&ﬁ’&s mzer Sdzﬁls zlio provides asth Q}.am
R 7 F R sEabeddad imothe Clntwebsite I pio e Ezmrye 5 loval sudimre,
* InterSokola's Auction \im}“wemem ‘gt provides full t&ammw sRIViCR Suppart 1o the mzaz oy for 2l pamsactons
rmanszed b Inter Schols including phons 204 amii FUppOTL iﬁa vihwing s&f xzm # Msm m;pé‘:mm cellection of pavmment,
and, ,thpmﬂ* or pickup daliveryof item{s).5 b . TN A
Tnim Schols collacts pevmemt from Buver(s) {iem ssk pnca g"&%i—@ ?rm } piug amp@mv amﬁ m&mv piu.. Wag;m& ,,a :3
wxy CBuver Pavment”y o advents of p;r}:ap Shiping in gucordance Wik ﬂ%xrm of A mm md pyvraant p*wwmaa &ﬁgw
iy the m&mﬂ& Totwr Bealas AuctionListing {Listing™y. :
® méer’&,m:x Frald Ancnon S;mmm wiliTelos to the Ciismt i@yﬁﬁ@ z"’ gz iy “’ia:ﬁiﬁ 5-10 pusingss days & Br ke sulton T
fate, 1o propare shipping of Bost pickups of Bams (First Pickup’ hipping Bv anty, Lp 1ot 43 sdditional lner Schols boged
B }mp Sipping Bvant(s) willbe schaduled in advanee wit the Chent Rez.:fwamm &3 10 sne Tisribilite Jor the Buvers,
Inter Scholx p‘muﬁa@. 3 Bl of Sale and Relesss of Lisbility{ Farm 1o avery Buver 2t pickup, Inter® &ﬁiﬁ shali keep snd mainizin
secovds of Al "ﬂmmmre& sales 3nd Iel:ﬁ% donprenntg, Sm.*i: évm_m.anm *mﬁ b2 &L%:ja"t 10 Cimm E m.aw"zw“ znd
ropiss shall be provided to & {lient vpon Ik@m it
Al mmS&aL& BN sm iteps are zold Asds” \éma&xaméma t?:,:n i@@e%ﬁm !ma&mia doss 1 baa* W RN Baver
tustomer zatsfacion. In the wvest thyt e bover iz not sansiied with product received jrom Chent, InwrSchola’s Buve
‘Beryicas ream will aerpiie SITANZE 20 uﬁég‘,ﬁ’ﬂ sarthment mé‘; tha buver which may intlads 3 veas songhle ref und gmonnt in
e "W’dim~& wibrpasonably sczeptad or mandared onlize suction Tusiness practices. {Ses Exhibit B - BUYER REFLND D
In the t332 hat an Hern duss not sall st ofon or that 3 vansstton i cancelled without PRYINANT OF nigkup, InterSchol will
determine famsibility {or selisting ke ﬁsma fw aﬁhﬁqham auction o7 rhar mmesns of Saa in z:;@:émﬁ o ith public sgency
'*evm**w 1 cg,.r: amens.

W

[

Ja'

k:J

1%

i belid of i o, Eﬁm&wﬁ TRRY RETEE 10 pﬁﬁwm am Inventory Audit on a selaotion of Dews %kgm@;gzwan gyagier tyne
amd siendon than 2 &mﬁa xd Invantery Audit or mav Hst Jor Sak ceviain items that requie greser tie zd atenton tas
sandurd perasior ramieting, ndior ps;c%:&p yemaval - berein referrad 1o 23 3 *Complex Hala®, {:a:-zs:phx Sales may tuiuds, bt
ae noy Hiited 1o building strucnmes of smy kind; aguizrent of mschingry hm is sillinszalied T the tirne of Inventary Aam
zens Bt have baen o i g from thalr ‘erigipel condition; feres that reguie ,,a;mzalw%: packing or handling for remmalfe g
crating; itemns that sguire buver diamanting 10 &s‘:&me mmm’ L Bemnz thet reguire 1muliple ésuz for ramepval; o7 Inventory
Audits 3t mvdtipie lonstons o7 &t lorations 2 for wWhich sncess By «31@, Frald Anction Specialist o b«szwz: iz ot ".r&&&,h Bvailehis
fa.p. nog warshousa torgtionsy . Inter Schels m}i’ﬁ adk o fas fitste & successiul Sal'ad. ssi.k:ﬁ Feres aﬁ%saﬂeﬁ %w the {Eiaam (Sae
Exchibit B~ CONMPLEX SAINVAGES ANDPUBLICAGENCY SALED :
* Onbenall of s clisnts, InterSrhols mav reseaych thannals fof sale éssmz.sl of 2EeEtE '&Iwhm T8 &) éﬁemﬁ:ﬁ zalvzee by the m&m
g tirmee of aurphu &&lamm,;. andier. ‘i;sx Inter Schols 3% fe time of imventory Jle fuwrnimre {including t&ﬁﬁ&;’a cheirs, bl
. akyage tabn#s. ad file ""’bﬁeza; i}ﬁﬁsﬂ&é a.i&"?#ﬁié ot techralopy, vehisles sold for parts, ofier frams 10 e &am iz mmé
o o ap value {dus 10 388 077 mn«:%man‘} o1, b) Meras that do not a’&*i}, st public aurties, e whith mavbe 1ol o3 privels bver
i 2 publiz Seie ke bews avpmpted in 2 sccordance wih yasuletions rezarding the Sale of wplus 35en - herein referad 1o 48 2
‘Belvage Sale” Interdckals will work 1o facilitate 3 m::esi@l Bale of szzc.h itamas 35 c‘.’ﬁued&&b‘. ‘{hﬁ {Ziﬁﬁi {Sse t:«xk.z.bﬁ B~
ﬂﬁ‘»ﬁi‘i“‘i SALVAGE AND QL‘BLECA{:EL\CYﬁ ALES
® Note: Sales thatare arranped =nd fatilineed by 35 Taer Schols mmez o J?%i z:‘am Lm&&?f‘ mzzwmi sarvice pue “:é»:»: suck 353
zarified g aste ey o ling pernar, z lransed ghatﬂa vehicle desley, a7 sorgp metal plastcsrecyding pa?mermﬂ ey b daemad
3 Salvare Sale for purposes of Exhibit B of Ry mwm&ym amﬁw&zé yates will apply, On hehadl of s Clints, TerSchols mev
nflay Qﬁmhm framns for ‘Sala e‘?wﬁg; 0 ﬁm‘*‘hﬂ msmx ezency o thron gk » public apency sesled bil process, in &gzw&n“& mﬁz
xaamﬂem pzmeﬁmas herein yefared ™AL ?ﬁ%i.,. %.zm"‘- Sale”. “Futer Schols mimmk o iamtgtﬂ 5 suzcandul Bale of suzh
s as divasted v e Clisnt, (See Exkhibit B {:’G‘sﬁ&ﬁ. SALVAGE PUBLIC AGENCY SALES
® Should Inter Sohols dmary zo Inviatory Awdl ® be 2 Comeplex, Salvaze, or Public Agestyv Sale, 2 it zive notie thevedd W
Clisns before offaring iterps for Sale. In m e, Ci;em TREY TRmOve m zzem fwm Em&ﬁc&@!‘g Sfanaged Inventory WY

159 of 242
e B peniid BT aroae Page & Thuwsdsy July 21, 2311




providing notte o InferSchols w idin three {3) busimess davs after 1T retehes metize of the “Comples, Salvage, oy Public
Agency Sek” desgnstion. Altarsstively, _m'er&.miﬁ may 5 I3 onn durretion choow KoTto s nde mok Ramis) I Sale.

%

Th complete Ba Inventory Audit and ov Sale, InterBchols wmav tequast assiatance from Ulient Rﬂprmmam 5 o7 ather st for
moviag lsyze ssiets for purposes of invantorvisy Zems sndor preperation for packazing sod delivery of items, ﬁrsmy.‘ms ot
stk TRy 0TS | frore TaeerSchol mav nclede: 8) assisnnce in the movement of heavy asses by Cliant Reprmevntive (2. by
pallet jack o forktiy, b) reguen for pelltoing assms ) v Clisnt Rﬁ;;w,&mama 10 assiay witk pickup of mems, o O ;L’mw
zalvage sseets in sl aga ?:m {28, pallets or gaviord ba}ze;A ¥ she Clisnt iz unable o provide suchassinncs, TnmrSrhols HEY

. o [APUNNE | JUY. WA T Yo o Faw wnded [ FEIn
i e dlusetion Chotie mol I Bimdie G M‘{ME of e fgvs for wdidh pm mnnal oF m*&mmi assintanre will be

owied wsuccesdullv complete Be Sak,

All shipping and endling fees will e the respensibiliy ﬁ-; Inter Beholy the Buver and siiparkaging mytanials willte pronided
b IrerSchols ynless oiharmise szvesd to by Clismat,

In some natances, i?hem may ba Ceked 1o {azilitere 3 Pickup E%%t syithout an InterSehols ragsmma‘z»é coesent. Preparsion
for surh pickups will have bass mads by the loerSchol Fiald Aucden Spetisiie; snd in swih chowmsramces, e Clest
nga,mtmw n'ﬁl b s&ee;gwm beisfad on veqwaré aotivie, incheding Tendling of paparwork, 1. ensurs dat suck pickups
proceed according o InterSckols policy. {See BB - - Addinons CHest Conpauaion Poestal

Foounld 3 faréﬁmeﬁ o uncenfinnad buver Bvive unmnouszad on 2 day or time other than 4 shedulad oickup dav and wme,
Tlientis o noly TeprSchola imediately. Neither Inter Srhols nor the Cliens fhall have any ohligation 1o daliver a5 hery} w0
3 buve i ithout zmw’S» 2ok} L&m tissrrecaived and conveved {ingl pavnent end pidap confimnations.

,,mez%hﬁ@ mﬁﬁ;’si ﬂ"a tramslor M-§ T’s::al Ciisnt Proceadsfor Comnplend S Sales tn Clnt op a rolling baus within ) dave of the
E2le dae. Towl Cliem Drocesds ave defined as sl of Chest Protaeds on Be Net Sale Srice phi ssies v collernd ks
intey Schols Fass,
Rargitance of Tounl Chant %&'é@éa for ﬂ@mgiaam Sales will e sccompanied by 3 Fal Client Proceads Report™ 1o includs
i ividual caloulatons of Chent Proczeds for e {or LOT) and detall of Tntes Sekols Eﬂéa: i gpplioabia),
Tnter Sehols Compnizsinns and Fees will be iterizad and deducted from the Tord Cliant Proceeds for Completed Sales 23
yeromsrized on the Tlent Proceeds Raport I & nagatns balanca sheuld arize, InterSchola reserves the Tight to midice the
Cliant for ramating balames dua - i S 3Euaton H3anot baan resolved duough #e Sala of additiensl. Sx«:@im sl pelva (15}
g,

W

e

160 of 242
P TR MU TV SR p - S S “?3&5& . %W.Aaﬁ*- jﬁ\ pat "N‘zii




i Aﬁiﬁ;’gw N AN @?ﬁﬁ Ei%ﬁ%i%}f ENVIROMAMENT
,Lﬁ@gf?@ﬁm {Tk@m E’mﬁ:@eﬁa E&@Wﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ C@ﬁim?ﬁ?sﬁﬁﬁw
P&me:&t of . .
Net Sale Price 5% 5%
. ;

HIGHTICKE TITEM(S) (NET SALE PRICE =550060.00)

 Deseription | . Clent Proceads |
o | Fer sagh item with s Net Saie Prics sbova §3,000:
Percent of © Clientwill recsive 35% of de frsr 85,000 ofthe Ner§ s Price;
Net Sale Price ; shus 80% ofthe amount ofthe Nat Bale Pacs shova 53 000

COMPLEX/ BALVAGE/AND PU BLICAGENCY BALER:

”\Eei Sale Frice ¢ =%

8 Description _ClientProceeds | luterSchols Commission |
Percent of ' . : s i

. “;:& - }:}“ ?

i

i

~em=zeé 2T¥ 851E TELE cima iz Wx: 3 L“ém saly, gae s.e‘imf& éwler o1 wsg memi yl:eama :ﬁ}mg gﬁm‘*‘@? will nos
ve dzemmad & Salvage Sale Tor purposes of this sgreament, Swndard rates will apply,

N w singk Qing:‘ex Salvaze: or, Public .%wenw Bale bas & Nat Sole rice “E** 504, ther redoved High Toket
Tram copumission ratey will appiy.

E““%’%‘E NTORY AUDIT VOLIUME DISCOUNT

ral . . {gi&;.;:} T B N 4 T P i et

Ad.‘fimmai Creditto e Discount offmsd from heardehola commission is based on
{:ii& ﬁt ?’I@Cﬁ@éﬁ {e} : h\‘m;}" Auéﬁtﬁ’ﬁzﬂmé ﬁ‘f 1
; 93000 worth of Complotad Sales Form fvs (30 or mers itans |

’*‘H}wmm spplies o InterSchols Cormmission” Client Proteeds calkularions for Conpleted Sules of five (B aw
more wame Trore 3 smgle Tnventory Audit Acred® of 3%6 of Sie InterSchols Commizsion smoumtwillbe applid ©
ench Toral Client Procaeds Report geserated for Completed Ssles sesulting from the Invenswy Audi.

Q%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁf VOLUME DISCOUNT

- Additional ﬁr&éatﬁimm B - b | Q{mhﬁ Vhopma hrashold
1o % 3scount it based omiuariedy Volume drasheld of
Froceeds (%) | $15,000 work of Completad Sales

””}me sholl is hasad an i:ampwsasi S«m»{immw 2 zalendar ww Dsrount &gsph&s toImarSchol é‘.“mmxm,mzz
Chent Procseds calonladons foy naw Com .ﬁ‘{eé Sales activity D ehe subreguang guorer. A craditof 1% of the
Tuter Schols Compnission amount wil be @ph&i 1o 250k Toil Client Prozesds Report penersted {ov new Coompletad
Spies wouviey in the spplicable tone pavind

161 of 242
T ARt e VT pee U e, e 1 BT WE TR pﬁ”ﬁ g %&ﬂwﬁiﬁ‘» .Exsj.'r 31 2 B



Becription R

SR 823000 (per Inventory Audity o
Auction ATTOMATICALLY WAIVED
Setupfee (%) when the value of all imms sold

S , from a single Inventory Audit is f?&ﬁt&rm 51,300
{¥1 An sucton must -*ﬁimm’& m’:ﬁ;& m =’ iy m@nm '&a Im eﬁmﬂ fmws.a gats z;&z %.u"‘zwn ﬁetw Fee o "é:& my. e{i.

Si. Q?M,S %ﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%f ax iﬁi‘i ﬁ?;&%i"ﬁ %"ﬁ'ﬁ}’%‘x :‘%i’ﬁ%'ﬁ

fﬁ%tﬁpmm ' ' Terms '
- $300C hour (uinimum one hour) %or time spent on the Client's
Surplus Asse —y ﬁazmsm o perform a Surplus Assessment
ini tory Audit

““‘) in cartsin mﬁan— 25 ﬁz:s%% Yoo crmrnendsd %&x Inters 2 ; ;;i«epgai foran mva‘azm;‘}’ Amdiy,
ImerSchol mavsuzeestand suvee © perform s Surplus, i‘wﬁm&mm lisuof snInventory Auditfor purposes of
halping the Chisnt prepare the iemsior 2 fulllny BTV Aomdie '

£ an Invenrory Auditis completed, bt s auction does nt Calminate m*% L{omEl | zmm?a of the IsventeEy

Amzz ai:ﬁe e To Tl I ITe s 5ot Tatsad v Inter Soholy, v follow ‘E;p Surphis A szeszrem will be requured it

v A o T s cmambmmne

confinn el e fiams W’mm i s mma IBBGivn a5 m the ume of He LEVEINEY ﬁm»ﬁa

"\Tﬁﬁ“ _
INTERSCHOL AAUCTION MANAGEMENT:
AUCTION LISTINGS, BUVER MARKETING & CU ‘ﬂi’%ﬁi{ﬁﬁ SUPPORT - GNLY

in specific inwances, itmay not be feasible or cost efective for m‘%sf‘:ruahaia o conduct ag Inveniory
Andit {e.g. in the cam that a Client has orly a small number of low value surplus fems or if the

Clent's lecation is not serviceable by an InterSchola Field Specialisd). In these instances, and or by

spacial requent of the Client, interSchola mav suggest that Client gather the minimum :&gﬁﬁ*&d

mformaton {including digual pmmea‘% from which TaerSchols Auction Aanagement sl will

create Lating(s), market the auctions and p"m’; 1de CUStOmEr SLpPOTL

t

E}ﬁsﬁzg}mm ! Y@rms
: Auc‘tézm Listings, Eu}_ﬁeﬁ% fnterSchkola will féaeiwf the greater of $230.00 or
Marketing & Customer | 25% of Net Jale Price of the items
Support— Oulv{(®) inventoried by the Client and lised for Sale by InterSchola

f“\ Shom:i a Client offer ,..mwmmﬂ "o TrterSchols in Lew of an InterSchols in-pavson Imveniory Andit
.ﬁf{:sm,mmn will mead to be verifiad for accwany 3d compltensss through & phone Berew wik s Cliaat
Rapresemtauve thatis kuowkdzesbls dooutte msals) lisnt agraes © handk nzpestion and shpping pv}"wpﬂ

suck jems, ¥ IoerSchol Sow mot feel It is spproprime to Est Zeros w3 Jesoried, TterSihols will dec sk

ST Iy, 1?‘1
gy en il

i%”{%‘%ﬁmi}i A E“&"E‘EE’%%L 8E i}igﬁiiﬁ{ TICH MOBEL

162 of 242

B ISR HE P SRS R R e R e ?32_ é} P{?ﬁ.‘iﬁ‘%ﬁ&fﬂ }ﬁg}' :1 . 2{3&1



* %Eiiﬁ&taa&a net za:e 3 Cowtirmons Public Notes axfé Fublhie Notize 1y net pested according to the mcton chadule,
sesplting ina delay of auehon iamf:k frrarSchela may have o retum fo the Client leomtion %o perfonn 2 suphis
a&;m&mwm;&fﬁm thatthe ﬁ&m TEIALY mfm ST fxmm%;m 25 m*’:%m tmxe a:-»f the mmm‘“ﬂz@‘ Andit..

* CHeutis xmpmﬁxla By any Ses aa;m_mwi with posting the requirad public m*:mas mﬁer the applicable mrovisions
ofthe ;&Ei W Egency raaa{a‘aﬂm Zovening the sale, meluding but not limizad to spacific prblic *ﬁnmamg aosty, 1f
a :pnvm*;\. fmm ae:x' artsing i3 r»«,mrea fﬁz‘ﬂem% whe nAceIsAzy b the Cum’

mif” 3{}3‘& ﬂ@;@ﬁ"? E‘H@@T‘%i‘ i%’? NiS

* A5 pzr‘ of itz .Smmfzx-& %t‘:&m S avices, m‘é&wﬁa sgress to Terain on ‘:i;_ Clisnt sita Hor 2 masmimum of twe {2
howss for sach Inshestion Even and'or ﬁu}.”zm bh;}:pma E mnt Ha bm'er is unable to comumencs pickup during the
sehaduled tmadfame, Inerdchela will aither 2} yrepare e md papervork Ry v m%ﬁh hzed off upon the %m%x 5
arival b werk with Buvar w reschadule pomp at their owm cost I s reguired by Chane dus Terdohola
romin f siie doy imwar than e { ‘> beor {owlpdine tme spent 2t mﬁmﬁa focations and m&uﬁ:ﬁ_ ann{a\

ﬁlevawa arsd E”L’%Lc %ﬁmm S;da m-m *:%zm an azs&mazmi *«ar*;wa ?e»& of 33"" Shhew will be cha.rmé Yo hsre

¥ a2 scheduled _:);&}3 Evert is m&mg&&é or doss not ooy {Eha 7o svass with wuvalabilite of the Chent
Rapresenmtive, & customer sarvice rafind may be wgmmd {zga Rafinds below? avd Client mavbe mked o host z
:ﬂ}.@:&m E%,.B:Lp Frrart for the buyer at thair comvamenee whars 2 mﬁmia yepresmrearive s 150t reauired o ba

P e

yrasent B B0 oosi o Drericholz and ze additional revenue 10 {‘lhﬁm fhes AUDETIOGNAL CLEND

FEET R Y Y PRSP, e
;:{,fi “&?‘a g%ﬂ@}\ 2 :u.,,‘_f‘w TiaL bals x't:,‘%
Rif L”’%”E}g

# fa%i refinds nwﬂm*ﬁ& Yy TterSchola are a reduction to Sale Prce vieldmg a N3 ala Prive et Sale Prics’
.{at»-«rﬁaht:»ia Commission Cﬁ@m %caﬁ«:ﬁa cale zzi:mum ara based e Neth zle Prica.

= S:E x’aﬁmﬁ = cau;;ﬁci %:»% mum&mm*"m from cHent, wasying or dzmwyred ey o Chant will be duzmsd 2 foe mthe
mm& of -;m ETRAMES O %’% of ma xe&u&é amonit or 810000 Tee Se to Clentis not to excesd 330000 paritam.

* Troms ramm“*{f Som ‘:ka %mx}&gmcgsa 2t tha clients reguest afte fuventory s Anditbutbefore menon Bating will
be asses ﬁ"i a ez of ifﬁ 00 per Zam,

* Trarnx emeved zmm the austion preses 21 % S chienls request 2fa awcn o lizan
0%, of the auchon start price, bid price at the tome the mechon is ended or zelling
The fz to C%a,hm:zs pot 10 mmm;i S300 00 per Iem,

ADDITICNAL CLIEW) COMPENSATION B

=5 Mot b5 ashed %o menaps 2 vmi:.z“ Fopee for 2 Buver(st o Tisrn o Trmefichols g mﬁrm&mﬂ"a is nnd *mm'wss-ﬁ teba

yresant, than Clime mw’%n- special requast to 2am 3?;“ oo per %};Lp Event {zzm meluding pickup §:ﬂ 2 3 party
carrier where praparation bas baen complated by TrzerSchels inadvance of smch gﬁﬂmp k

NTIAL

”Efﬁ‘i;em is abla and wﬁimﬁ' o offy specizhzed aqm;m&m {e 7.t truck, crans of im:icbm; o REIBT I 3 1‘31:.}::1.;9
Frem, then Ch&m may by speeial raquest aam an agresd o fee tobe puid by the Bm*a@ who coofirms madvance
*?}xﬁ desiza oo avmazs C kmmf sx;»}z M@rm:# f&mﬁh fee *cf service wil ba dizcussed in "S:%x rce of the luteg are,mm

[T | S Sy [ o P o g oy

. -
sl im sueh mimh a.xn;_isac.&ma W i mﬂm & e ;,,t,iuma.t: x.mum,,aux.am COLBELHEDR amd rr.w.,ut:..,z. of feas Bom By iVER

*%E?IE Rﬁﬁi{% %Q%i%ﬁﬁﬁ@%b AND E‘&ZE %"%’%’E LLBE ITERIZED &.‘%’ﬁ nE E}’L CIEDFROMTHE
TOTAL CLIENT PROCEIDS FOR COMPLETED SALE 845 SUNAARIZED ONTHE CLIEENT

FROCEE DS REPORT. ADDITIONAL CLIENT COMPE NSATION ﬁi@t‘ﬂ“{g WILLBL ADDEDTOTHE
CLIENT PROCEEDS REPORL

163 of 242

WhoawesDR TR

=y
&

g

3
pat
P
o
g
k™
=8
fard
Pt
b3
e
e




Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda Item: 9.06 Drate: January 14, 2014
_ Correspondence X Consent Agenda
Reports

~ General Functions
Pupii Services
_ Personnel Services
A Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction
__ Policy Development

item Requires Board Action: X item is for Information Only:

Ttem: Annual Adjustment to Liability Limit of Parent or Guardian for Willtul Pupi! Misconduct

HBackeround:

‘The Califormia Department of Education under the State Superintendent of Public Instruction office (SSPI) 1s
required to annually adjusts the $10,000 Lability limits specified in BC Section 48904(a)1) to reflect the
percentage change. The annual amount is adjusted for inflation (to the nearest $100) and to reflect the
percentage change in the annual average value of the Implicit Price Deflator for the State and Local Government
Purchases of Goods and Services for the United States.

Pursuant to the above caleulation, and effective January 1, 2014, the SSPI has determined that the inflation
adjusted lability limit will increase from $18,100 to $18.300.

Attached 1s the California Department of Education’s bulletin on the Annual adjustiment to Liability Limit of
Parent or Guardian for Willful Pupil Misconduct.

Fiscal Impact:
There is no direct financial impact from this adjustment.

Hecommendation:
This item is brought before the board for review and discussion.

Prepared for: Steve Van Zant
Prepared by: P. Rigney

164 of 242



TOM TORLAKSON
STATE SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

December 20, 2013

Dear County and District Superintendents and Chief Business Officials, and Charter
School Administrators:

ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT TO LIABILITY LEGIT OF PAHENT OF GUARDIAN
FOR WILLFUL PUPIL MISCONDUCT

California Education Code {EC) Section 48804(a){1) provides that the parent or
guardian of a minor is liable for all damages caused by the willful misconduct of the
minor that results in the injury or death of any pupil, school district or private school
employee, or school volunteer. The parent or guardian is also liable for damages to real
or personal property belonging to the schoot district or private schodl, or personal
property belonging to a school employee, resulting from the willful misconduct of the
rninor. The liability of the parent or guardian shall not exceed $10,000, adjusted for
inflation per EC Section 48804{a)(2).

FC Section 48904(a)(1) alsc specifies that the parent or guardian of a minor is liable for
any reward offered by a local agency pursuant to Government Code Section 53063.5
for information leading to the identification and apprehension of the minor who willfully
damages or destroys property, or whose willful misconduct results in injury or death to
any person. This liability also shafl not exceed $10,000, adjusted for inflation per

EC Section 48804{a){(2).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction is required to annually adjust both of the
above $10,000 liability fimits specified in £EC Section 48804(a)(1) to reflect the
percentage change in the Implicit Price Deflator for State and Local Government
Purchases of Goods and Services for the United States, as published by the United
States Depariment of Commerce for the 12-month period ending in the prior fiscal year.
Effective January 1, 2013, the inflation adjustment is rounded to the nearest one
hundred doltars ($100).

Pursuant to the above calculation, and effective January 1, 2014, the SSPi has

determined that the inflation adjusted fability limit will increase from $18,100 to $18,300.
Shown below are the inflation adjusted Hability limits for the current and two prior years.

1490 N STREET, SACRAMENTS, €A 95466 0FB42: 916.2319-0800 « WWW.CDE.CA GOV



December 20, o013

Page 2
gr v\ TPementage Change in |
| Calendar Year | _ Liabifity Limit | implicit Price Deflator
| aot2 — sirpses o 28U .
1_#__##29&-_‘_%_%“_..v_w_;ﬁ‘iiﬁ_,_ﬁ(}#_w__m#.__ww_&;g_%%ﬂ_mm__*}
2014 | $18,300 I 858% |

e e T

This letter (with links 1O the Govemment Code and FC sections cited) has been postec
to the Office of Financial Accountability and Information Services web page at

it (fneew.cde.C2a govifafacicol.

if you have any guestions regarding this subject, please contact the Office of Financial
Accountability and information Services by phone at 916-322-1770 or by e-mail al

sacsinfo@ede.Ga.G0Y.

pr BBt

Sincerely,

(A DO T

peter Foggiato, Director
School Fiscal Services Division

PF:ib

y2013-1702

166 of 242



Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda [tem: 9.07 Prate: January 14, 2014
_ Correspondence X Consent Agenda
Reports

__ General Functions
Pupil Services
_ Personnel Services
X Financial & Business Procedures
Curricutum and {nstruction
_ Policy Development

Item Hequires Board Action: X item is for Information Only:
iterm: Payment of Warrants

Background:

The warrants paid in batches 26 through 30 are brought to the Board for inspection and
approval.

Fiseal impact:

Undetermined

Recommendation:

Approve

Prepared for: 5. Van Zant
Prepared by: 5. Van Zant

167 of 242



Sausaiito Marin City School District

Payment of Warranis

11714 . 2014

Aftached warrants include:

Batch 26 Fund 01 in the amount of $19,85%.96
Batch 26 Fund 13 in the amount of $858.70
Batch 26 Fund 40 in the amount of $21,659.68
Batch 27 Fund 01 in the amount of $42,278.28
Batch 27 Fund 13 in the amount of $3,918.49
Batch 27 Fund 40 in the amount of $21,271.69
Batch 28 Fund 01 in the amount of $227,581.00
Batch 29 Fund 01 in the amount of $65,984.26
Batch 22 Fund 13 in the amount of $540.29
Batch 29 Fund 14 in the amount of $6,336.91
Batch 29 Fund 40 in the amount of $200,456.45
Batch 30 Fund 01 in the amount of $127,981.63
Batch 30 Fund 13 in the amount of $1,378.72

Batch 30 Fund 40 in the amount of $34,014.38

Prepared by Vida Moatltar

Sausalito Marin City School District Business Office

168 of 242



VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

-
o
~
D
1
o
5.2
o,

y
Lot

T,
H
o

t
3,

District Nameg  SAUSALITO MARTN CITY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named herecn hereby authorizes and directs payment

of vendor payments in thetotal of § o & 4 % A

FUND NUIMBER. BATOH NUMBER

T

AMOUNT

" 3o T - S F
oo AN e
7
o S £ e
S S et ket {f;\
T !

Authorized Signature 7
A

169 of 242
Marin County OFFice of Fducation Business Form No. 119
I M R S i S i -

R



APYZ250  H.02.09 Marin County Office of Education 12/12/13 PAGE 36
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/13/2013
BATCH: 0026 GENERAL RUND
FUND 1)1 GERERAL FUND
W ANT VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REMIT) DEPGSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT HUM
REG#  REFERENCE &N FD RESC Y 0BJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

20040408 QQD&0Y/ AMERICAN EXPRESS

PY-140252 01-00060-0-4300. 00-0000-7110-725-000- 000 Board Meeting Meals 228.00

01-0000-0-4300.00-0008- 7200 725-060- 600 Staff Appreciation meter tape 142.27

(1-0000-0-4300. 00-G000-7206-725-000- 000 Best Buy 32.53

01-8150-0-4300.0G-0000-810C-735- 000 - (00 Draft Stoppers 59.00

WARRANT TOTAL $461.80

20040408 070358/ ATRT

PO-1400063 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-0000-7200-700-000-000 11/13 170.89

WARRANT TOTAL $170.89

20040410 070329/ AT&T CALNET Z

PG-140001 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-6060-2700-700-000-000 12/13 345.61
WARRANT TOTAL $345.51
20040411 000006/ BAY CIVIES REFUSL INC
PO-140025 1. 01-0000-0-5550, 00-0G00-8200- 000666 000 12713 043.80
WARRANT TOTAL $643.80
2 120767117 BRIGRT PATH THERAPISTS
PO-140106 1. 01-6500-G-5835.00-5770-1182-706-G00-000 1735 1.417.50
WARRANY TOTAL $1.417.50
20040413 001811/ STATE OF CALIFORNIA
Py-140249 01-C000-0-5821. 00-0000-72006-725-000-000 /13 95. 00
WARRANT TUTAL $96.00

20040414 (707847 PALOMA COLLIER

PO-140665 1. 01-G471-0-58006.00-1110-1010-700-000-000 12/13 1.568.17
PY- 140237 01-9471-G-4300.00-1110-1010-700-000- 000 Garden Supplies 56.83
WARRANT TOTAL $1,625.00
20040415 002270/ FISHHAN SUPPLY €O,
PO-240035 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8211-735-000-060 932467 368.41
WARRANT TOTAL $368.41

170 of 242



APY2EG H.02.09 Marin County Office of Education

COMMERCTAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/13/2013

12/12/13 PAGE 37

DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITC SCHOOL DISTRICY
BATCH: 0026 GEMLRAL FUND

FURD : 01 GEMERAL FUND
W ANT VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT KUM
REGF REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y DBJT S0 GOAL FUNC LOC ACY GRP DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
20040416 000023/ GOODMAN BUILDING SUPPLY CO.
PO-140034 1. 01-8150-5-4300.00-0000-8100-735-000-000 Bue 12/11/13 172.68
WARRANT TOTAL $172.68
20040417 QGO580/ MARIN COUNTY SHERIFF DEPART.
PY- 140250 §1-0000-0-5821.00-0000-7200-725-000-000 11/13 4¢.¢0
WARRANT TOTAL $40.00
200406418 000047/ MARIN MURICTPAL WATER DST
PO-340016 1. 01-0000-0-5535.06-0000-8260-000-000- 000 11-12713 3,410,535
WARRANT TOTAL $3,410.55
20040419 070470/ HARIN RESOURCE RECOVERY CENTER
PO-140037 1. 01-0000-0-5550,00-0000-8200- 0000000600 11713 1,368,006
WARRANT TOTAL $1.368.00
20040420 070447/ MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES
PO-140026 1. ©1-6500-G-5835.00-5770-1182-700-600-000 2021870084 2,332.04
1. 01-6500-4-5835.00-8770-1182-700-000-00C 2035630084 1,934,508
1. 01-6500-0-5835.006-5770-1182-7006-000-000 2053610084 1.855.90
WARRANT TOTAL $5,121.50
20040421 070655/ JAN HCBOUGAL
PV- 140239 01-9479-9-4300.00-1110-1010-101-000-000 Assembly Awards 99.35
WARRANT TOTAL $99.35
20040422 000358/ PG&ECD
FO-140000 1. 01-0000-5-5510.00-0000 8200-000-800-000 Due 127/10/13 30.583
WARRANT TOTAL $39.53
20040423 00120367 SHELL OIL €G.
Py-140251 01-6000-G-4301.00-6000-8110-735-000- 000 11/13 417.03
WARRANT TOTAL $417.03
20040424 402545/ SONITROL
PC-140015 1. (1-0000-0-5840.00-0000-8300-101-000-000 1241005-IN 1,1790.15

171 of 242



12712/13 PAGE 38

$1.176.15

588.13

302.49
$890.62

744 47
§744 .47

266.07
$266,07

APYZRO  H.0Z.09 #arin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITO SCHODL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/13/2013
BATCH: 0026 GENERAL FURD
FUND . 01 GENERAL FUND
W AHT VENDOR/ADOR  HAME (REMIT) DEPGSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
RFO#  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SC GDAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
WARRANT TOTAL
20040425 070723/ DENISE SUTCQ
PY-140238 01-3010-0-5240.00-1110-1015-700-000- 000 Reimb.,
{(1-9479-0-4300.00-1110- 1010-101-000-000 Raimb.
WARRANT TOTAL
20040426 Q705257 US BANCORP EQUIP. FIMANCE IMC
PG-140052 1. 01-0000-0-5605.00-0000-2700-700-000- 000 11/13
WARRANT TOTAL
20040427 GI0TS9/ YERIZON WIRELESS
PO-140055 1. 01-0008-G-5970.00-0000-2706-700-000-000 11/13
WARRANT TOTAL
*RE FUND TOTALS ®&% TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 20 TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

172 of 242

$19,859.96%



APYZR0

BISTRICT:

H.02.09

A7 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT

FD RESC

Marin County 0ffice of Education 12/18/13 PAGE 39

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/13/2013

AMOUNT

BAKERY

13-5310-

13-5310-

13-53106-

13-5310-

i

13-5310-

13-5310-

13-5310-

13-5310-

13-5310-

13-5310-

BATCH: 0026 GENERAL FUND
FUND 113 CAFETERIA FUND
W ANT  VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REMIT)
REG#  REFERENCE LM

206040428 (70803/ ALVARADG STREET
PV-140242

2004042%  g70811/ BARCN BAKING LG
PY-140240

20040430 070794/ NANA MAE'S ORGAN
PY-140244

20040431 0708167 UNFI
Py-140243

20040432 070799/ YERITABLE VEGETABLE INC.
PY- 140241

Fxk UMD TOTALS #%%

TOTAL

BEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
¥ O8I SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACY GRP DESCRIPTION
§-5840. OG- 000G~ 3700- 166 000- 000 4514203
§-5840.00- 5600 -3700- 101- 000 - 000 4514203

WARRANT TOTAL

0-5844.00-0009-3700-100-000- 0G0 24-0110

(0-5840.00-0000-3700-101-600-000 24-0110
WARRANT TOTAL

§-5540.00-0000-3760- 100- 000000 584379

0-5840.00-00006-3700-101-000- 600 58437¢
WARRANT TOTAL

(-5840.00-0006-3700- 104 -00C- 006 17474445-002

0-5840.08-0006-3700-101-000- 000 17474445-003
WARRANT TOTAL

{0-5840, 00-0000-3700- 100-000-009 870170

-584¢.00-0000-3700-101-000- G40 870170
WARRANT TOTAL

NUMBER COF WARRANTS: 5 TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

173 of 242

26.88

26.88
$53.76

17.85

17.85
$35.70

50,00

50.00
$160.00

276,37

276.37
$052.74

58.25

58.25
$116.50

$358,70%



12712713 PAGE 40

1.772.23
$1.772.23

1,718.45
$1.719.45

15,768.409
$15,768.00

2.406.00
$2.400.00

$21 659.68*%

$42,378 . 34%

APYZ256  H.02.09 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REBISTER
DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALIYO SCHOOL DISTRICY FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/13/2013
BATCH: 0026 GENERAL FUND
FUND o 40 SPECIAL RESERVE~CAP QUTLAY #1
b ANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE AR NUH ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
20040433 070819/ CUPERTIND ELECTRIC INC.
PY- 140245 45-0000-0-6240. 66-3000-8500-700-000-135 215716-1
WARRANT TOTAL
20040434 070741/ GREYSTONE WEST COMPANY
Py-140247 46-0000-0-6281.00-0000-8500-700-000-000 2013067
WARRANT TOTAL
20040435 0708627 HARIHA LANDSCAPE INC,
PY- 140246 A40-0000-0-6240, 00-G000-8500- 700-000-135 313017-02
WARRANT TOTAL
20040436 070729/ REH CONSULTANTS
PY-140248 40-0000- 0-6240.00-0000-8500-700-000-135 1012032
WARRANT TOTAL
ek FUND TOTALS #4 TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 4 TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:
EEE BATCH TOTALS wes TOTAL HUMBER OF WARRANYTS: 29 TOTAL AMCUNT OF WARRANTS:
#x% DISTRICT TOTALS *+% TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 29 TOTAL AMCGUNT OF WARRANTS:

i d: 12/13/2013 10:33:52

174 of 242

$42, 376,24



District Name  SAUSALITO MARIN CITY

District No. 47
The Governing Beard of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment
of vendor payments inthe total of § i~ -]

r .
Vo
PR B S BN
£ hard f ‘\

FUND NUMBER

CAMOUNT

- T
e b, b ;;‘1 *
!2 5 3 5 o i .o
T ey . H (\:;:x i?;{ ;
]
/ b : é
. e v CoS
4 —
(3 ¥ t

Authorized Signature

175 of 242




APYZSD
BISTRICT:

BATCH:
FUND

20041302

H.02.09 Marin County Gffice of Education

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/20/2013
0027 GENERAL FUND

12/19/13 PAGE &6

AMCUNT

¢ 01 GENERAL FURD
VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REKIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA N ACCOUNT NUM
REQ#  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
""""" 070725/ ATCIA ALEWWRER e
PO-140105 1. 01-9477-0-5840.00-1110-1010-10G- 000000 §-11/13

20041303

20041304

20041305

20041306

20041307

20041308

20041309

20043310

20041311

WARRANT TOTAL
070694/ JULIE AUSLANDER

PV- 140255 01-85472-0-4300.00-1116-1010-100-000- 000 Laminator
WARRANT TOTAL

207227 CYPRESS SCHOOL

PC-140063 1. 01-6500-0-5833.00-5750-1185-700-000- 000 112313, 113813
WARRANT TOTAL

002345/ KOME IHC.

PO-146612 1. 01-8150-0-5600.00.0000-8110-735-000- 000 221337501
WARRANT TOTAL
grae2a/ LARKSPUR CORTE MADERA SCHOOL
PV- 146254 O1-650G-0-5840.00-5001-2110-700- 000 000 19
WARRANT TGTAL
g00s06/ LOZANO SMITH L1P
PG-140027 1. 03-0000-0-582%.040-0000-73100-000-000-900 12985

HARRANT TCTAL
070187/ VIDA MOATTAR

PY- 140253 01-G000-0-5230.00-0000-7309-725-004- 000 11-12713 Kiteage
WARRANT TOTAL

00056/ PBI

PC-140009 2. 01-00006-6-5960.00-0000-7200-725-040-000 7140007-8C13
WARRANT TOTAL

070709/ KARLT PIERCE

PY-140258 01-3010-0-4300.00-3110- 1010 700-000- 600 ELD Conf. Attendance
WARRANT TOTAL
070553/ READING PARTNERS
PO-146036 1. 01-9472-0-5849.04-1110-1010-100-900-000 368

176 of 242

2,764.45
$2,764.45

39.14
$39.14

7,630,080
$7.030.60

118.98
$118.98

3.578.%4
$3,578.94

£8.50
368,50

53.34
$53.34

507.78
$507.78

395,00
$395.60

12.506.60



Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCTAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/20/2013

DEPOSIT TYPE

Y 0BT SO GOAL

FUNC LOC ACT GRP

ABA UM

APYZS0  H.02.09
DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITO SCHOCL DISTRICT
BATCH: 0027 GENERAL FUND
FUND . 03 GENERAL FUND
| NT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT)
REQE  REFERENCE LN FD RESC
20041312 002475/ SCHOOL. WISE PRESS
PG-140171 1. 01-0009
20041313 070406/ SILYCO
PO-140021 1. 01-0000
20041314 001953/ SPECTRUM CENTER
PO-140062 1. 01-6500
20041315 001221/ DIV. OF STATE ARCHITECT
PV - 140260 01-8150
26041316 070792/ TEENS TURNING GREEN
PY- 140256 01-9479
2 AT GT0T9S/ MARK TONG
pY-140271 01-0000
20041318 070580/ TRAHAN MECHANTCAL
PO-140121 1. 01-8150
20041219 070758/ MELISA WILLIAMS
PO-140124 1. 01-9471
1. 01-9471
1. 01-9471
#k FUND  TOTALS woi

WARRANT TOTAL

-{-5840. 06~ 0908 -
WARRANT

-(-5849 .60 6000
WARRANT

-0-5833.06-57506-
WARRANT

-0-4300.00-9000-
WARRANT

-§-4300.00-1110-
WARRANT

-B-4300.06-C000-
WARRANT

-0-5600. 00-0000-
WARRANT

-0-5800.00-1110-
-0-5800.00-1110-

-0-5808,00-1110-
WARRANT

7i80-725-000-000
TOTAL

2420-700-000- 000
TOTAL

1185700 000- GO0
TOTAL

8100-735-060-000
TOTAL

1010-101-0066-00C
TOTAL

7200-725-000-000
TOTAL

8110-735-000-908
TOTAL

1010-709-000-000
1030-760-006-000

1818-7060-000- 060
TOTAL

TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 18

177 of 242

ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIPTION

55518

NOY2013

108811

7711

MLK Cafeteria Reimb.

Keyboard, Monitor for 00

15603

Mov. 2013
Dec. 2013

Food purchass

TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

12/19/13 PAGE 67

$12.500.00

1.136.25
$1.136.25

6.306.39
$6,306.30

714,060
$714.00

2,614.97
$2.014.97

423.36
$473.36

297.50
$297.50

86.00
547.50

42.27
567917

$472,228.28*



APYZ250 H.02.0% Marin County Office of Education 12718713 PAGE 68
COMMERCTAL WARRANT REGISTER

DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICY FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/20/2013
BATCH: 0027 GENERAL FUND
FUND ;13 CAFETERIA FUND
1 NT  VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUH
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
20041326 070803/ ALVARADO STREET BAKERY
PY- 140262 13-5310-0-5840. 00-0000-3700- 100-000- 060 4522103 41.76
12-5310-0-5840. 00 0000-3700- 101 -000- 000 4522103 41.77
WARRANT TOTAL $83.53
20041321 070811/ BARCN BAKING LLC
PY-14(3268 13-5310-0-5846.00-0006-3700- 106-060-000 24-0111, 24-0112 35.70
13-5310-0-5840.006-0G00-3700-161-0060-000 24-0111, 24-0112 35.70
WARRANT TOTAL $71.40
20041322 000105/ CLOYER-STORMETTA FARMS
P¥-140263 13-5310-0-5840.00-0000- 3700 100000 - 00C 1542083, 7548246 81.68
13-5310-0-5845,00-0000-3700- 101 -000- 600 7542083, 7548246 81.67
WARRANT TOTAL $163.35
20041323 070817/ FOWLER BROTHERS
PV- 140267 13-5310-0-5840. 00- 00003700 1000006 - 000 151821 70,24
13-5319-0-5840. 00- 0000-3700- 161 - 660000 151821 70.23
WARRANT TOTAL $140.47

20041324 070813/ HOP ENTERPRISES IHC.

PY-140265 13-5310-0-5840.80-0000-3700- 100-000- 600 833449 167.08
13-5310-0-5840,90-0000-3700- 101 -0006- GO0 833449 167.07
WARRANT TOTAL $214.15

20041325 70815/ MARIN CHEESE COMPANY
Py-140264 13-5310-0-5840.00-0000-3700-100- 600 - 300 438700 92.56
13-5310-0-5840.00-0000-3700- 101-00G- 000 438704 92.55
WARRANT TOTAL $185.11

20041326 070794/ MANA MAE’S ORGANIC
PV-140269 13-53140-3-5840.60- ¢000-3700-100-000- 000 545187, 343153 100.00

13-5314-0-5840.00-0000-3700- 101 -000-000 545187, 343153 169,60

178 of 242



APYZ50  H.02.09

DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITQ SCHOOL DISTRICT

Marin County O0ffice of Fducation

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/20/2013

BATCH: 0027 GENERAL FUND

FUND : 13

CAFETERIA FUND

} NT VENDOR/FADDR  NAME (REMIT) DEPGSIT TYPE

RECHF  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y DRJT S0 GDAL FUNC LOT ACT GRP

ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
BESCRIPTION

12/19/13 PAGE &9

20041327 070792/

20041328 070799/

wrk FUND

WARRANT TOTAL
TEEHS TURNING GREEN
P(G-140126 1. 13-5310-0-5849.00-0000-3700-706-000-000

PY-140256 13-5310-0-5840.00-000G-3700-101-000-000
WARRAMT TOTAL

VERITABLE VEGETABLE INC.
PY-140266 13-5310-0-5840.00-000G-370G- 1060-000- 000

13-5310-0-5840.00-0000-3760- 101 - GOG-GOC
WARRANT TOTAL

TOTALS #x TOTAL WUMBER OF WARRANTS: 9

179 of 242

5. Beaird 9-10/13

WK Cafeteria Reimb.

872788, B73357, 874218

872788, 8733L7, 874218

TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

$200.60

1,560.00

£85.98
$2,155.98

3n2.25

352.2%
$704.50

$3,918.49%



12719713 PAGE 1

AMOUNT

13.023.20
$13.023.20

8,248.49
$8,248.49

$21,271,8%*

APYZ50  H.0Z.09 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCTAL WARRANT REGISTER
DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICY FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/20/2013
BATCH: 0027 GENERAL FUND
FUND . 46 SPECIAL RESERVE-CAP OUTLAY #1
b NT VENDOR/ADOR HAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT RUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y DBJT SO GDAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
20041329 070822/ POLY GREEN FOAM LLC
PG-1401314 1. 40-0000-0-6240.00-0000-8500-700-000-135 16566
WARRANT TOTAL
20041330 070701/ CUATTROCCHT KWOK
PV. 140261 AQ-0000- 3-6210.00-0000-8500-760-000-000 13558-9, 13492
WARRANT TOTAL
*E CUND TOTALS #%# TOTAL HUMBER OF WARRANTS: 2 TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:
ok BATCH TOTALS o+ TOTAL MUMBER OF WARRANTS: 29 TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

180 of 242

$67,418.46%



VENQQ? PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

Date I+ /19 /s
District Name  SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment

of vendor payments in the total of $ ;,»iff:»«g S KL pe
FLIND NUMBRER BATCH NUMBER — AMGUNT
ol DK P34 SEf e

Authorized Signature f
jf
181 of 242

Marin County Gffice of fducation _Busjne}ss Form Ne. 113
iR R T O e




APYZS0  H.0Z.09 Harin County Office of Education

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

ABA NUM  ACCOUNT HUM
DESCRIPTION

12/19/13 PAGE 71

AMOUNT

DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/20/2013
BATCH: 0028 GENERAL FUND
FLND : 01 GENERAL FURD
t NT VEMDOR/ADCR NAME (REMIT) DEPGSIT TYPE
REQ# REFERENCE N FD RESC ¥ 0BJT 3G GUAL FUNC L0C ACT GRP
20041331 002172/ WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
py- 140272 01-0000-0-7292.00-0000-9206-103- 000- 000

01-0000-0-8096.00-0000-9206-103-000-00C
WARRANT TOTAL

*HE FUND TOTALS #&w TOTAL BUMBER OF WARRANTS: 1
i BATCH TOTALS #*%* TOTAL HUMBER OF WARRANTS: 1
#%% OISTRICT TOTALS *#+* TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 30

Printed: 12/20/2013 07:54:43

182 of 242

December 13 in Tieu & Supp.

December 13 in Tieu & Supp.

TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

112.500.00

115.081.00
$227,581.00

$227 ,581.00%
$227 ,581.00*

$294,999 . 46%



VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

Date ¢/ =50 /o

District Name  SAUSALITO MARIN CLTY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment

of vendor paymenis inthe total 0f§__ 144 A7 99

FUND NUMBER BATCH NUMBER AMOUNT

) e PR
Fa g {4 o
: RN Wy

T o
P 3 I N
o F = f e, [ I £/
;
£ o ; .
fear feei™ £ . £
ot i Lol | G
H I

Authorized Signature

183 of 242

S s AEE L n Af i mebk dae Doim il s D Bla 1 a



APY250
DISTRICT:

BATCH:
FUND

} NT

20041708

H.02.09 Marin County Office of tducation

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
47 SAUSALTYTO SCHOOL DISTRICY FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/07/2014
0029 GENERAL FUND

01/06/14 PAGE 20

AMOUNT

18.38
205,00

18.38

» 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR/ADDR  NAME {(REMIT) BEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REG#  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
""""" owe0ss  AMRICE EMRRESS
PV- 140276 01-0006-0-4300.00-0006-7110-725-000-000 Holiday Platters
01-0000-0-4300.00-0600-7110-725-000-000 Board Meeting Meals
§1-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7200-725-000-00C Holiday Platters
01-9472-0-4300.00-0000-2495-100-000- 000 ESL Books

20041705

20041710

20041711

200 712

20041713

20041714

20041715

WARRANT TOTAL
002550/ ASSOCTATED VALUATION SERVICES

PO-140005 1. 01-0000-0-5849.00-0000-7200-700-000-000 4355
HARRANT TOTAL

000192/ ATET

PO-140002 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-0000-2700-000-000-000 234 343 6854 760 3
WARRANT TOTAL
470329/ ATET CALNET 2
PO-140001 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-0000-270G-700-000-000 12713
WARRANT TOTAL
070513/ 2OYS AND GIRLS CLUB
PQ-140028 1. 01-6010-0-5840.00-1110-1010-101-000-000 SHMCSD 61-2014
WARRANT TOTAL
0o0a08/ BURKELL PLUMBING
PY-140281 (1-8156-0-5600.00-0000-8110-735-000-008 31857, 31823
WARRANT TOTAL
070132/ CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL
PY. 140277 01-0000-4-4300,00-0000-7116-725-000-C0C Holiday Platters

01-0000-5-4300.00-0000-7200-725-000- 600 Holiday Platters
WARRANT TOTAL

070308/ Co4-G
PO-140118 1. 91-7090-0-4300.00-1110-1010-000-000-111 HY06220

PO-140119 1. 01-9479-0-4300.00-1110-1014-000-000-111 HS80192

184 of 242

118.23
$359.9¢9

250.12
$250.12

1,034.06
$1.,034.06

526.89
$526.89

13,905.00
$13,905.00

732.40
§732.40

123.18

123.1%
$246 .37

119.89

624,58



APYZ50

DISTRICT:
BATCH:

FUHD

H.02.09

47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL BISIRICY

Marin County Office of ELducation
COMMERCTAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/07/2014

0029 GENERAL FUND

VERDOR/ADDR
RECGH

» 01 GENERAL FUND

NAME (REMIT) DERQSIT TYPE
REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GUAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

ABA NUM

20041716

2004171

et

Sead

20041738

20041715

20041721

20043722

20041723

20041724

070824/

002745/

02547/

G70667/

0040700/

001807/

G70263/

gru82s/

002270/

WARRANT TOTAL
CLAIR TAPPAN LODGE

PY-140274 01-9479-0-5819.00-1110-1010-101-000- 900

WARRANT TOTAL
CROWN TROPHY

PV-1402G1 {(1-3010-0-4300.00- 1110- 1010 700-000- 000

WARRANT TOTAL

DISCOVERY OFFICE SYSTEMS
PO-140051 1. 01-0000-0-5605.00-0600-7200-725- 600600
2. 61-0000-0-5605.00-1110-1010-100-008-000

3, 01-0000-0-5605.00-1130-1010-103-040- 000
WARRANT TOTAL

JULIARNE EDMONDSON

PY-140293 01-7090-0-4300.00-1110-1010-004-000- 111
WARRANT TOTAL

ELECTIRIX

PY-140278 01-8150-0-5600.06-0060-8110-735-000- 600

WARRANT TOTAL

EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPHMENT DEPT.

PV-140301 01 -08906-0-9515. 00- 0000 - 0000 - 000 - 00G- 000
WARRANT TOTAL

FEDEX

PY- 140288 01-0000-0-5%60.00-0000-2700-700-0440- 0460

WARRANT TOTAL
FERDX FREIGHT

PV- 140289 §1-8150-0-4300.00-0000-8106-735-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL
FISHMAN SUPPLY CO.

£0-140035 1. 01-0004-0-4300.00-0000-8231-735-600-000

185 of 242

01/06/14 PAGE 21

ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
§744 .27
Reservation 201400047 4,230.00
$4,230.00
18974 484 .02
$484 .02
13713 115,57
12/13 459,82
12/13 10G.47
$670.86
Making Math Real Course 628,20
$628.20
17879 369.45
$369.45
94241171 (Q4-2013 348.02
$349.02
2-501-87795, 2-505-11745 83.87
$83.87
3066226446 61.44
$61.40
979726, 1 88,64



APY250
DISTRICT:

BATCH:
FUND

| NT

H.02.0%

47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICY

Marin Caunty Office of Educaiion
COMMERCTAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/07/2014

0029 GENERAL FUND

01

VENGOR/ADDR  NAME (REMIT:

GENERAL FUND

DEPOSTT TYPE
REFERERCE LN FD RESC ¥ OBJT S0 GOAL FURC LOC

ACT

GRP

01/06/14

ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIPTION

BAGE a2

AHOUNT

20041725

20041726

20041727

20041728

20041729

20041730

20041731

20041732

(000234

Go0reL/

000639/

000580/

070447/

070655/

001927/

000015/

1. 01-0000-9-4300.00-0000-8211-735-

WARRANT TOTAL
GOODMAR BUTLODING SUPPLY €O,

PO-140034
WARRANT TOTAL

HYDREX PEST CONTROL

PO- 140061
WARRANT TOTAL

KAISER FOUNDATION

PV- 140282

1-0000-0-9520. 06- 00006 0006- 600

41-0000-0-9520.00-000C- 0000- 000-

WARRANT TOTAL
MARIN COUMTY SHERIFF DEPART.

PY-140764
WARRANT TOTAL

MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES

PO-140026 1. 0G1-6500-0-5835.00-5770-1182-700-
1. G1-6500-0-5835.00-5770-1182-700-
HARRANT TOTAL
JAN MCBOUGAL
Py - 140295 01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1010-000-

WARRANT TOTAL
MILL VALLEY SERVICLS

PO-140120
WARRANT TOTAL

MSIA DENTAL

PY-140279

1. 01-8156-0-4390.00-0000-8106-735-

1. 01-0000-0-5525.00-0000-8200-000 -

01-0000-0-9520.00- 000G 0600-000-

01-0000-0-5821.00-0000-7200-725-

1. 01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-1110-700-

41-00060-0-9520.00-0000-0000-000 -

0GG-

000-

30G-
Beo-

000-

08g-

000-

000 -

00G-

000-

004~

186 of 242

000

000

060

000

000

0oh

004

044

111

000

Gao

5935317

Oue 1/11/14

12/13

16734-6001
16734-0002

578-0002

invoice 13381

10/13

2085140004

2101400084

Colliaborative Learning Project

81015

1714

1.33
$89.97

60.69
$60.69

235.00
$235.0¢

4,596.04
961.65

15,118,684
$20,676.33

00.00
$60.00

2,438.00

2,438.00
$4,876.00

134,75
$134.75

376,77
$376.77

4,002.93



APY2ED

DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/07/2014
BATCH: 0029 GENERAL FUND
FUND ) GENERAL FUND
1 HT  VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REMIT) DEPCSIT TYPE ARA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
REQ#  REFERENCE LM FD RESC Y OBJT 58 GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
WARRANT TOTAL
20041733 600117/ MSIA VISION
PY-140280 01-0000-0-9520.00-6000-0000-000-000- 000 1/14
01-0000-0-9521, 000000 - 0000600 G00- 000 1/14
WARRANT TOTAL
20041734 0GO0S8/ PG &ECE
PO-140000 1. 01-0000-0-5510.00-0000-8200-000-000-000 Due 1/8/14
WARRANT TOTAL
20041735 070222/ PROTECTION OHE
PO-140004 1. 01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-8300-100-860-800 1/14
2, 01-0000-9-5840.00-0000-8300-101-000-C00 1/14
3. {1-0000-0-5840,00-0000-8300-103- 000000 1734
HARRANT TOTAL
20041736 ©01208/ SHELL OIL €O,
PY-14028% G1-0000-0-4301.00-0000-8110-735-000-000 12713
WARRANT TOTAL
20041737 970200/ STANDARD INSURANCE COWMPANY CB
Pv-140299 (1-0000-0-9520.00-0000-9900-090 - 006- 000 5000
{01-0000-0-9520. 00~ 00000000 - 600 - 060 000 5001
WARRANT TOTAL
20041738 070586/ TRAHAN MECHANICAL
py-140292 (1-8150-0-5600.00-6000-8110-735-00G- 000 15607
WARRANT TOTAL
20041739 070759/ YERIZON WIRELESS
£O-140055 1. 01-0000-0-5570.00-0000-2700-700-000-000 12713
WARRANT TOTAL
FE% FUND TOTALS #¥* TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 32 TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

H.02.09

Marin County O0ffice of Education
COMMERCTIAL WARRANT REGISTER

187 of 242

01706714 PAGE 23

$4,062.93

374.88

£3.58
$398.46

8,082.58
$6.082.58

103.29
$307.21

203.48
$203.48

232.58

460.5%
$693.12

345,04
$345.00

266.07
$266.07

$65, 084 . 29%



APYZ50

DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED G1/07/2014
BATCH: 0029 GENERAL FUND
FURD D13 CAFETERTA FUND
i NT VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REMITD) DEPOSIT TYPE
REQ$  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT 50 GOAL FUNC LOC ACY GRP
20041740 070811/ BARON BAKING LIC
Py - 140257 13-5310-0-6840.00-0000-3706-100-006-000
13-5310-0-5840, 0G-6000-3700-101-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL
20041741 000105/ CLOVER-STORMETTA FARMS
PV- 140295 13-5310-0-5840.00- 66003700106 - 060- 000
13-58310-(-5840.00-0000-3704-101-000 - 500
WARRANT TOTAL
20041742 ©T0BYY/ FOWLER BROTHERS
PY- 140360 13-5310-0-5840.60-0000-3700-1060-000-000
13-5310-0-5840, 00-0000-3700-101-060- 000
WARRANT TOTAL
20041743 070794/ NAMK HALTS ORGANIC
PV 14029 13-5310-0-5840.00-0009-3700- 100-000- 000
13-5310-0-5840.00-00600-3700- 161 - 000 000
WARRANT TOTAL
20041744 070799/ VERITABLE VEGETABLE INC.
PV~ 140298 13-5310-0-5840.00-0000-3760-100-00G- 000
13-5310-0-5840 ., 00- 0006-3700-101- 000 -000
WARRANT TOTAL
#E% FUND TOTALS % TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 5

H.02.049

Warin County Office of Education

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

188 of 242

ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIPTION

24-0113

240113

7548717

7548717

151975

151875

43175

343175

875244

875244

TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

G1/06/14 PARGE 24

17.85

17.85
$35.70

54.45

54 45
$108.49C

a7.8%

87.84
$175.69

50,00

50.00
$100.00

£0.00

60,00
$120.00

$540.29*%



APYZ50  H.02.09

GISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITG SCHOCL DISTRICY

Marin County Office of Fducation

COMMERCTAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/07/2014

BATCH: 0029 GENERAL FUKD

FURD t 14

DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND

i NT  VEMDOR/ADOR  NAME (RERIT) DERPGSIT TYPE

REG# REFERENCE LM FD RESC Y 0BJT $O GOAL FUMC LOC ACT GRP

ABA BUM  ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIFTION

01706714 PAGE 25

20041745 070798/

20041746 070777/

20041747 070785/

*x% FURD

JOHH LAMBIATH TRUCKING INC.

Py-140275 14-0060-0-6200.00- 00008500 - 735-000- 000
WARRANT TOTAL

MICHAEL PAUL COHPANY INC,

PY-140273 14-0400-¢-56208. 06- 5000 -8500-735-000- 600
WARRANT TOTAL

SCHOOL FACILITY CONSULTANTS

Py- 140287 14-0000-3-56800. 00-0000-8110-735-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL

TOTALS % TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 3

189 of 242

TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

3,322.00
$3.322.00

2,216.16
$2,216.16

798.75
$798.75

$6,336.91%



APYZED H.0Z2.09

DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITG SCHOOL DISTRICT

sarin County Office of Education

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/07/2014

BATCH: 0029 GENERAL FUND

FUND 1 40

SPECIAL RESERVE-CAP QUTLAY #1

HNT VENDOR/ADDR  NAME {REMIT) DEPGSIT TYPE

REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC ¥ OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

ABA UM ACCOURT RNUM
DESCRIPTION

01/06/14 PAGE 26

AMOUNT

20041748 470820/

20041759 070802/

20041750 7077/

GRASS TEX

PO-140113 1. 40-0000-0-6240.00-0000-8500-70¢-000-135
WARRANT TOTAL

MARINA LANDSCAPE INC.

PY-140294 40-0000-0-6240. 00-0000-8500-700-000-135
WARRANT TOTAL

HICHAEL PAUL COMPANY INC.

PY-140283 40-0000-0-6240,00-0000-8508-700-000-135
WARRANT TOTAL
®EKFLUND TOTALS #k* TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 3
Exk BATCH YOTALS TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 43
#ak BESTRICT TOTALS #%% TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 43

Printed: 0170772014 09:57:27

190 of 242

117342

313017-03

Apptication &

TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

TOTAL AMCUNT OF WARRANTS:

20,808.70
$20,808.70

161,2568.00
$1061,268.00

78.379.75
$78,379.75

$200,456.46%
$273,317.94%

$273,317.94*



VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION
Date | / 5 / /et

District Name  SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

pee s

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and dirscts paymen

of vendor payments inthe total of § ]2 3 %Y

FUND NUMBER BATOH NUMBER CAMOUNT
o7 fre, i ?f G50 b2
/ A A / # %‘u}/gf ji’r%«

T
i 30 S Dty 3%
. ) ~ } L

Authorized Signature L ot A i

il ; G T

LU e
{;;‘;
191 of 242

warin County Office of Education Bgsingsg Form Ho. 115
SRR It F I P S S K



APYZED
DISTRICT:

BATCH:
FUND

WARRANT

20042387

20042388

: 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA MM ACCOUNT BUM
REG# REFERENCE iN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION

07032¢/ ATRT CALHET 2

PG-140001 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-0000-27006-700-000-000 12713

WARRANT TOTAL

070711/ BRIGHT PATH THERAPISTS

PO-140106 1. 01-6500-0-5835.00-5770-1182-700-000- 000 1836

20042389

20042390

200642391

20042392

20042393

20042394

20042395

H.02.08 HMarin County Office of Education

COMMERCTAL WARRANT REGISTER
47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/10/2014
G030 GENERAL FUND

WARRANT TOTAL

o7oa08/ COu-G

PC-140138 1. 01-70%0-0-4300.00-1110-1010-000-000-111 H306513
1. 01-7050-0-4300.00-1110-1010-000-000-111 H366733
PO-146119 1. 01-9479-0-4300.00-1110-1010-000-000-111 H566735
PO-148128 1. 01-8150-8-5600.00-0000-8110-735-000-000 HX61830
WARRANT TOTAL
G004/ MARIN COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUC
PV-140304 01-9472-0-5210.00-1110-1010-100-000- 600 140557
WARRANT TOTAL
070614/ MEDICAL BILLING SYSTEMS INC.
PO-140080 1. 01-0026-0-5840.00-0000-3110-700-000-800 1201

WARRANT TGTAL

070776/ MIKE BROWN ELECTRIC

PV- 140309 01-815G-0-5600.00-5000-8110-735-000-000 PO 06
WARRANT TOTAL
Gronzez/ TENTISHA TATE
PY-140305 01-9472-0-4300.00-1110-1010-100-000-000 Family Night Food
WARRANT TOTAL
070828/ EMILTE THORAS
PY-140303 01-000C-0-9556.00-0000- 000G- 000 500 GLO 0ASDI refund
HARRANT TOTAL
G70525/ US BANCORP EQUIP. FINANCE INC
PG-140052 1. 01-0000-0-5605.00-0G000-2700-700-000-000 12/13

192 of 242

01/09/14  PAGE

AMOU

331,
$331,

787.
$787.

552,
1,384,
318,

4,155,
$6,421.

480.
$460.

209,
$200.

3,863,
$3.8063.

a3.
$83.

8.
$8.

744,

56

WY

83
83

50
50

27

a6
54

29
Go

0o
00

ity
00

21
2%

68
68

a7



01/09/14 PAGE 57

115,081,600
$115,081.00

APYZRG H.02.09 Harin County Office of Education
COMMERCTAL WARRANT REGISTER
DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/10/2014
BATCH: 0030 GENERAL FUND
FUND ;01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA N ACCOUNT NUM
REQE  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION

WARRANT TOTAL

20042388 002172/ WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY

PY- 144302 01-0600-0-8096.00-0800-8200-163-000- 0068 January 14 in teu
WARBANT TOTAL
ik EURD TOTALS *wx TOTAL MUMBER OF WARRANTS: 18 TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:

193 of 242

$127,981.63%



APYZS50  H.02.09 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/10/2014
BATCH: 0030 GENERAL FUND
FURD D13 CAFETERIA FUND
WARRANT  VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REQ#  REFERENCE LN FO RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACY GRP DESCRIPTION
20042337 070800/ CLM GrROUP
PO-140097 1. 13-5310-8-4307.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 25408
WARRANT TOTAL
20042398 070827/ MARIN SUN FARMS
PY-140310 13-5310-0-5840.00-0000-3700-100-600-000 13485
13-5310-0-5840.00-0000-3700-101-000- 000 73485
WARRANT TOTAL
ok FUND TOTALS #%% TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 2 TOTAL AMOURT OF WARRANTS:

194 of 242

01/08/14  PAGE 58

1,194,779
$1,194.79

91.97

91.96
$183.93

$1,378.72%



01/09/14 PAGE 53

AMOUNT

21,692.38

12,412.490
$34,014.38

$34,014.38*

$163,374.73*

APYZED  H.02.09 Marin County Office of Cducation
COMMERCTAL WARRANT REGISTER
DISTRICT: 47 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/10/2014
BATCH: 0030 GENERAL FUND
FUND o AD SPECTAL RESERVE~CAP QUTLAY #1
WARRANT VENDOR/ADOR HAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
RECH  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
20042399 070776/ MIKE BROWN £LECTRIC
PV - 140307 A5-0000-0-6240.00-0000-850G-700-6006-135 Applications 3-4
FY- 144308 40-0000-0-6240, 060000 -8500-700-000-135 PCO 010R1
WARRANT TOTAL
FhE FUND TOTALS *x# TOTAL MUMBER OF WARRANTS: 1 TOTAL AMCUNT GF WARRANTS:
ok BATCH TOTALS #%% TOTAL MUMBER OF WARRANTS: 13 TOTAL AMOUNT OF WARRANTS:
*%% BISTRICT TOTALS #%% TOTAL NUMBER OF WARRANTS: 13 TOTAL AMCUNT OF WARRANTS:

Printed: §1/09/2014 12:47:00

195 of 242

$163.374.73%



Sausalito Marin City School Bistrict

Agenda Item: 1001 Date: January 14, 2014

mmmmmmmmmmmm Correspondence
~ Reports
__ General Functions
_______ _ Pupil Services
~ Personnel Services
__________ Financial & Business Procedures
X Curriculum and Instruction
__ Policy Development

{tern Requires Board Aetion: __ X Hent is for Information Ouly: ~
Ttem:  Instructional Minutes and Bell Schedules for the 2013-2014 School Year
Background:

According to Board Policy, the Board of Trustees shall assign the length of the school day subject to the
provisions of the law. Education Codes 46111-46117 prescribe the minimum instructional minutes as follows:

Kindergarten: 180 minutes/day; 36,000/vear (EC 46115) (240 max., EC 46111
Grades 1-3 230 minutes/day; 50,400/vear (EC 46112) (240 max., EC 461115
Grades 4-8 240 minutes/day; 54,000/year (EC 46113} (240 max., EC 46111)

The attached charts indicate tnstructional minute caleulations and proposed bell schedules for the 2013-14
school year,

As stated above, the proposed minutes for Bayside/MLK meet and exceed the legal requirements,

Fiscal bmpact:
There 1s no direct financial impact from this adjustment.

Recommendation:
This item is brought before the board for approval and discussion.

Prepared for: Steve Van Zant
Prepared by: P. Rigney

196 of 242



Sausalito Marin City School District

IMSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES BELL SCHEDULE

School Year 20132014

School: Bayside Elementary/MLK

E_@gu%ar g}ﬂy_{;

Start 315 AM 8:15 AM 215 AM 315 AM 8:15 AM
End 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 3:00 PM 3.00 PM 3:00 PM
Mumber of Hours 545 B:45 5:45 5:45 0:45
Mumber of Minutes 345 405 405 405 405
Less: Recass -0 -10 -1 -0 -16
Less: Lunch -40 -4 40 ~AQ -40
Actual Daily Instructional Minutes 295 355 355 355 355
Nurnber of Regular Days 137 137 137 137 137
Actual Minutes - Regular Days 40,415 48,635 48,635 48,635 48 635
Mintmum Days e

Start 8:15 AM 3:15 Al 815 AM 8:15 AM 315 AM
=nd 12:30 P 12:30 PM 12:30 PM 12:30 PM 12:30 PM
Mumber of Hours 4:15 4:15 415 415 4:15
Number of Minutes 255 2585 255 255 255
Less Recess -1G -1G =10 -10 10y
Lass: Lunch Ny 48 -44 -40 -4()
Actual Daily Instructional Minutos 205 206 205 205 208
Number of Minimum Days 3 & 8 8 B
Actual Minutes - Minimum Days 1,230 1,230 1,230 1,230 1,230
Wadnasday Schedule v 0

Start B:15 AM 3:15 AM 815 AM 315 AM 815 AM
End 200 PM 200 PM 2:00 PM 2:00 PM 2:00 P
Number of Hours 545 5.45 545 545 545
Number of Minutes 345 345 345 345 345
Less: Recess -10 =10 -10 -10 -1G
tess: Lunch -4 -40 40 ~40 -403
Actual Daily Instructional Minutss 295 295 2G5 285 285
Number Wead. Days 37 37 37 37 37
Actual Minutes - Wed. Days 10,915 10,915 10,815 10,915 10,915
| Total No. of Instructional Days | 180] 180} 150] 180} 180]
Annual Instructional Minutes

Total Annual Instructional Minutes 52,560 80,780 60,780 60,780 GG, 780
Requited Mumber of Minutes 36,0001 of 242,400 50,400 50,400 54,000




Sausalito Marin City School District

INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES BELL SCHEDULE

School Year 20112-2013

School: Bayside Elementary/MLK

Start 8:15 Al 815 AM 215 AM
End 3:00 PM 3:00 PM 3:00 PR
Mumber of Houwrs 545 6:45 G:45
Number of Minutes 405 405 405
Less: Recess -10 -10 -10
Less: Lunch -4} -40 -44
Actual Daily Instructional Minutes 355 355 355
Mumber of Reguiar Days 137 137 137
Actual Minutes - Regular Days 48 835 48 835 48,635
o o MinimumDays
Start 815 AM 2:15 AM 3:15 AM
End 12:30 PM 12:30 1P 1230 P
Number of Hours 4:15 4:15 415
Number of Minutes 255 255 255
Less: Recess =10 ~10 -10
Less: Lunch -40 -40 -2G
Actual Daily instructional Minutes 205 205 225
Number of Minimum Days G B g
Actual Minutes - Minimum Davs 1,230 1,230 1,350
AR E Wadnesday Schedule o s
Start 215 AMI 8:15 AM &15 AM
End 2:00 PM 2:00 PM 2:00 PM
Mumber of Hours 5:45 5:45 5:45
Number of Minutes 345 345 345
Less: Recess =10 =10 -10
Less: Lunch -4 -40 -40
Actual Daily Instructional Minutfes 285 295 285
Number of Wed. Days 37 37 37
Actual Minutes - Wed, Days 10,915 10,915 10,815
[Total No. of Instructional Days 1804 1801 180]
Annual Instructional Minules
Total Annual Instructionat Minutes 80,780 60,780 60,800
Required Number of Minutes 54 000 54 000 54 000
198 gP @42 8,780 6,780] 5,800




. L % &if: 7 e s
¥y = irvgen o pnpdifiom mdieyy
tae % PHTIE e Ui aion

SITE SCHEDULE

Flease read the aitached "Program Advisory memao

instructionat level at your stia:

FHCAM ar KPR

and compleie one form for each

36,000 annual minuies

*Primary, 1-3

50,000 annual minutes

“Intermediate, 4-6

Gd 000 annual minutss

Junior High, 7-8

54,000 annual minutes

High Schaol, 2412

54,800 annual minuta

Hegutar Day

Hegins A5
.l AT o R

instructional Pariod 1

ST

uctional Period 2

instr

aci

instructional Peariod 4

Begins

Lunch : '

Ends

(S S N 4
se atiach bell achedule

instractional Mingtes

10:20

TR -

=y
[%a)

(o]

1180

P ey

80

el

Begins 11:50 Ends 1230 4
instructional Peried 5

Begins 123 Ends Q0

Beging Ends b

MNumber of Re

Total Annual Minutes

P

£
3

[#1}

Principal Signature

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:

199 of 242



BCHGOL 8iTE Bayside MUK

Please read the alfached “Program Advisory memo and complele one form for each
instructional level at your stie;

AN o )P
“Erimary, 1-3

 annual minuies
y annuat minuies
“intermediate, 4-6 G0 annual minutes.
Junior High, 7-8 ﬂuai minuias
High School, 8-12 64,800 annual minuies

0
3O
e
(oo
C“3 C)

9!

h
Ja

L
_-{l\
o o
o]
L)
{D

Pleaso aitach bell schedule

i Wadnesday tnstructional Minutes

Begins

instructional Penod 1
Beging Ends 0

Baging 7 Ends 0
Recess
Ends 1230 {

instructional Perod 5

Bagins 10:30 Erds 1120 50
instructional benod 4. I
Beging Ends {2
Lunch B .
Bagins Ends 12:00 &
Instructiona T
Begins a0 Ends 206 120
Recess
Beagins Ends 0
instructional Period 7 T
Beging Ends O
"""""""""""" R Total Daly Minutes 255
Number of Wednesdays: 37
37x295 10818

I Annual Minutes 10,8

Principal Signaturs Date

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:

200 of 242



e Gerlitication

instructiona

“K-AM or K-P

36,000 annua

ached *Program Advisory memo and complete one form for e

minutes

*Primary, 1-3

0,000 annual minutes

intarmeaiagie, 4-8 54,000 annual minutes
Junjor High, 7-8 24,000 annual minutes
High Schoal, 912 24, 800 annual minuies

*Please attach bell

1-5 Grade Hegular Day

Begins 815
structional Peviod 1
Bagins Ends

instruction

ai Panod 2

Seg,ns Ends
Recess T
Beging 1020 Ends 10035
Instructional Per LHUC 3 T
Beg%r‘s 0:30 Ends 1150
instructio }J?'Z:{i}' ’ T
Bagim Erwig
Lunch T T

instructional Perod 7

Begins 1:35 Ends 300
Totai Daily Minutes
Number of Regular Davs: 137 137x355

T&m Annual Minutes

nstructional Min

ytas

o
L)

150

0

201 of 242

<



Please read the attached “Program Advisory memo and compiete ene form for each
instructional level at your stie:

HHR-AM o K-PIM 38,000 annual minutes

*Prirmary, 1-3 03,000 annual minuies
’*m*:ermbd;ate, 4-6 54 200 annual minuies
Junior High, 7-8 _ 54 000 annual minuias
High School, 9-12 64,800 annual minutes

Tsi-Oih Waddnesday instructionsl Minuiss
Begins 15 Ends ERSS 101
instructional baniod 1 T
Haging Ends 0
instructional Period 2 R "
Begins Ends i
Resess T "
Begins Q'fif2 Ends 10:08 0

e Lo e A

Bwinf Ends 11:20 74
instructional Pumd 4
Begins B Ends 0
L.unch
Begins 1120 Ends 1200 0
Instructional Feriod 5
Bagins 1200 120
Regess
Begine Ends 0
instructional Period 7
Beging 7 O
Tatal Daily Minutes 295
Number of Wednesdays 37
Annual minutes 37 X 265 10815
- Total Annual Minutes 10,8158
- \ "':-\i\ o ciLnpit . rf -
Pring ::v@’n sture Date

) "E HOMAL COMMENTS

202 of 242



¥ ,,»f«.\.” = '%e" Fr § wﬁ}z%w_w i ?’%“ 2 =‘i’.{ e 3 e
nstruchional ime Certificalion
YEAR 2013-2614 SITE BCHEMULE
STHOOL SITE Bayside MLK

Plaasa read the alached *Progra
Hevel at your siie;

AN or KPP

m Advisory mamo

and complets one form for sach

38,000 annual minutes

“Primary, 1-3

53,000 annual minutes

**Intermediate, 4-6

84,000 annual minutes

Junior High, 7-8

54 000 annual minutes

High School, 8-12

64,800 annual minutes

K- 5th grads Minkmum Day
Instructional Period 1

Begins 815

R R AT LN

.
©nos

Recass

Begins 1020 Ends
Instructional Do wmé‘mi

Bagins cH Ends
Lunch o

Bagins 1150 Ends

N LA S

Tty

£
o
3
or
&
-5
Q
=
=)
=
=3
jnd
o
)
13
[y
23]

6,\(2&5

12:30

T L R T

Total Laily Mingts

Principal Sig
/

anature

L.

ABGITIONAL COMMENTS:

nstructional Minutes
125
0
8
2058
1,230
Date

203 of 242



SV AT S SO B A T SRS . SIS S
nstructions Time Cartinicalion
YEAR 2013-2014 SITE SCHEDULE
SCHOOL SiTE Bayside MLK

,.

Please read the attached
instructional is

ve! at your stie:

“H-AM or i“- 39“?

“Program Advisory mamoe and complete one form for eac

36,000 annual minutes
“Brimary, 1 50,000 annual minuies
b imerm%mme, 4.6 54 000 annual iminutes
Junior High, 7-8 54 000 annuat minutes
High School, 9-12 B4 800 annual minutes
“Blaasa attach hell scheduls
8-8 Grade Regular Day instructional Minutes
Begins 815 Ends 1105 170
instructional Period 1 T
Haging Ends O
instructional Pericd 2. T
Begins Ends G
Recess T
Ends 1115 8
instructional Period 3 T
ﬁ**mm Ercts 12:43 88
Eegms 0
Lunch T o
Beging 12:43 Ends {
nstructional Pericd 5
Beging 1223 Ends 300 97
instiuctional Period 7 A
Beginsg Ends i
T Total Dally Minutes T 356
Number of Regular Days 137
137385 ABB35

S
Principal Signature

ADDITIONAL COM BIENTS:

204 of 242

.

n



Fieas
instructional level af &

= ®
C
£

GAM or K-PM

34,000 annual minutes

*Primary, 1-3

50,000 annual minutes

intermediate, 4-6

54,000 annusal minutes

Junior High, 7-8

54,000 annual minuiss

High Schoot, 3-12

84 800 annual minutes

Begins 8:15

instructionat Period 4
Beging

Instructional Feriod 2
Beging

Recass T—
Begins

!nsf;suction Pariod 3

CI]i'}“

fnsh Lctrowi Seri
Begins

Lunch rmm——
Begins

instructionat Parind &
Begins 12740

T AL A TN

AQ.SE;

EARE

1045

ol B A S

od 4

12:00

Hecass

’E

Beging
tnstructional Paried 7
Begins

Erids

A LA AT A B PSR

P AR

1045

A R TR

Ends 12:00

B e el el

D AR RIS

Enels 12

S ek o oot ]

2:00

P A RPN B

37

Total Annual Minutes

ingtructional

ufas

140G

Lowic}

a0

AL A A S S

9

e A R SR

285

oS

10815

Prnu

"i{]ﬁ;TiO\f“

COMBMENTS,

Date

205 of 242



SCHOCL SITE Bayside MLK

Please read the aitached "Program Advisory memo and complate one form for each

nstructional leve! at vour stie: :

*CAM o KPS

36,000 annual minutes

SPrimary, -3

. 50,000 annual minuies

Sntermediate, 46

34,000 annyal minuies

- Juplor High,

54,000 annuabmihules

&4,800 ganual minules

Instructionsl Minutes

110

0

a5

205

et S R B AT

1,230

LEYEL gth - 4th Grade Minlmum Day
instructional Period 1
Heqins Ends
Hecess
Begins 10,85 Ends 1015
instructional Period 2
Begins Ends 1150
iunch
Segins 11:50 Ends 12:30
S Total Daily Minules
Number of Minimum Days &
Annuzt minutas Bx205 Total
.. '."‘*. — i i

P

Principal Signature

e ATDITIONAL COMMENTS:

206 of 242



Sausalite Marin City School District

Agenda Item: 11.01 Date: January 14, 2014
. Correspondence _ Consent Agenda
Reports

_ (General Funciions
Pupil Services
Personnel Services
Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction

item Requires Board Action: X Item is for Information Only:

item: Board Policy (BP) & Administrative Regulation (AR} 1230— School Connected
organizations

Background:

Last month, this ifern was brought to the Board as a frst read.  This month the board 1s
asked to approve the policy.

Fincal Impact:

Undetermined

Recommendation:

Approve

Prepared for: S, Van Zant
Prepared by: S, Van Zant

207 of 242



BP 1230
Community Relations
School-Connected Organizations

Note: The term "school-connected organization” may include booster clubs, parent-teacher
associations aligned with the California State PTA, or other pareni-teacher organizations. These
organizations generally raise money for classroom activities or activities at specific schools. For
policy language about a district’s relationship with a foundation, see BP 1260 - Educational
Foundation.

The Governing Board recognizes that parents/guardians and community members may wish to
organize parent organizations and/or booster clubs for the purpose of supporting district and
extracurricular programs, such as athletic teams, debate teams. or musical groups. The Board
appreciates the contributions made by such organizations and encourages their interest and
participation in supporting district activities and helping to achieve the district's vision for
student learning.

Note: Generally, booster and parent clubs are separate legal entities from the district and thus are
not under the control or the responsibility of district personnel. However, Education Code 31521
requires that any fund-raising activity by a school-connected organization, designed to raise
money to benefit a school or its students, receive approval from the Governing Board. Thus, it is
recommended that districts create an internal control procedure to help ensure district
compliance with law.

The Board recognizes that school-connected organizations are separate legal entities,
independent of the district. However, in order to help the Board fulfill its legal and fiduciary
responsibility to manage district operations, any school-connected organization that desires to
raise money to benefit any district student shall submit & request for authorization to the Board,
in aceordance with Board policy and administrative regulation. In addition, the Superintendent or
designee shall establish appropriate internal controls for the relationship between school-
conmected organizations and the district.

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 31520, food sales by outside organizations may not compete
with the district's school nutrition program and must comply with the nutritional standards
specified in Education Code 49431 and 49431.2. See BP/AR 3554 - Other Food Sales.

The Board encourages school-connected organizations to consider the impact of fund-raising
activities on the overall school and district program. School-connected organizations may consult
with the principal to determine school needs and priorities. Activities by school-connected
organizations shall not conflict with law, Board policies, administrative regulations, or any rules
of the sponsoring school.

208 of 242



AR 1230
Community Relations
Sehool-Connected Organizations

Persons proposing to establish a school-connected organization shall submit a request to the
Governing Board for authorization to operate at the school. The request for authorization shall
contain:

1 The name and purpose of the organization
7. The date of application

3. Bylaws, rules, and procedures under which the organization will operate, including procedures
for maintaining the organization's finances, membership qualifications, if any, and an agreement
that the group will not engage in unlawful discrimination

4. The names, addresses, and phone numbers of all officers
5. A list of specific objectives

6. An agreement to grant the distriet the right to audit the group's financial records at any time,
sither by district personnel or a certified public accountant

7 The name of the bank where the organization's account will be located and the names of those
authorized to withdraw funds

&. The signature of the principal of the supporting schoot

9. Planned use for any money remaining at the end of the year if the organization 1s not
continued or authorized to continug in the future

Note: Education Code 38134 requires school-connected organizations o insure against any

Jiability resulting from the organization's negligence during an oz*ganization»spoﬂsored gvent on
school facilities. See BP/AR 1330 - Use of School Facilities.

10. An agreement 10 provide evidence of Hability insurance as required by law

Requests for subsequent authorization shall be presented (o the Superintendent of designee
annually, along with a financial statement showing all income and expenditures from fund-
raisers. If the Superintendent or designee proposes to deny the request for reauthorization, he/she
shall present his recommendation to the Board for approval.

Upon consent of the Superintendent or designee, school-connected organizations may usc the
school's name, school team's name, or any logo attributable to the school or district.
School-connected organizations are prohibited from hiring ot directly paying district employees.
Organizations may make donations to the district to cover the costs of additional employees, but
anly if such positions are approved in advance by the Board. At their discretion, employees may
volunteer to perform activities for school-connected organizations during non-working houss.

(9/90 12/90) 7/07

209 of 242



Sausalite Marin City School District

Agenda [tem: 11.02 Pate: January 14, 2014
_ Correspondence _ Consent Agenda
_ Reports

__Qeneral Functions
~ Pupil Services
Personnel Services
Financial & Business Procedures
Curricutum and Instruction
% Policy Development

item Requires Board Action: X Tem is for Information Only:
Item: Board Policy (BP) and Administrative Regulation (AR) 1240~ Volunteers
Backgreund:

Last month, this item was brought to the Board as a first read.  This month the Board is
asked to approve the policy.

Fiscal Impact:

Undetermined

Fecommendation:

Approve

Prepared for: S. Van Zant
Prepared by: S. Van Zant

210 of 242



BP 1240
Community Relations
Volunteer Assistance

The Governing Board recogmizes that volunteer assistance in schools can enrich the educational
program. increase supervision of students, and contribute to school safety while strengthening
the schools’ relationships with the community. The Board encourages parents/guardians and
other members of the community to share their time, knowledge, and abilitics with students.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement a plan for recruiting, sereening, and
placing volunteers, including strategies for reaching underrepresented groups of
parents/guardians and community members. He/she may also recruit community members to
serve as mentors to students and/or make appropriate referrals to community organizations.

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall provide volunteers with information about
school goals, programs, and practices and an orieniation or other training related to their specific
responsibitities. Employees who supervise volunteers shall ensure that volunteers are assigned
meaningful responsibilities that wilize their skills and expertise and maximize their contribution
to the educational program.

Volunteer mamtenance work shall be limited to those projects that do not replace the normal
maintenance duties of classified staff. The Board nevertheless encourages volunteers to work on
short-term projects to the extent that they enhance the classroom or school, do not significantly
increase rmaintenance workloads, and comply with employee negotiated agreements.

Yohunteer aides shall not be used to assist certificated staff in performing teaching or
administrative responsibilitics in place of regularly authorized classified employees who have
been laid off. (Education Code 350213

Volunteers shall act in accordance with district policies, regulations, and school rules. The
Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for investigating and resolving complaints

regarding volunteers.

The Board encourages principals to develop a means for recognizing the contributions of each
school’s volunteers.

The Superintendent or designee shall periodically report to the Board regarding the district's
volunteer assistance program.

Qualifications
The Superimtendent or designee shall establish procedures for determining whether volunteers

possess the qualifications, if any, required by law and administrative regulation for the types of
duties they will perform.

211 of 242



Note: Effective July 9, 2010, AB 346 {Ch. 52, Statutes of 2010) amended Education Code 49024
to require any volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored student activity program
to obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate {ASCC) from the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing, unless the district requires the volunteer to clear a Department of Justice (DOJ)
and Federal Bureau of Investigation (FB1) criminal background check prior to beginning the
volunteer duties. This legislation was introduced in response to legislation passed in 2009 (AB
1023, Ch. 379, Statutes of 2009) which had required noncertificated personnel or volunteers who
"supervise, direct, or coach the activity” to obtam an ASCC.

Prior to assuming a volunteer position to work with students in a district-sponsored student
activity prograin, a volunteer shall obtain both a Departiment of Justice and Federal Bureau of
Investigation criminal background check through the district. (Education Code 490245

A volunteer who possesses a current Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate from the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing, issued prior to July 9, 2010, shall have satisfied district
requirements for the criminal background check. (Education Code 49024;

212 of 242



AR 1240
Community Relations
Volunteer Assistance
Daties of Volunteers

Volunteers may assist certificated personnel in the performance of their duties, in the supervision
of students, and in instructional tasks which, in the judgment of the certificated personnel to
which the volunteer is assigned, may be performed by a person not licensed as a classroom
teacher. These duties shall not include assignment of grades to students. (Education Code 45343,
45344, 45349

Volunteers may supervise students during lunch, breakfast, or other nutritional periods or may
serve as nonteaching aides under the immediate supervision and direction of certificated
personnel to perform noninstructional work which assists certificated personnel in the

44813)

Volunteers may work on short-term facilities projects pursuant to Board policy and the section
below entitled "Volunteer Facilities Projects.”

Qualifications

Volunteers providing supervision or instruction of students pursuant to Education Code 45349
shall give evidence of basic skills proficiency. (Education Code 45344.3, 45349)

Note: Effective July 9, 2010, AB 346 (Ch. 52, Statutes of 2010} amended Education Code 49024
to require any volunteer who works with students in a student activity program, as defined
below, to obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate from the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing, unless the district requires the candidate to clear a Department of Justice and
Federal Rureau of Investigation criminal background check prior to beginning the volunteer
duties. See the accompanying Board policy for options that may be selected or adapted by the
district.

Any volunteer working with studenis in a district-sponsored student activity program shall obtain
an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate or criminal background check in accordance with
Board policy. The Superintendent or designee shall determine which volunteer positions in the
district are subject to this requirement.

“Student activity programs” include, but are not limited to, scholastic programs, wmterscholastic
programs, and extracurricular activities sponsored by the district or a school booster club, such as
cheer team, drill team, dance team, and marching band. This requirement shall not apply to
volunteer supervisors for breakfast, lunch, or other nutritional periods or to volunteer
nonteaching aides under the immediate supervision and direction of certificated personnel
pursuant to Education Code 35021, including parents/guardians volunteering in a classroom or

213 of 242



on a field trip or community members providing noninstructional services, {(Education Code

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 35021 and 45349, a district is prohibited from assigning a
registered sex offender as a volunteer who assists certificated personnel in the performance of
their duties; supervises students during lunch, breakfast, or other nutritional period; or serves as a

person registered as a sex offender to disclose his/her status as a registrant when he/she applies
for or accepts a position as a volunteer where the work would require himy/her to work directly
and in an unaccompanied setting with minor children on more than an incidental and occasional
basis, to have supervision or disciplinary power over minor children, or to touch minor children
on more than an incidental basis. Penal Code 290.85 also requires disclosure when the person
would be working directly and in an unaccompanied setiing providing goods or services to
minors. See BP/AR 3515.5 - Sex Offender Notitication.

The Superintendent or designee shall not assign any person required to register as a sex offender
pursuant to Penal Code 290 as a volunteer who assists certificated personnel in the performance
of their duties; supervises students during lunch, breakfast, or other nutritional period; ot serves
as a nonteaching aide to perform noninstructional tasks. in addition, a person who is required to
register as a sex offender because of a conviction for a crime where the victim was a minor under
age 16 shall not serve as a volunteer in any capacity in which he/she would be working directly
and in an unaccompanied sefting with minors on more than an incidental and occasional basis or
have supervision or disciplinary power over minors. (Education Ceode 35021, 45349: Penal Code
290.95)

Note: Districts may verify whether a person is a registered sex offender by checking the
Department of Justice's Megan's Law web site, asking law enforcement to conduct a check
pursuant to Education Code 35021.1, and/or requiring volunieers to certify as to their status. The
following paragraph should be moditied to retlect district practice.

The Superintendent or designee may require all velunteers to disclose their status as a registered
sex offender and/or provide the district with sufficient information in order to allow verification
of this status on the Department of Justice's Megan's Law web site.

Note: Education Code 45347 and 45349 require that volunteers providing supervision or
instruction meet the obligations required of classified staff. Pursuant to Education Code 49406,
tuberculosis testing is one of these obligations; see AR 4112.4/4212.4/4312 .4 - Health
Examinations. In areas where there is a high incidence of tuberculosis, the district may revise the
following paragraph to require more frequent tests or to require that all volunteers be tested.

No volunteer shall be assigned to supervise or instruct students unless he/she bas submuitted
evidence of an examination within the past 60 days to determine that he/she is free of active
tuberculosis. Volunteers who test negative shall thereafter be required to take a tuberculosis test
every four years in accordance with Education Code 49406. (Education Code 45106, 45347,

214 of 242



The Superintendent or designee may exempt from tuberculosis testing requirements those
volunteers who serve less than a school year and whose functions do not require frequent or
prolonged contact with students. (Education Code 49406)

Yolunteer Facilities Projects

Note: The following optional section should be revised to reflect district practice.

Note: Pursuant to Labor Code 1720.4, volunteers are exempt from laws requiring workers

employed in public works projects (e.g., construction and repair work) to be paid at least the
general prevailing rate of per diem wages.

All volunteer factlities projects shall have approximate start and completion dates and shall be
approved by the principal in advance. Projects also shall be approved in advance by the
Superintendent or designee if they involve the following tvpes of work:

1. Alterations, additions, or repairs to buildings and grounds

2. Construction invoiving wall or roof penetration, drilling, or nailing

3. Structural modifications

4. Electrical, electronic, plumbing, or heating and cooling work

5. Painting

&. Installation of carpet, playground equipment, benches, sprinkler svstems, marquees or signs
7. Paving

8. Tree planting, pruning, or removal

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that volunteers possess the appropriate license
and/or have sufficient expertise appropriate to the project. He/she shall also ensure that such
projects comply with building and safety codes and other applicable laws and collective
bargaining agreements. The district shall provide on-site assistance and supervision for such

projects as necessary. Projects shall be inspected upon completion to ensure that the work was
done satisfactorily.

215 of 242



Sausalite Marin City School District

Agenda Item: 11.03 Date: January 14, 2014
_______ _ Correspondence _Consent Agenda
o Reports

_ Genperal Functions
_ Pupil Services
Personnel Services
_ Financial & Business Procedures
_ Curriculum and Instruction
X Policy Development

Item Requires Board Action: X ___ Iter is for Information Oaly:r _
Ttem: Board Policy (BP) 1260~ Foundations
Background:

Tast month, this item was brought to the Board as a first read. This month the Board is
asked to approve the poliey.

Fiscal Impact:

Undetermined

Recommendation:

Approve

Prepared for: 5. Van Zant
Prepared by: 5. Van Zant

216 of 242



BP 1260
Community Relations
Educational Foundations

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of community support of district programs,
including voluntary financial conteibutions, to assist the district in achieving its goals for student
fearning.

Note: Educational foundations may be created to henefit the entire district, a specitic school, or
to support or sustain a variety of purposes. such as the arts, music, and/or computer programs; to
provide graduating students with scholarships and/or loans; and to develop programs which meet
new educational needs. It is strongly recommended that the Board and foundation work
cooperatively to identify specific needs and to develop guidelines as to how resources will be
used. For language regarding the acceptance of gifts and grants, see BP 3290 - (ifts, Grants and
Bequests.

The Board desires to work cooperatively with the educational foundation in determining the
purposes for which funds may he used to meet the changing needs of the district and its students.
The Board recognizes that an educational foundation is a separate legal entity, independent of the
district. However, the foundation is encouraged to provide regular reports to the Board on the
status of its work and to communicate ways that the district can help support the foundation’s
activities.

With the consent of the Supetintendent or designee, the educational foundation, as appropriate,
may use the district's name, a school's name. a school team's name, or any logo attributable to a

school or the district.

The Board supports foundation allocations that serve all district schools equitably.

217 of 242



Sausalite Marin City School District

Agenda Hem: 11.04 Date: January 14,2014
_ Correspondence Consent Agenda

_ Reports
General Functions
_ Pupil Services
 Personunel Services
Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction
X Policy Development

Item Requires Board Action: X ftem is for Information Only:

ftem: Board Policy (BP) and Administrative Regulation (AR} 3312.2 — Educational
Travel Program Contracts

Background:

T ast month, this item was brought to the Board as a first read.  This month the Board is
asked to approve the policy.

Fiscal Empact:

Undetermined

Beocommendation:

Approve

Prepared for: 8. Van Zant
Prepared by: 3. Van Zant

218 of 242



e
javi
a2
(R
—
B
o

Business and Noninstructional Operations
Educational Travel Program Contracis

The Governing Board believes that field trips and other travel opportunities for students are &
valuable toal In supporting classroom instruction and promoting students’ awareness of places
and events. In contracting with organizations to provide educational travel services, the Board
desires to ensure a quality educational experience and the health, safety and welfare of each
student traveler.

The Superintendent or designee shall contract only with educational travel organizations which
adhere to state law and exhibit safe and reputable business practices.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for selecting the highest quality
vendor, taking into account student safety, quality of the program and fiscal integrity.

219 of 242



AR 33127
Business and Noninstructional Operations
Eduecational Travel Program Contraets
Definitions

Educational travel organization or organization means a person, partnership, corporation, or
other entity which offers educational travel programs for students residing in California,
(Business and Professions Code 17552}

Student traveler or student means a person who is enrolled in elementary or secondary school,
orades kindergarten through grade 12, at the time an educational travel program is arranged with
an educational travel organization. (Business and Professions Code 17552)

Educational travel program means travel services that are arranged through or offered to an
elementary or secondary school in the state, and where the services are represented to include an
educational program as a component. (Business and Professions Code 17532)

Owner means a person or organization which owns or controls 10 percent or more of the equity
of, or otherwise has claim to 10 percent or more of the net income of, the educational travel

Principal means an owner, an officer of a corporation, a general partner of & partnership, or a sole
proprietor of a sole proprietorship. (Business and Professions Code 17554)

Contract Requirements

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each written contract with an educational travel
organization includes all of the following: (Business and Professions Code 17534)

1. The travel organization’s name, trade or business name, business address, business elephone
number and a 24-hour emergency contact number

2. An ttermized statement which shall include but not be limited to:

a. Services to be provided as part of the program

b. Agreed cost for the services

c. A statement as to whether or not the educational travel organization maintains insurance that
supplies coverage in the event of injury to any student traveler, including the type and amount of

coverage, the policy number and issuer, and the name and telephone number of the person ox
organization which is able to verily coverage

220 of 242



d. Any additional costs to students

e, The qualifications, if any, for experience and training that are required to be met by the
educational travel organization's staff who shall accompany students on the educational travel
program

3. A written description of the educational program being contracted for, including a copy of all
materials to be provided to studenis

4, The number of times the educational travel program or a substantially similar educational
travel program proposed by the contract has been conducted by the organization and the number
of students who completed the program

5. The length of time the organization has either been arranging or conducting educational travel
programs and, at the option of the organization, other travel services with substantially similar
components

6. The name of each owner and principal of the organization

7. A statement as to whether any owner or principal of the organization has had entered against
him or her any judgment, inctuding a stipulated judgment, order, made a plea of nolo contendere
or been convicted of any criminal violation 1n connection with the sale of any travel services for
a pertod of 10 years predating the coniract

District staff shall inform all vendors representing educational travel organizations that they may

not arrange a travel program before the district has first entered info a writien contract with the
organization.

221 of 242



Sausalito Marin City School Distriet

Agenda ftem: 11.05 frate: January 14, 2014
- Correspondence Consent Agenda
mmmmm Reports

General Functions
_ Pupil Services
Personnel Services
~ Financial & Business Procedures
~ Curriculum and Instruction
X Policy Development

Ttem Reguires Board Action: X ftem is for Information Only:
ftem: Board Policy (BP) & Administrative Regulation (AR) 3100- Budget

Backeground:

Last month, this ftem was brought to the Board as a first read.  This month the Board is
asked to approve the policy.

Fiscal Impact:

Undetermined

Recommendation:

Approve

Prepared for: S. Van Zant
Prepared by: 5. Van Zant

222 of 242



BP 3100

Business and Noninstructional Operations
Budget

The Governing Board recognizes its crifical responsibility for adopting a sound budget for each
fiscal year which is aligned with the distriet’s vision, goals, priorities, and comprehensive plans.
The district budget shall guide administrative decisions and actions throughout the year and shall
serve as a tool for monitoring the fiscal health of the district,

The district budget shall show a complete plan and itemized statement of all proposed
expenditures and all estimated revenues for the following fiscal year, together with a comparison
of revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year. The budget shall also include the
appropriations limit and the total annual appropriations subject to limitation as determined
pursuant to Government Code 7900-7914. (Education Code 421273

Note: Pursuant to Fducation Code 42127, as amended by AB 97 (Ch. 47, Statutes of 2013}, prior
to adopting the district budget for the 2014-15 fiscal year, the Governing Board must adopt a
1ocal control and accountability plan (LCAP). Each fiscal year thereafter, the Board must not
adopt the district budget vntil it has an approved LCAP or update to the LCAP that is effective
for the budget year. Bducation Code 52062, added by AB 97, requires that the LCAP or annual
update be adopted at the same public meeting during which the Board adopts the budget. See
RP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan.

The Board shall adopt the budget only after a local control and accountability plan (LCAP)
developed pursuant to Education Code 52060-52077 or an annual gpdate to the LCAP isin place
for the budget vear. Expenditures necessary to implement the LCAP or the anmnual update during
the subsequent fiscal year shall be included in the budget. (Education Code 42127)

Budget Development and Adoption Process

Note: Education Code 42127 gives districts a choice of budget adoption methods. Under the
single budget adoption process (Fducation Code 42127(1)), the Board must adopt and submit, by
July 1, a "final” budget which subsequently may be amended within 45 days after the state
budget is adopted and when necessary in response to disapproval of the budget by the County
Superintendent of Schools. Under the dual budget adoption process (Education Code 42127(e)
and (g)). the budget that the Board adopts by July 1 servesasa “tentative” budget. By September
8. the Board must submit a revised final budget which responds to the County Superintendent's
recommendations and reflects changes in projected income or expenditures after July 1.

Note: Education Code 42127 requires districts using the single budget adoption process {0 notity
the County Superintendent of that decision by October 31 of the preceding calendar year.
However, according to the California Department of Bducation's (CDE) budget calendar, this
notification should be provided to the County Superintendent along with the unaudited actual
data report (see AR 3460 - Financial Reporis and Accountability) which may be required sooner
than October 31.

223 of 242



OPTION 1 (Single Budget Adoption Process)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish an annual budget development process and
calendar in accordance with the single budget adoption process described in Education Code
421271y, He/she shall annually notify the County Superintendent of Schools of the distriet's
decision to use the single budget adoption process in the subseguent year. (Education Code

OPTION 2: (Dual Budget Adoption Process)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish an annual budget development process and
calendar in accordance with the dual budget adoption process described in Education Code
42127(e) and {g).

Note: The remainder of this section applies to districts that selected either Option 1 or 2 above.

In order to provide guidance in the development of the budget, the Board shall annually establish
budget priorities based on identified district needs and goals and on realistic projections of
available funds.

The Superintendent or designee shall oversee the preparation of a proposed district budget for
approval by the Board and shall involve appropriate staff in the development of budget
projections.

Note: Education Code 42103 and 42127 require & public hearing prior to adoption of the budget
and, in the case of the dual budget adoption process, a second public hearing prior to revising the
hudget; see the accompanying administrative regulation.

The Board encourages public input in the budget development process and shall hold a public
hearing on the proposed budget in accordance with Education Code 42103 and 42127,

Note: Education Code 42126 requires the district's final budget to be submitied to the County
Superintendent in a format prescribed by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. The CDE
requires districts to use the Standardized Account Code Structure; see the accompanying
administrative regulation, At its discretion, the district may use a different format for
communicating the budget to the Board, staff, and public but, according to the CDE, the budget
that the Board formally adopts must be in the format that will be submitted to the County
Superintendent.

The budget that is formally adopted by the Board shall be in the format prescribed by the
Superintendent of Public Instruction. The Superinfendent or designee may supplement this
format with additional information as necessary to effectively communicate the budget to the
Board, staft, and public.

Budget Advisory Comiuitiee

The Superintendent or designee may appoint a badget advisory committee composed of staff,

224 of 242



Board representatives, and/or members of the community.

The committee shall develop recommendations during the budget development process and its
duties shall be assigned each vear based on district needs. All recommendations of the commitice
shall be advisory only and shall not be binding on the Board or the Superintendent or designee.

Budget Criteria and Standards

Note: Education Code 33129 requires the district to develop its budget and manage its
expenditures in keeping with criteria and standards adopted by the State Board of Education

Education Code 33128 and 5 CCR 15440-15451.

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 33128.3, by the 2013-14 fiscal year, districts are required to
restore their reserve for economic uncertainty to the level specified in 5 CCR 15450, The CDE's
New Requirements for Reporting Fund Balance in Governmental Funds suggests that districts
may find it prudent to maintain reserves above the minimum reguired level; see the section
"Fund Balance" below.

Note: AB 97 (Ch. 47, Statutes of 2013} amended Education Code 33127 to require the SBE fo
revise the state standards and criteria, on or before January 1, 2014, to retlect the requirtements of

applicable to district budgets starting in the 2014-15 school year.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a district budget in accordance with criteria and
standards adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE). (Education Code 33127, 33128,
33128.3. 33129, 5 CCR 15440-15451)

Note: Education Code 42238.02 and 42238.03, as added by AR 97 (Ch. 47, Statutes of 2013},
provide supplemental and concentration grants within the local control funding formula for some
districts based on the number and concentration of unduplicated counts of students who are
eligible for free or reduced-price meals, English learners, and foster youth. Pursuant to Education
Code 42238 07, as added by AB 97, the SBE is required to adopt regulations on or before
Yanuary 31, 2014, governing the expenditure of supplemental and concentration grant funds and
requiring districts to increase or improve services for targeted student groups in propotion to the
inerease in funds through these grants.

The budget shall provide that funding received through state supplemental and concentration
grants pursuant to Education Code 42238.02 and 42238.03 shall be used in accordance with
regulations adopted by the SBE for schoolwide or districtwide purposes to increase or improve
services for students who are Fnglish learners, eligible for free or redaced-price meals, and/or
foster youth at least in proportion to the increase to the district's revenue generated from such
funds. (Education Code 42238.07)

The Board may establish other budget assumptions or parameters which may take into
consideration the stability of funding sources, legal requirements and constraints on the use of

225 of 242



funds, anticipated increases and/or decreases in the cost of services and supplies, categorical
program requirements, and any other factors necessary to ensure that the budget is a realistic plan
for district revenues and expenditures.

Fund Balance

The district shall classify fund balances in compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement 54, as foliows:

1. Nonspendabie fund balance includes amounts that are not expected to be converted to cash,
such as resources that are not in a spendable form (e.g., inventories and prepaids) or that are
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

2. Restricted fund balance includes amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers
or by law.

3. Committed fund balance includes amounts constrained to specific purposes by the Board.

For this purpose, all commitments of funds shall be approved by a majority vote of the Board.
The constraints shall be imposed no later than the end of the reporting period of June 30,
although the actual amounts may be determined subsequent to that date but prior to the issuance
of the financial statements.

4. Assigned fund balance includes amounts which the Board or its designee intends to use fora
specific purpose.

The Roard delegates authority to assign funds to the assigned fund balance to the Superintendent
or designee and authorizes the assignment of such funds to be made any time prior to the
issuance of the financial statements.

5. Unassigned fund balance includes amounts that are available for any purpose.

When multiple types of funds are available for an expenditure, the district shall first utilize funds
from the restricted fund balance as appropriate, then from the committed fund balance. then from
the assigned fund balance, and lastly from the unassigned fund balance,

To protect the district against unforeseen circumstances such as revenue shortfalls and
unanticipated expenditures, the Board intends to maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance
which includes a reserve for economic uncertainties equal to at least two months of general fund
operating expenditures, or 17 percent of general fund expenditures and other financing uses.

Tf the unassigned fund balance falls below this level due to an emergency situation, unexpected
expenditures, or revenue shortfalls, the Board shall develop a plan te recover the fund balance
which may include dedicating new unrestricted revenues, reducing expenditures, and/or
increasing revenues or pursuing other funding sources.

226 of 242



Long-Term Financial Obligations

The district's current-vear budget and multi-year projections shall include adequate provisions
for addressing the district's long-term financial obligations, including, but not Iimited to, long-
term obligations resulting from collective bargaining agreements, financing of facilities projects,
unfunded or future Hability for retiree benefits, and accrued workers' compensation ¢laims.

The Board shall approve a plan for meeting the district's long-term obligations to fund
nonpension, other postemployment benefits (OPEBs). This plan shall include a specific funding
strategy and the method that will be used to finance the district's annual fiscal obligations for
such benefits in a manner that continually reduces the deficit to the district to the extent possible.
The Board reserves the authority (o review and amend the funding strategy as necessary to
ensure that it continues to serve the best interests of the district and maintains flexibility to adjust
for changing budgetary considerations.

When the Superintendent or designee presents a report to the Board on the estimated accrued but
unfunded cost of OPEBs, the Board shall disclose, as a separate agenda item at the same
meeting, whether or not it will reserve a sufficient amount of money in its budget to fund the
present value of the benefits of existing retirees and/or the future cost of employees who are
eligible for benefits in the current fiscal year

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that are self-insured for workers'
compensation claims, either individually or as part of a joint powers agency. See AR 3460 -
Financial Reports and Accountability for provisions related to reporting the estimated acerued
but unfunded cost of workers' compensation claims based on an actuarial report.

When the Superintendent or designee presents a report to the Board on the estimated acerued but
unfunded cost of workers' compensation claims, the Board shall disclose, as a separate agenda
item at the same meeting, whether or not it will reserve in the budget sufficient anmounts io fund
the present value of accrued but unfunded workers' compensation claims or if it is otherwise
decreasing the amount in its workers' compensation reserve fund. The Board shall annually
certify to the County Superintendent the amount, if any, that it has decided to reserve in the
budget for these costs. The Board shall submit to the County Superintendent any budget
revisions that may be necessary to account for this budget reserve. (Education Code 42141}

Budget Amendments

Whenever revenues and expenditures change significantly throughout the vear, the
Superintendent or designee shall recommend budget amendments to ensure accurate projections
of the district's net ending balance. When final figures for the prior-year budget are availabie,
this information shall be used as soon as possible to update the current-year budget's beginning
balance and projected revenues and expenditures.

In addition, budget amendments shall be submitted for Board approval as necessary when the
state budget is adopted, collective bargaining agreements are accepted, district income declines,

227 of 242



increased revenues or unanticipated savings are made available to the district, program proposals
are significantly different from those approved during budget adoption, interfund transfers are
needed to meet actual program expenditures, and/or other significant changes oceur that impact
budget projections.

228 of 242



AR 3100
Business and Noninstructional Operations
Budget
Budget Advisory Committee

Membership of the district's budget advisory committee may include representatives of each of
the following groups:

1. Governing Board members, provided that less than a majority of the Board serves on the
cominittes

2

. Digirict and school site adiminisivators

{a2

. Representatives of bargaining umits

4. Certificated and/or classified stafl

Lh

. Parents/guardians

o

. Representatives of the business community and/or other community members
7. Students

The committee's duties may include, but not necessarily be limited to:

1. Making recommendations regarding budget priorities

2. Recommending cost reduction strategies, such as identifying services that may be reduced,
made more efficient, or discontinued

3. Reviewing the clarity and effectiveness of budget documents and communications

4. Presenting progress reports on the committee's work and a final report of recommendations to
the Superintendent or designee and to the Board

The specific duties of the committee shall be clearly defined and presented to each member in
writing, along with any background information necessary for the successful completion of the
committee's charges, the timelines for reporting the committee's progress, and timelines for
completion of each task.

Initial Budget Adoption

229 of 242



On or before July 1 of each year, the Board shall adopt a budget which adheres to the state's
standardized account code structure (SACS) as prescribed by the Superintendent of Public
Instruction (SPI). (Education Code 42126, 42127)

Note: Pursuant 1o Education Code 52062, as added by AB 97 (Ch. 47, Statutes of 2013), the
public hearing on the budget described below must be at the same meeting as the public hearing
on the local control and accountability plan (LCAP); see BP 0460 - Local Control and
Accountability Plan.

Before adopting the district budget for the subsequent fiscal vear, the Board shall hold a public
hearing. The agenda for this hearing shall be posted at least 72 hours before the hearing and shall
indicate the location where the budget may be inspected. The proposed budget shall be avatiable
for public inspection at least three working days before this hearing. This hearing shall be held at
the same meeting as the public hearing to solicit public input on the local controf and
accountability plan (LCAP) or the annual update to the LCAP. (Education Code 42103, 42127,
52062)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify the County Superintendent of Schools of the
location, dates, and times at which the proposed budget may be inspected, as well as the location.
date, and time of the public hearing, in sofficient time for the County Superintendent to publish
such information in a newspaper of general circulation at teast 10 days but not more than 45 days
betore the hearing as required by Education Code 42103,

During the hearing, any district resident may speak to the proposed budget or to any item in the
budget. The hearing may conclude when all residents who have reguested to be heard have had
the opportunity to speak. (FEdneation Code 42103)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 42127, as amended by AB 97 (Ch. 47, Statutes of 2013), prior
to adopting the district budget for the 2014-13 fiscal year, the Governing Board must adopt the
LCAP, Each fiscal year thereafter, the Board must not adopt the district budget until it has an
approved LCAP or update to the LCAP that is in effect for the budget year. Education Code
52062, added by AB 97, requires that the LCAP or anuual update be adopted at the same public
meeting during which the Board adonts the budget. See BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and
Accountability Plan.

After the public hearing, at a public meeting held on a different date, the Board shall adopt the
district budget following adoption of the LCAP at the same meeting. The budget shall not be
adopted if an approved LCAP or annual update to the LCAP is not in etfect for the budget year.
(Education Code 52062)

Note: Education Code 42127 requires the district to file the adopted budget with the County
Superintendent as described below. If the district fails fo submit a budget, the County

230 of 242



Superintendent will, at district expense, develop a budget by September 15 and transmit that
budget o the Board.

The Superintendent or designee shall file the adopted budget with the County Superintendent no
tater than five days after adoption or by July 1, whichever oceurs first. The budget and
supporting data shall be maintained and made available for public review. (Education Code

Revised Budget

Note: On or before August 15, the County Superintendent will approve, conditionally approve,
or disapprove the district’s adopted budget and report to the Board and the SPI vegarding the
fiscal solvency of a district with a disapproved budget, as required by Education Code 1240 and
42127 1f disapproved or conditionally approved, the County Superintendent must provide the
Roard with recommendations regarding revision of the budget and the reasons for those
recommendations. The County Superintendent also may assign a fiscal advisor or may appoint a
commitiee to review his/her recommendations.

Note: The district should select the appropriate option below reflecting the budget adoption
process selected by the Board; see the accompanying Board policy. Districts using the single
budget adoption process pursuant to Education Code 42127(i) (Option 1) must respond to a
disapproved budget on or before September 8. Districts using the dual budget adoption process
pursuant to Bducation Code 42127(e) and (g) {Option 2) must hold a second public hearing prior
to adopting a revised budget on or before September 8, For districts using the dual budget
adoption process, the requirement to adopt a revised budget applies regardless of whether the
initial budget was approved or disapproved by the County Superintendent.

OPTION 1: (Single Budget Adoption Process)

No later than 45 days after the Governor signs the annual Budget Act, the Superintendent or
designee shall make available for public review any revisions in budgeted revenues and
expenditures which are consequently necessary. {Education Code 42127}

If the County Superintendent disapproves the district's budget. the Board shall review and
respond to his/her recommendations at a public meeting on or before September 8. The response
shall include any revisions to the adopted budget and any other proposed actions to be taken as a
result of those recommendations. (Education Code 42127}

OPTION 2: (Dual Budget Adoption Process)

On or before September 8, the Board shall adopt and file a revised budget with the County
Superintendent which reflects: (Education Code 42127)

231 of 242



t. Changes in projected income or expenditures subsequent to July |
2. Any response to the County Superintendent's recommendations on the initial budget

Before revising the budget, the Board shall hold a second public hearing regarding the proposed
revisions in accordance with Education Code 42103, In addition, if the initial budget was
disapproved by the County Superintendent, the public hearing shall inchude a review by the
Board and the County Superintendent of the disapproval and the County Superintendent's
recommendations. {Education Code 42127}

The revised budget and supporting data shail be maintained and made available for public
review. (Fducation Code 42127)

Budget Review Committee for Disapproved Budgets

If the district's revised budget is disapproved by the County Superintendent for any reason other
than his/her disapproval of the district’'s LCAP or annual update to the LCAP, the budget shall be
reviewed by a budeet review committee, unless the Board and County Superintendent agree fo
waive the requirernent and the California Department of Education accepts the waiver,
{Education Code 42127)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 42127.2, if the Board fails to select the budget review
committee from a list of candidates provided by the SPI within five working days of receiving
the list, as provided in item #1 below, the SPI will select and convene the committee within 10
working days from the date the Board received the candidate list.

This commitiee shall consist of either: (Hducation Code 42127.1, 42127.2)

1. Three persons selected by the Board from a list of candidates provided by the SPI, who shall
be selected within five working days after receiving the iist of candidates

2. A regional review committee convened by the County Superintendent with the approval of the
Board

If the budget review committee recommends disapproval of the district budget, the Board may
submit a response no later than five working days after receipt of the conumittee’s report. The
response may include any revisions to the adopted final budget and any other proposed actions to

If the SPI disapproves the district budget after reviewing the comumittee's report and the district's
response, the Board shall consult with the County Superintendent as he/she develops and adopts,
by November 30, a fiscal plan and budget that will allow the district to meet its [inancial
obligations. For the current fiscal year, the district shall operate in accordance with the budget
adopted by the County Superintendent. {Education Code 42127.3)

232 of 242



Until the district receives approval of its budget, it shall continue to operate either on the basis of
the prior year's budget or on the basis of the current year's unapproved budget as adopted and
revised by the Board, whichever budget contains a lower total spending authority. (Education

Code 42127.4)

233 of 242



Sausalite Marin City School District

Agenda Item: 11.06 Bate: January 14, 2014
~ Correspondence _ Consent Agenda
_ Reports

General Functions

Pupi! Services

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures
_ Curriculum and Instruction

X Policy Development

itern Requires Board Actien: item is for Information Only: X
Ftem: Board Bylaw (BB) 9000 — Role of the Board
Backeground:

As part of an on-going etfort to review our policies, we will begin with Board Bylaws.
Therefore, presented for review:

First read for Board Bylaw (BB} 9000 concerning the role of the board.

Fiscal Impact:

Undetermined

Becommendation:

First Read

Prepared for: 5. Van Zant
Prepared by: S, Van Zant

234 of 242



BB 9000 Board Bylaws

Role Of The Board

The Governing Board has been elected by the community to provide leadership and citizen
oversight of the district. The Board shall ensure that the district is responsive to the values,
beliefs, and priorities of the community.

The Board shall work with the Superintendent to fulfill its major responsibilities, which include:

1. Setting the direction for the district through a process that involves the community,
parents/guardians, students, and staff and is focused on student learning and achievement

2

. Establishing an effective and efficient organizational structure for the district by:

IS

. Employing the Superintendent and setting poliey for hiring of other personnel

o

. Overseeing the development and adoption of policies

¢. Establishing academic expectations and adopting the curriculum and instructional materials
d. Establishing budget priorities and adopting the budget

2. Providing safe, adequate facilities that support the district's instructional program

£, Setting parameters for negotiations with employee organizations and ratifying collective
bargaining agreements

3. Providing support to the Superintendent and staff as they carry out the Board's divection by:
a. Establishing and adhering to standards of responsible governance
b. Making decisions and providing resources that support district priosities and goals

. Upholding Board policies

o]

d. Being knowledgeable about district programs and efforts in order to serve as effective
spokespersons

4. Ensuring accountability to the public for the performance of the district's schools by:
a. Evaluating the Superintendent and setting policy for the evaluation of other personnel
b. Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of policies

c. Serving as a judicial (hearing) and appeals body in accordance with law, Board policies, and
negotiated agreements

d. Monitoring student achievement and program effectiveness and requiring program changes as
NEecessary

e. Monitoring and adjusting district finances
. Monitoring the collective bargaining process

5. Providing community leadership and advocacy on behalf of students, the district's educational
program, and public education in order to build support within the local community and at the
state and national levels

The Board is authorized to establish and finance any program or activity that is not in conflict
with, inconsistent with, or preempted by law, (Education Code 33166}

235 of 242



Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda Item: 11.07 Date: January 14, 2014

~ Correspondence
Reports
~ Genersl Functions
~ Pupil Services
Personnel Services
Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instroction

Consent Agenda

Item Requires Board Action: Item is for Information Only: . X
fteny: Board Bylaw (BB) 9005 ~ Governance Standards

Background:

As part of an on-going effort to review our policies, we will begin with Board Bylaws.
Theretore, presented for review:

First read for Board Bylaw (BB} 96035 concerning Governance Standards,

Fizeal Impact:

ndetermined

Recommendation:

First Read

Prepared for: 5. Van Zant
Prepared by: 5. Van Zant

236 of 242



BE 9005 Board Bylaws
Governance Standards

The Governing Board believes that ifg primary responsibility 15 to act in the best interests of
every student in the district. The Board also has major comuitments to parents/guardians, atl
members of the community, employees, the state of California, laws pertaining 10 public
education, and established policies of the district. To maximize Board effectiveness and public
confidence in district governance, Board members are expected to govern responsibly and hold
(hemselves to the highest standards of ethical conduct.

The Roard expects its members 10 work with each other and the Superiniendent to ensure that a
high-quality education is provided to each student. Bach individual Board member shall:

1. Keep learning and achievement for all students as the primary focus

2. Value, support and advocate for public education

3. Recognize and respect ditferences of perspective and style on the Board and among statf,
students, parents and the community

4. Act with dignity, and understand the implications of demeanor and behavior
5. Keep confidential matters confidential

6. Participate in professional development and commit fhe time and energy necessary to be an
informed and effective leader

7 Understand the distinctions between Roard and staff roles, and refrain from performing
management functions that are the responsibility of the Superintendent and staff

8 Understand that authority rests with the Board as a whole and not with individuals

Board members algo shall assume collective responsibility for building unity and creating a
positive organizational culture. To operate effectively, the Board shall have a unity of purpose
and:

1. Keep the district focused on learning and achievemnent for alt students

7. Communicate a common vision

Lad

. Operate openly, with trust and integrity

Govern in a dignified and professional manner, treating everyone with civility and respect

[N = Y

_(overn within Board-adopted policies and procedures
6. Take collective responsibility for the Board's performance
7. Periodically evaluate its own effectiveness

9. Ensure opportunities for the diverse range of views in the conmmunity to inform Board
deliberations

237 of 242



Sansalite Marin City School District

Agenda ftem: 11.08 Date: January 14, 2013
mmmmmm Correspondence _ Consent Agenda
~ Reports

(reneral Functions
~ Pupil Services

Personnel Services

wwwwww __ Financial & Business Procedures
_ Curriculum and Instruction

X Policy Development
ftem Requires Board Action: item is for Information Only: X
iten: Board Bylaw (BB) 9010 - Public Statements
Baekground:

As part of an on-going effort to review our policies, we will begin with Board Bylaws.
Therefore, presented for review:

First read for Board Bylaw (BB) 9010 concerning Public Statements.

Fiscal Impact:

Undetermined

Recommendation:

First Read

Prepared for: S, Van Zant
Prepared by: 5. Van Zant

238 of 242



BB 9010 Board Bylaws
Pablic Statements

The Governing Board recognizes the responsibifity of Board members in their role as community
leaders to participate in public discourse on maitters of civic or community interest, including
those invelving the district, and their right to freely express their personal views. However, to
ensure communication of a consistent, unified message regarding district tssues, Board members
are expected to respect the authority of the Board to choose its representatives to communicate
its positions and to abide by established protocols.

Al public statements authorized to be made on behalf of the Board shall be made by the Board
president or, if appropriate, by the Superintendent or other designated representative.

When speaking for the district, the Board encourages its spokespersons to exercise restraint and
tact and to communicate the message in a manner that promotes public confidence in the Board's
feadership.

Board spokespersons shall not disclose confidential information or information received in
closed session except when authorized by a majority of the Board. (Government Code 54963)

When speaking to community groups, members of the public, or the media, individual Board
members should recognize that their statements may be perceived as reflecting the views and
positions of the Board. Board members have a responsibility to identify personal viewpoints as
such and not as the viewpeint of the Board.

n addition, the Board encourages members who participate on social networking sites, blogs, or
other discussion or informational sites to conduct themselves in a respectful, courteous, and
professional manner and to model good behavior for district students and the community. Such
electronic communications are subjeet to the same standards and protocols established for other
forms of communication, and the disclosure requirements of the California Public Records Act
may likewise apply to them.

239 of 242



Hausaiite Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 11.09 Bate: Janvary 14, 2013

— Correspondence
Reports

__ General Functions
_ Pupil Services

Personnel Services
_ Financial & Business Procedures
_ Curriculum and Instruction

X Policy Development

~ Consent Agenda

item Requires Board Action: ftem is for Information Only: X
item: Board Bylaw (BB) 9130 — Board Commuittees

Background:

As part of an on-going effort to review our policies, we will begin with Board Bylaws. In
addition, this topic was a source of inquiry by the board at the December 2013 meeting.
The Superintendent requests that the board fully contemplate the ramifications of
establishing standing commitices before taking action to formally establish any such

commitices. Therefore, presented for review:

First read for Board Bylaw (BB) 9130 concerning Board Commitiees.

Fiscal Impact:

Undetermined

Recommendation:
First Read
Prepared for: 5. Van Zant

Prepared by: S. Van Zant

240 of 242



BB 9130 Board Bylaws
Hoard Coemmittees

The Governing Board may establish a committee whenever it determines that such a committee
would benefit the district by providing diverse viewpoints, specialized knowledge or expertise,
or increased efficiency. Such commitiees may be subcommittees of the Board or conumittees that
include members of the community, statt, or other stakeholder groups.

Upon establishing a committee, the Board shall clearly define the commiitee's purpose, any
timeline for completion of assigned responsibilities, any stakeholder groups or individuals to be
represented on the committee, length of time that committee members are expected to serve, and
expectations for reporting to the Board and/or the Superintendent or designee. Unless
specifically authorized by the Board to act on its behalf, the committee shall act in an advisory
capacity.

Except for subcommittees of the Board, committee members shall, as appropriate, be
recommended by the Superintendent or designee and appointed by the Board president, subject
to Board approval.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide commitiee members with information and
assistance necessary for the fulfillment of the commitiee's charges, and may serve as a non-
voting advisor to the committee at the discretion of the Board.

Whenever so charged, commiltees may actively seek input and participation by
parents/guardians, staff, community, and students and may consult with local public boards and
agencies.

Any comumitiee not required by law may be dissolved when its duties or term has been completed
or whenever the Board deems necessary.

Commitiee Meetings

Note: Unless otherwise exempted by law, Government Code 54937 provides that open meeting
lanws (the Brown Act) apply fo any commission, commiltee, board, or other legisiative body
created by formal action of the Board. regardless of whether that body is permanent or
temporary, decision making or advisory, also see BP/AR 1220 - Citizen Advisory Commiiitees.
These requirements include posting a meefing notice or agenda at least 72 hours before a
regular meeting or 24 hours before a special meeting pursuani to Government Code 54954 2
and 34950, see BB 9320 - Meetings and Notices.

Note: In Frazer v. Dixon Unified School District, the court held that the adopiion of a Board
policy that reguired the appointment of a curviculum committee io advise the Superinfendent,
and in turn the Board, was a commiitee created by "formal Board action within the meaning of

241 of 242



Linless otherwise exempied by law, Board-created committees shall provide public notice of
their meetings and conduct meetings in accordance with Government Code 54950-54963 (the
Brown Act).

However, Board subcommittees composed solely of less than a quorum of the members of the
Board are not subject to open meeting laws unless they are standing committess. Standing
committees of the Board, irrespective of membership, are those that have a continuing subject
matter jurisdiction or a meeting schedule established by action of the Board. (Government Code
54952)

Note: In 79 Ops. Cal Atty. Gen. 69 (1996), the Attorney General has clarified that opern meeting
laws apply if the standing committee has the responsibility of providing advice af the Board's
request on budgels, audits, confracts, and personnel maifers.

Standing comumittees with a continuing subject matter jurisdiction include, but are not Himited to,
those responsible for providing advice on budgets, audits, Board policy. contracts, and personnel
matters at the Board's request.

wha are not members of « standing commitiee atfend the commitiee meeting only as "observers.™
In 81 Ops. Cal Atiy. Gen. 136 (1998), the Attorney General clarified rhat those Board members
aftending the meeting as "observers” may not ask questions or make statements af the meeting
and that they must it in the areas designated for members of the public.

When a majority of the members of the Board attend an open and noticed meeting of a standing
committee, the Board members who are not members of the standing committee shall attend only
as observers. (Government Code 54952.2)

Whenever any advisory or standing committee, including a committee not otherwise subject to
the Brown Act, posts a meeting agenda at feast 72 hours in advance of the meeting, that meeting
shall be considered as a regular meeting of the Board for purposes of the Brown Act and
therefore must be held within district boundaries unless otherwise authorized by law.
{Government Code 34954)

Jote: In 80 Ops. Cal Arty. Gen, 308 (1997), the Attorney General determined that sessions of a
district linison council that was formed by the board to interview candidates for district
superintendent and to make a recommendation io the board were not required o be open to the
public. The Atrorney General concluded that, because a legislative body is authorized under
the appointment or emplovment of a public employee (see BB 9321 - Closed Session Purposes
and Agendas), that authority also extends to commitiees that are delegated by the legislative
body to perform refated duties. The following paragraph reflects this opinion.

Commitiees may meet in a closed session during a regular or special meeting only for those
purposes specifically authorized by law for closed sessions held by the Board.

242 of 242



	Agenda

	MCSBA Rep.
	Williams Report
	Construction

	Minutes

	District Audit Report

	WCA Audit Report 
	Audit Contract
	Bid Threshold

	InterSchola Agreement

	Parent Liability

	Warrants

	Instructional Minutes

	BP 1230

	BP 1240

	BP 1260

	BP 3312.2
	BP 3100

	BB 9000

	BB 9005

	BB 9010
	BB 9130



